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Our ability to design and develop high-technology products and
then Integrate these into sophisticated power systems for land,

sea and air, provides us with access to global markets

Note Reconciliatian of undertying revenues and results 1s prowaded in note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Directors’ report

The directors present the Annual
report for the year ended December
3 2010 which includes the business
review governance report and
audrted financial statements for the
year References 10 Rolls-Royce the
Grougf the Comparry ‘we’ orbur
are to Rolls Royce plc and/or s
subsidianes or any of them as the
context may require Pages 0 to 49
inclusive of this Annual report
comprise a Directors report that has
been drawn up and presented in
accordance with English company
law and the habilities of the directors
N cannecion with that report shall
be subject to the imitauens and
rastnctions provided bry such law
Aolis-Royce ple s incorporated as

2 public imited company and s
registered in England under the UK
Comparues Act 1985 with the
registered number 1003142
Ralls-Royce pk's registered office
65 Buclangham Gate, London
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Cautlonary statemert regarding
forward-looking statements

This Annual report has been
prepared for the members of the
Company only The Company its
directors, emplayees or agents do
not accept or assume r2spansibility
10 any other persen 1IN CONNECIION
with this document and any such

respansibility or lability 15 expressty
disclaimeg This Annual report
contains cerian forward-looking
statements These forward Jooking
statements can be idenofied by

the fact that they do not relate only
to histonical or current facts

tn parucular all statements that
express forecasts, expectanons and
projections with respect ta future
matters, including trends in results
of operavons, margins growth rates,
overall market trends, the impact

of interest or exchange rates the
avalability of financing 10 the Group,
anticipated COST savIngs Of synergies
and the compietion of the Groups
strategic transactions are

forward looking statements By their
nature, these statements and
forecasts invelve nsk and uncertainty
because they relate 10 events and
depend on arcumstances that may
or may not occur in the future There
are a number of factors that could
cause actual results or developments
1o differ matenally from those
expressed orimphed by these
forward-looking statements and
forecasts The forward-looking
statements reflect the knowledge
and information available at the
date of preparaton of this Annuat
rapart, 2and will nat be updated
dunng the year Nothing in this
Annual repart should be construed
as a profit forecast




CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REVIEW

"Rolls-Royce has maintained
progress Our financial
position was further
strengthened in 2010”

This 1s my fifteenth and final Chief Executive’s review, and
so it Is a parucular pleasure to report that Rofls-Royce has
delivered a strong performance in 2010 despite
challenging economic conditions

Underlying revenue has grown seven per cent 1o

£109 billion and underlying profit before tax has
increased by four per cent to £956 million Qur financial
position has also contenued to iImprove with average net
cash balances reaching £969 million, an iImprovement
of £336 million over the same perniod 1n 2009 This
demonstrates once agam the strength and resilience

of the Group and the progress that we have made in
recent years It 1s a measure of this progress that the cavil,
defence and marine businesses now each generate
underlying profits of more than £300 miilion

I was an early pessimist about the condiion of the world
economy and | expect to be a late optrmisi The situation
remains fragile, recovery has been asymmetric and the
global finangial system retains the capacity 1o surpnse
unpleasantly However, our consistent investment in a
broad portfalio of products and services and our strong
customer relationships have given us access to a wide
range of global markets

This breadth has allowed Rolls-Royce to maintain
progress through the downturn and the disruption to
the world economy whuch began in 2007 Since then
the business has grown its order book, revenues, profits
and average net cash, and increased payments to
shareholders while at the same time we have invested
more than £4 bithon i the business

Investing for the long term

Ouring 2010, we have continued our prograrmme of
investment, funding world-class facilites in all major
geographies, providing capacity for future growth,
contnibuting to improved productivity and delivering
products with operational lives which may well extend
1o half a century We remain confident in our ability to
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double revenues in the coming decade through organic
growth alone However, we alse have the management
and financial capablity to accelerate growth through
acquisition and partnership

Strategy

Qur consistent strategy, applied over many years, has

helped deliver a more broadly based, better balanced

and maore resiient portfolio This strategy has five key

elements

- address four global markets, cvil aerospace, defence

aerospace, marine and energy,

invest in technology, infrastructure and capability,

- develop a competitive portfolio of products and
Services,

- grow market share and our (nstalled product base, and

- add value for customers through the prowision of
product-refated services

We have high barners 1o entry as a result of the
technology required for the design, systems integration,
manufacture and support of our products In addition we
work hard to transfer inteliectual property, products and
Innovation across businesses 1o achieve competitive
advantage 1n the markets which we serve

An increasingly global business

The business today I1s the consequence of decisions and
investments made over many years When | first joined
the Company in 1984, Rolls-Royce had a narrow product
range and 115 business was mainly UK focused with

some presence in the US This position has changed
fundamentally We are now able to trade successfully on a
global basis and are developing our presence around the
world This brings us closer to customers and allows us
access to funding and skills Our customer insight and our
ability 1o develop technologies and integrate them into
complex power systems, give us access 1o markets where
demand remains strong for the products and services
that we provide

The decrsion to ltocate the head office of our marine
business In Singapore will have a profound impact on our
ability 1o develop a global view We now manage about
one third of our revenue from Singapore, a further third
from North America and the balance from the United
Kingdom and Europe This means that management
teams, running businesses thatin themsetves are the size
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of FTSE 100 companies, wil think about challenges and
opportunities from a different perspective This will be of
huge benefit to the Group as we respend to customer
requirements and competition

tn 2010, rapid progress was made 1n the construction of
our major new agrospace facilines at Crosspointe in the US
to manufacture discs and at Seletar in Singapore where we
will assemble and test large cvil engines and manufacture
wide-chord fan blades During the year, we alsc opened a
new Mechanical Test complex at Dahlewitz in Germany to
conduct testing for our businesses worldwide

We continue to expand our marine services We already
have 34 facilities around the world and the network is
growing fast, ensuring that our locations match our
customers' requirements Of course our supply chain
has also become increasingly global with around

8,000 suppliers in North and South America, Europe
and Asia We continue to invest In Impraving cur
supply chain management, to integrate these suppliers
Into our worldwide operations and to iImprove our
quality and capabilities

Our business today
Qur business is conducted through four major
customer focused businesses

Ciwvil 2erospace

We have seen signs of recavery in the cvil aerospace
sector, although the strength of this recovery varies
berween regions Nonetheless, we have continued 0
sign significant new orders, particularly with customers
based in Asia and the Middle East This includes two
indvidual orders worth more than £1 billon from China
and the Middle East In all, new arders amounted to

£7 5 billion during 2810, demonstrating the continued
confidence of our customers in our portfolio

The two new members of the Trent family continued their
development programmes threugh 2010 The Trent 1000
1s powering the Boeing 787 on the arrcraft's flight test
schedule The engine for the Arrbus A350 XWE, which is
due to enter service in 2013, ran for the first tme in June
This promises to be the most successfut member of the
Trent farmuly with 1,150 engines atready on order Across
the portfalio, our arder book requires us to more than
double our outpus of Trent engines by the middle of

this decade
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An uncontained disc release occurred on a Trent S00
engine on board a Qantas operated Airbus A380n
November 2010 This regrettable incident attracted
widespread attention Uncontained disc failures happen
with a frequency of about once a year on the world’s
large avil arrcraft fleet However, this was the first time
an event of this nature had occurred on alarge avil
Rolls-Royce engine since 1994

The safety of cur products 1s our highest priority and each
e a serous incident happens Rolls-Royce and the
aviation industry learns lessons These are embedded in
the nigorous certification requirements, safety procedures
and standards of regulation which make flytng an
extraordinarily safe form of transport In ine with this
regime, Rolls-Royce worked closely with the regulators,
Arbus and our customers to put In place an effective
inspection programme, to dentify root cause and

to achieve a rapid return of the Trent 900 fleet to

normal operation

Marnne

The growth of our marine business over the past decade
has been a major feature 0 the broademing of our
portfolio In that time revenues have grown by six times,
and we now have equipment on board 30000 vessels
This growth 15 a consequence of our focus on power
systems integration for increasingly complex and
efficient vessels

Rolis-Royce has a strang position in the offshore support
industry with production faciliies in nine couniries and a
growing support network The acquisition of ODIM ASA
duning 2010, has added sigrificantly to our systems
capability and gives us greater access to the growing
markets of seismic surveying and subsea deepwater
installation This will be partcularly important as ol and
gas exploration moves into ever deeper waters, for
instance in Brazil, where more complex and capable
vessels are required

Our naval business secured a breakthrough order from
the US Navy to power ten Littoral Combat Ships with
MT30 manne gas turbine engines This represents the
largest naval surface vessel contract the Group has
signed In the UK, all six Type 45 Destroyers for the
Royal Navy have now been launched, equipped with
our highly-efficient WR-21 gas turbine power system

Order book

x
£59.2bn




In the merchant sector, our technalogy enabfes us

to respond to the growing demand for improved
environmental performance of marine engines As just
ane example of this, in 2010 we signed a contract for
the world's largest gas-powered ferry which will operate
in the environmentally sensitive coastal waters of
Norway, fuelled by quefied natural gas This technology
dramatically reduces CO, emissions and virtually
elimmnates soot and sulphur emissions

Defence aerospace

Our defence aerospace business is highly diversified with
160 customers in more than 100 countries Despite the
pressure on public spending in iis traditional markets

we continue to benefit from our investment 1n a broad
product and services partfolio, alt of which have globat
applications In particular, we see growth opportunities
N emergmg economies 1 Asia, the Middle East and
South America

In the UK, the Strategic Defence and Secunty Review
has impacted a number of fong-standing programmes,
including the Harrier jump Jet, which was taken out of
service duning 2010 However, new products and aur
substantial service actmvities will both ensure the
resilience of this part of the defence business and
create opportunities

New European ccllaborative ventures are progressing
well and are expected to have a strong export market In
particular, the TP400 turboprop on the Airbus A300M has
naw successfully completed 3,000 hours of flight testing
Rolls-Royce 15 also the leading supplier of engines for
transport aircraft globally, powering large fleets such as
the C-130, C-130J, Spartan C-27 and Csprey V=22

In the US, the government agproved 2010 funding for
the development of the F136 engine for the Joint Strike
Fighter We believe this 1s an smportant programme not
Just for the aircraft but to ensure competition and value
for taxpayers and customers

We are also involved in major research projects such as
Adoptive Versatile Engine Technology (ADVENT) which
15 designed to significantiy reduce fuel consumption
These positton us well for future military programmes
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Energy and nuclear

Qur energy business has two main activities These
are supplying power to the o)l and gas sector and the
provision of power generation products and services

Rolls-Royce has been a major supplier of power systems
for nigs and platforms since the earfiest days of offshore
o and gas production Qur gas turbines and compressors
operate in harsh conditions and remote locations on
behalf of masor ol companies For example, our industnal
RB211, Avon and Trent urits are now employed on 60
major pipetines around the world New discoveries and
the assaciated distribution of their output are creating
strong demand for our preducts and services

The power generatton market continues to be restrained
by weak demand for electricity in our traditional markets
However, we have secured sigrificant new orders in
emerging economies mncluding India and Venezuela and
we see good opportunities for long-terrn growth for both
our gas turbine and reciprocating engine portfalio Itis
clear that future developments in this sector are [ikely to
be driven by the need for affordable, efficient, distnbuted
mult-fuel systems Our gas turbine and reciprocating
engine porifolio provides a good basis to address

these markets

In addition, over the past decade, the Group has invested
in new technologies such as tidal power and fuel cells
During 2010, we conducted a full scale test of a tdal
power turbine, anchored on the sea bed off the coast of
Scotland This has generated 500kw at full power and has
been successfully inked into the natrenal gnd

We continue to expand our activities in avil nuclear
power generation Durnng 2010, we secured contracts to
provide nuclear safety systems i France and in China and
have developed supply relationships with reactor vendors
and utilities both in the UK and globally These areas of
investment enable us to address the particular
requirements of low or zero carbon power generation
with solutions that build on our core capabilities

Strength through teamwork

The successful development of our portfolio depends
crncally on world-class people and teamwork The
global nature of our business means that our people
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must work effectively across time zones, geographies
and cultures Of the 38,900 men ang women we employ,
45 per cent are now based outside the UK, This makes
communications and shared values criucal

This year we built on the success of our annual strategy
storyboard with a televised presentation to most of the
senior managers In the Group The managers who
attended this event have been responsible for presenting
the storyboard to every employee of the Group This has
enabled people at all levels and 1n every location in the
organisation to understand our objectives and to feed
back therr own thoughts

We believe that effective recrutment and continucus
training are critcal to our success This year, we recruited
220 apprentices and over 300 graduates from 25
countries We devote sigruficant resource 1o the
continuous development and traimning of our people
Over the past five years the Group has committed

£150 million to this area alone Our UK Apprenticeship
scheme has been awarded Beacon Status by the Office
for Standards in Education (Ofsted) and we have schemes
of similar quality globally

We benefit from the diversity that our global presence
brings, recognising that a clear understanding of
developing customer requirements, world-class
technology and exceptional teamwaork are the keys

to our future success

Prospects

The long-term disciplined application of our strategy
has created a broad portfolc of products, services and
capabilities that ensures a wide range of options for
future growth The expected doubling of revenue over
the next decade 15 underpinned by a record order book,
which gives good visibility of the future, and a strang
balance sheet which enables us to invest in the people,
technology and capability that will enhance
competitiveness

Ins the short term we expect demand in some markets

1o remain subdued However, we have access 10 the faster
growing global markets and our large installed base
allows us 1o benefit from an increasing emphasis on

the services we can provide to our customers
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Last Septemkber, when | announced my intention to retirg,
t saud there were three considerations that made me
comfortable with my deciston {know Rolls-Royce s 10 a
strong position with more choices than we have had in
the past, we have a world-class team, and { am confident
in the Board's appointment of John Rishton as my
successor He will e an outstanding Chief Executive

Rolls-Royce has been my working life for 27 years
Wherever | have gone in the world, | have always been
proud to be Chief Executive of this Company It has

been an extraordinary privilege 1o work with 50

many outstanding people and to contribute to the
development of a business that has been at the forefront
of engineering and technology for over 100 years | wish
Rolls-Royce, its employees and its shareholders
continued success

Slr John Rose
Chief Executive
February 9, 2011




MARKET OUTLOOK

The Group operates in four long-term global
markets — civit and defence aerospace, marine
and energy These markets create a total
opportunity worth in excess of USS2 trillion
over the next 20 years and

The size of these markets 1s generally related to world Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) growth, or in the case of the defence markets, globat
security and the scale of defence budgets

CIVIL AEROSPACE

The Group produces a 20-year global market cutlook, which covers
passenger and cargo Jets, corporate and regional arcraft We predict that,
over the next 20 years 137,000 engines, worth over US$800 billion, will
be required for more than 63,000 commercial arcraft and business jets
The forecast predicts faster growth rates for long-haul markets and those
markets to, from and within Asia These markets will continue to benefit
from more hiberal arr service agreements, which boost demand Factors

DEFENCE AEROSPACE

The Group forecasts that demand for miltary engines will be worth
US$160 bullion over the next 20 years This outlook was moderated,
shghtly based on US and European budget pressures The largest single
market 13 expected 1o be the US, followed by Europe and the Far East
Within Asia, demand will be dominated by Japan, South Karea and Indta
Trends are driven by the scale of defence budgets and geopolitical
developments arcund the world As in the Group's other business

MARINE

The Group forecasts a demand for manine power and propulsion systems
valued at US$215 billion over the next 20 years Demand wili be greatest
in the commercial sector, where the shipping of raw maternals, finished
goods and people, n addmon to oll and gas exploration and production
acuvity, play crucial reles in the world economy These acuvities require
large fieets of specialised and increasingly sophisticated ships, which have
to be continually renewed and supported 1o remain operationally efficient

ENERGY

The International Energy Agency has forecast that over the next 20 years,
the worldwide demand for oil will grow by more than 18 per cent, for
gas by 44 per cent and for energy by more than 30 per cent To sausfy
this demand, there will be a growing requirement for aero-dervative

gas turbines 1n various applications
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have very high barmers to entry,
offer the opportunity for organic growth,

feature extraordinarly long programme lives, usually measured
in decades,

can only be addressed through significant investments in technology,
infrastructure and capability, and

create a significant opportunity for extended customer relationships
with revenues from aftermarket services similar in size to oniginal
equipment revenues

affecting demand include GDP growth, arcraft productivity, operating
costs, environmental 1ssues and the number of arrcraft retirements While
the market can be temporarly disrupted by external events, such as war,
acts of terrorism, or economic downturns, it has, 1n the past, always
returned to its long-term growth trend In addition 1o the demand for
engines, the Group forecasts a market opportunity worth US$600 billon
for the proviston of product-related aftermarket services

sectors, programme lives are long and therg s a significant opportunity
10 support equiprment with aftermarket services, estimated at

Us$270 bilhon over the same penod Cusiomers’ budget constraints
and ther need 1o increase the value they derive from theyr assets have
accelerated the move in this direction

Merchant and offshore markets are rarely at the same stage of the business
cycle, which helps to reduce overall volaulity Whilst naval markets are driven
by different considerations, customers are similarly seeking to get more from
ther budgets, leading to increasing demand for integrated systems and
through-ife support arrangements As in the Group's other markets, marine
aftermarket services are expected to generate significant opportunities, with
demand forecasted at US$125 billion over the next 20 years

The Group's 20-year forecast values the total aero-dernvative gas turbine
sales in the ol and gas and power generation sectors at more than
USS70 billion Over this penod, demand for assoctated aftermarket
services 1s expected to be around US$50 billion While the il and gas
market s large and growing, demand for aero-derivative gas turbines
In the power generation segmeant 1s twice that of oil and gas

Note Along term convers:on rate has been used where necessary n
order 1o present all Agures m US$
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OUR CONSISTENT STRATEGY

QUR CONSISTENT STRATEGY IS
BASED ON FIVE KEY ELEMENTS

1

ADDRESS FOUR GLOBAL
MARKETS

We are a leading producer of mission
cnitical, integrated, power systems for
the cvil and defence aerospace, manne
and energy markets

Civil aerospace
Broadest engine range in the world

£4919m

Underlying revenue 2010

Defence aerospace
Europe’s biggest engine maker

£2,123m

Underlying revenue 2010

Marine
World-teading systems prowider
and integrator

£2,59Tm

Underlying revenue 2010

Energy

World leader in power for the oil and
gas sector and a growing power
generation presence

£1,233m

Undertying revenue 2010

UNDERPINNED BY CORE
CHARACTERISTICS
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2

INVEST INTECHNOLOGY
INFRASTRUCTURE AND CAPABILITY

Over the past five years, we have
invested £4 2 billkion in R&D We invest
substantially in employee development
and, in 2010, we invested £361 million
in capital projects

A strong record of investment in research
and development

We invest In world-class, cost-effecuve
technology in order to develop products
that add value for our customers, Improve
efficiency and reduce environmental tmpact

Investment in research and
development during 2010

£923m

Closeness to our customers
We recognise that our
customners determine our
strategy and organisation

3

DEVELOP A COMPETITIVE PORTFOLIO
OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We have 40 major engineenng
programmes and we are (nvolved n many
of the future projects n the markets we
serve These key projects will define the
power systems market for many years

In 2010, we conunued to bring new
advanced products to market, including
our new wave-piercing design of offshore
support vessel This vessel improves
efficiency of operation and safety at sea
for the crew

Domain knowledge

A deep understanding of our
customers and the way in
which our products and
services are used




4

GROW MARKET SHARE AND OUR
INSTALLED PRODUCT BASE

Across our Group, the installed base of
products In service 1s expected to generate
attractive returns over many decades

TheTrent 700 is the market leading engine
on the Airbus A330 The engine secured
US55 bullion of business in the second half
of 2010

Integrated systems
Integrating our products into
systems that deliver increased
value for our customers

Rolls-Royce pic Annual report 2010

Technological superiority
Gaining competiuve advaniage
through continual iInvestment in
technology

5

ADD VALUE FOR CUSTOMERS

THROUGH THE PROVISION OF
PRODUCT-RELATED SERVICES

We seek to add value for our customers
with aftermarket services that will
maamise the perforrmance and reliabhity
of our products

The increasing contribution from services
We have grown our service revenues ten

per cent compound over the past ten years
Services account for over 50 per cent of total
underlying revenue

Underlying services revenue 2010

£5,544m

Orgarsational capability

Operational excellence
Working constantly to meet and
exceed customer expectations

DELIVERING A 20-YEARTRACK
RECORD OF CONTINUED GROWTH

Organic growth

Qur broad product range and expanding
service provision have delivered

growth globally

Partnerships

We increasingly develop products with
nisk and revenue sharing partners and
through strategic long-term relanonships

Acquisition

Major acquisitions such as Allison, Vickers
and ODIM have enabled growth in

key sectors

Our growth during the
past 20 years has been
achieved largely
organically but also
through partnerships
and acquisitions

Brand

Recogrused globally, our brand
embaodies qualities that create
a commeon focus for all our
people worldwide

Attracting and retaining the best

people globally
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Board uses a range of financial and Key performance Indicators

Capital expenditure

non-financiat iIndicators to monitor Group Underlying revenue

Qrder book

and segmental performance in line with the Underlying profit before financing

Training and development

Cash flow

Employee engagement

strategy described on pages 06-07 These
Return on capital employed

Underlying revenue per employee

indicators are chosen to monitor both current
Net research and development
performance and the success of investments charge

that will sustain and enhance future Gross research and development

d
performance Key performance indicators are o

Net research and development
included in the approprate sections of the

expenditure as a proportion of
business review and are as follows underlying revenue

UNDERLYING REVENUE £10,866m

Monitoring of revenues provides a measure of business growth
Underlying revenues are used in order to eliminate the effect of the
decision not to adopt hedge accounting and to provide a clearer
year-on-year measure The Group measures foreign currency sales
at the actual exchange rate achieved as a result of settling foreign
exchange contracts from forward cover

UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE FINANCING  £1,010m

Underlying profit before financing 1s presented on a basis that shows

the economic substance of the Group's hedging strategies in respect

of the transactional exchange rate and commadity price movements

In partzcular (a) revenues and costs denominated in US dollars and euros
are presented on the basis of the exchange rates achieved during the year,
(b) similar adjustments are made in respect of commodity dernvatives, and
(c) consequential adjustrments are made 1o reflect the impact of exchange
rates on trading assets and hatxlities and long-term contractson a
consistent basis The dervation of underlying profit before financing 1s
shown in note 2 on page 64 of the consolidated financial statements

CASHFLOW £325m

In a business requirng significant investment, the Board monitors cash
flow to ensure that profitability 15 converted into cash generation, both
for future investment and as a reward for shareholders The Group
measures cash flow as the movernent in net funds/debt dunng the
year, after taking into account the value of denvatives held to hedge the
value of balances denominated in foreign currencies The figure in 2007
includes a £500 mullion special contribution to the Group's UK pension
schemes, a5 part of the restructuring of these pension schemes
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Engine deliveries

Installed thrust — civil aerospace

Percentage of civil fleet under
management

Underlying services revenue

Emissions




RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED 17 5%

Return on capital employed 1s calculated as the after-tax underlying
profit, divided by the average net assets during the year, adjusted
for net cash, net post-reurement deficit and goodwill previously
written off It represents a measure of the return the Group 15
rmaking on Its INnvestments

NET RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CHARGE  £422m

Investment In research and development underpins all the elements
of the Group's strategy Programme expend iture 1s monnored in
conjunction with a gated review process on each programme and
progress 15 reviewed at key midestones

GROSS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXFENDITURE  £523m

The Group's research and development activities compiise both
self-funded and customer funded pregrammes Gross expenditure
measures total research and development activity and 1s an indicator
of the actions taken to enhance the Group's intellectual property

NET RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

AS A PROPORTION OF UNDERLYING REVENUE 4 7%

Research and development 1s measured as the self-funded expenditure
before both amounts capitalised in the year and amortisation of
previously capitalised balances The Group expects to spend
approximately five per cent of revenues on research and development
although this proportion will fluctuate annuatly depending on the stage
of development of current programmes This measure reflects the need
10 generate cureent returns as well as to invest for the future

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE £361m

To deliver on its commitments to customers, the Group Invests
significant amounts i its infrastructure All investments are subject to
rigarous review 1o ensure that they are consistent with forecast actvity
and will provide value for money Annual capital expenditure s
measuied as the cost of property, plant and equipment acquired
dunng the perod
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QRDER BOOK £59 2bn

The order book provides an indicator of future business It 1s measured
at constant exchange rates and list prices and includes both firm and
announced orders In civil aerospace, it 1s common for a customer to
take options for future orders in additon to firm orders placed Such
options are excluded from the order book In defence aerospace,
long-term programmes are often ordered for only one year ata ume
In such circumstances, even though there may be no alternative
engine choice available to the customer, only the contracted business
s included in the order book Only the first seven years' revenue of
long-term aftermarket contracts s included

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT £33m

£33 million investmentin 2010

Training 15 a core element of the Group's investment in 1ts
capability and 1s measured as the expenditure on the traring
and development of employees, customers and suppliers
Effectiveness is ensured by using a range of external and
internal sources and by gathering user feedback

UNDERLYING REVENUE PER EMPLOYEE £259,000

A measure of personnel productivity, this indicator measures
underlying revenue generated per employee on a three-year
rolling basis

ENGINE DELIVERIES 1,657

The Group's Installed engine base represents an opportunity to
generate future aftermarket business This 1s measured as the number
of Group products delivered during the year within each business
except for maring, as its products do not lend themselves to this
measuire due to their dwersity

Note Figures have been restated 10 include diesel engines
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EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 38,900

38,900 employees in 201Q

Regular surveys are undertaken 1o denufy and address
emerging Issues A full employee engagement survey IS
run every two years with smaller pulse-check surveys in
between Training and employee engagement surveys are
discussed further in the sustainability section of this review




INSTALLED THRUST - CIVIL AEROSPACE  382m Ibs

installed thrust is the indicatar of the amount of product in use by
our customers and therefore the scale of opportunity this presents
for our services business

PERCENTAGE OF CIVIL FLEET UNDER MANAGEMENT 70%

Long-term contracts are an important way of generating value for
customers The percentage of fleet under management gives a
measure of the proportion of the installed base where the future
aftermarket arrangements are agreed under long-term contracts

The correspandmng indicators for the cther segments are shown in
the respective sections of the business review of operations

UNDERLYING SERVICES REVENUE  £5,544m

Underlying services revenue shows the amount of business durning
the year that has been generated from the installed engine base
This 1s measured as the revenue derived from spare parts, overhaul
services and long-term service arrangements

EMISSIONS

Much of the research and development expenditure is focused on
reducing emissions of the Groug's products The Group measures
both the ermissions of its products and the emissions of its
manufacturnng aperations These measures are descnbed in detail in
the environmeni report, ‘Powering a better world, which 1s available
on the Group’s website at www rolis-royce comy/sustainability
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has established and implemented a sound risk management structure
throughout the business, that supports programme execution, informs decision making
and ultimately leads to better business performance

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

STRATEGIC

RISK

Environmental
impact of
products and
operations

Legislative
and regulatory
pressures

Slgnificant
external events

Competitive

pressures

Export controls

Government
spending

Global resource
capability

DESCRIPTION

The Group recogmises that ks products and
business operations have an impact on the
emwonment, paruculary in relation o cimaze
change Environmental performance 1s of great
IMpartance to customners and regulators,

Roils Royce 15 determuned to be part of the
solution to these enviranmental challenges

The Group operates tn a highly regulated
epvironment and ams to comply wath all
relevant statutes Increasing requirements

from domestic and international legistation
continue 1o be expenenced examples nglude
ant+ bribery, authonsation of chemicals and
substances and financial regulations, specificatly
relating to over the counter derivatives.

Events may occur externally to the business
that could undermine the basis of its operatonal
and financial forecasts Such events might
include terronsm, political change global
pandermic, natural disaster or continued and
deeper economic retrenchment

The markets in which the Group operates

are highty compettive and this competition

15 Increasing as a result of global economic
uncertanties The majonty of product
programmes are long term i nature and access
to key custorner platforms, most impartantly
Arbus and Boeing s critcal to success This
requires sustained investment in technology,
capability and infrastructure all creanng high
barniers 1o entry However these factors alone
do not protect the Group from compenution
ncluding prcing and techmical advances made
by compettors,

Rolls Royce designs and supplies a number of
products and serwices for the military Many
countnes In which the Group conducts 1ts
business have legistation controlling the export
of specihed goods and technology intended or
adaptable for military application

The Group conducts actvities as a result of
government nvestments, whether through
direct sales or support to technology and other
programmes Such spending could be expected
1o expenence continued pressure duning a ume
of global inancal uncertainty and budgetary
constrant n Europe and the US i parovcular

The Rolls-Royce posimen at the forefront of
technology and innovanon and its commitment
to detivering significant volumes of business to
1ts custorners demand that we mantain world
class capabilities in all Core resource groups,
particularly management. Derographic trends,
the UK imnigration cap and limited supply of
appropnately educated and skilled personnel

in science technology, engineenng and
mathemaugs subjects exacerbate this risk.
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POTENTIAL IMPACT

Faillure tc respond proactively to the
escalating environmental challenge
could result in 2 dilution of reputation,
and ulumatety loss of market share to
competitors. Product hife cycles may also
be shoriened with a consequent npact
an the business model

Non compliance with apphicable
legislation and regulations would expose
the Group te significant financial fines
and penalues and may have a damaging
effect on its reputation

Such events could lead to a prolonged
reducnion in demand for transportation,
and hence for a proporon of the Group’s
products and services There may also

be constraints on the Groups ability

1o conduct its business aperations, for
example, n the case of disruption to
business premises or motility of personnel

If the Rolls Royce products, services and
pricing do not remain competiive this
could result in the loss of market share
with attendant impact on long term
Rnancial performance

Non compliance with export controls
coulg impact both programme
performance and the Groups reputation
Qur ability to conduct business in certan
Junsdicoons could be revaked if we are
non-comphant

A degrease in governmental spending
could have an adverse effect on the
Groups future performance For example
asset usage and/or flying hours could
reduce acioss military fleets impacting
aftermarket revenues Reduction i
technology investment programrmes
could delay product development and
ntroduction

Fallure to grow the Groups resource
capabiity to the necassary levels whilst
mamtaining world-class qualty would
adversely impact delivery of customer
programmes, threaten our reputation
and sufle opporiunities for future
innovation and growth

MITIGATION

Significant mvestment in innovatve selutions and
enhancements for the aviation manne and energy markets
Research and development in low carbon technologies
such as nuclear power fuel cells and udal energy
Governance structure headed by the Environment Council
oversees Impravements in the envirenmental performance
of the Group.

Estabhishrment of a business-wide compliance structure
focusing on anu brbery and corruption legislauon
Enhanced pahCies ang traiming on Gifts and Hospitality
and Commercial Intermedhanes for all employees
Lobbying to inform and influence the content and
implementation of new legislation and regulations

A balanced business portfolio and diversity of global
operatons mitigate the impact of events in any one market
sector cr geographic terstory

A responsive and regularly exeraised team for the proacuve
rmanagement of external events ensures that disSrupuens to
the business and 1o customers’ operations, are minimised
See also IT security nsk.

Establishmens of long term customer relationships allows the
Group to differentiate its products and seraces and protect
margins in the face of cormpettive pressures

Steady focus on impravement 1n operational performance,
for example through the madernisation of facilies

Increased focus on managing the costs of operations

and products

Sustained nvestment in technology acquisition, and robust
protection of intellectual property (see also TT securty r1sk)

Exporis Commitiee ¢hawed by the Chief Operating Officer
directs strategy and policy on exports

Expart control managers embedded throughout the business
Export controls awareness training

Maintenanca of the capability to menitar and comply

with requirements

Development of a diversified pertfolio of products and
services 1o vasious markets and regions

Proaciive tobbying for research and technology funding
Focus on performance 1o achieve commitments under
current contracts

Significant investrent in resourcing and capability
infrastructuse notably in the transformation of the Human
Resources function

Comprehensive systems in place for the development of
individuals competencies and the objective assessment

of performance linked to reward

The Group lebbies on the implcations of the UK immigranon
cap whilst managing the situation under the interim
arangements announced in 2010




RISK

Counterparty
credit risk

Currency risk

Credit rating

Supply chaln
performance

Ethics

Programme
portfolio

1T security

Product
performance

DESCRIPTION

Rolls Royce works with vanous counterparties
mncluding financial institutsons, custamers,
JOINT venture partners and nsurers
Counterparty failure 1s recognised as a
prinaipal risk driven mainly by the economic
uncestainties and pressures in the current
EnvIronment

The Group 15 exposed to movements in
exchange rates for both foraign currency
transactions and the translazon of net

assets and income statements of foreign
subsid@nes The Group segards its INzerests In
overseas subsidiary companies as long term
investments The Group 15 exposed 10 a number
of foreign currencies, the most significant being
USD 1o GBP and USD 1o EUR,

As along term business, the Group attaches
sigRficant imMportance 1o Matntaming a
sound Investment grade credit rating which
it views as necessary for the business to
operate effectively

The Groups praducts and serwices are delivered
through the effective operanon of s faclities
and key capabihties, including (s supply chain
Suceess in strengthening cur market position
and our presence on a number of high profile
cral and defence aerospace programmes,
1ogether with a growing marine business
places increased demands on the performance
of the supply chain

There 15 an angang exposure to the prge of
base metals ansng from business operations

The Graup recogmises the benefits derved from
<onducting business in an ethical and secially
responsible manner This approach extends from
the sourcing of raw matenals and components
to the manufacture and delvery of praducts and
services in 2ll of its global lacauons and markets
It applies 10 the provision of a safe and healthy
place of work and investment in technologies

1o recuce the environmentat impact of our
products and operations.

The Group manages complex product
programmes with demanding technical and
volume requirements 3gainst stngent, and
sometimes fluctuating customer schedules
This requires co ordination of the engineering
function, manufactuning operations, the
external supply chasn and other partners.

The centinuing globalisation of the business
and advances in technology have resulted in
more data being transmmited internationally
posing an increased secunty nisk.

The Group strves to deliver world class
products that are safe and reliable focusing
attention on product design robust quahity
and processes, pre service matunty and

in senice management Safety 15 the Groups
highest prionty
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POTENTIAL IMPACT

Cash and profit margins could be
impacted in the short tesm, although
the Group has built a stiong balance
sheet to protect itself from the impact
of Indwdual defaults

Fluctuations in exchange rates to which
the Group s exposed could adversely
affect eperational results of the outcames
of financial transactions

Dawngrading of the Groups credit rating
would inhibit ats ability 10 secure funding,
hedge forward of promde vendor finanaing,
reducing and impactng cash profit,

and reputation

Significant supply chain disruption

and failure o delver parts on time or

to commuteed costs and quality would
underming the assumptions within
business cases, adversety Impacting
profit and cash Consequent damage 1o
reputauion could ko hinder our ability
to win future business

Shortcomings in the Groups business
conduct would resu’t n sigmificant
financial penaltes cisruprion to our
business and/or have a damaging effect
on our reputation

Failure to achieve programme goals would
have significant financial and reputational
mplicatons for the Group, ncluding the
nsk of impairment of the carrying value
ofthe Groups intangible assets and the
impact of potential liigation

hmpairment 15 disussed furtherin the
Finance Director s review on page 34

A breach of IT security may result in
controlled data or intellectual property
being lost, corrupted or accessed by non-
authonsed users Adverse impacts upon
operationat effectiveness comphance
waith legislation ar the reputauon of the
Group might anse

Derencrations in product safety coutd
significantly affect the Groups reputaton
Shortfalls in petformance at entry into
service or through Ife could lead to
penaltes or addiional costs in the
aftermarket, and would degrade the
business ¢ases upon which revenues

are forecast

MITIGATION

Established policy for managing counterparty credit nsk
Common framewoek 10 measure report and control exposures
0 counterparties across the Group using value at-nsk and

fair value techriques

Internal credit raung assigned to each counterparty assessed
with reference to publicly available credst information and
subject 1o regular review

Refer 1o the Finance Director s review on page 34 for addinenal
information

Hedging policy using a vanety of financial instruments, to
runimise the impacz of fluctuations in exchange rates on
future transactions and cash fiows

Translational exposures managed through the currency
matching of assets and lablities where applicable

Rusks rewiewed regularly and appropnate sk mitigation
performed where matenal mismatches anse

fefer to the Finance Director s review on page 34 for addinonal
information

The Group has developed a strong financial nsk profile
and contnues to mprove the business nsk profila

Refer 1o the Finance Director s review on page 34 for
addiwonal nformation

Investment i developing world class ranufactunng processes
n Asia, North Amenca and Europe

Well established business continuity managément process that
focuses on cnincal fachines activiies processes skilts and
supplers Sigruficant progress in dual sourcing 1n these areas
Increased focus on understanding and addressing sources of
nisk ansing 1n the external supply chain partcularly those
associated with financial nstatahiy

Comprehenstve programme of business interruption insurance
Palicies to hedge the prce of selected base metals.

Ethics Committee established to oversee and maintan the
highest ethical standards

Glebal Code of Business Ethics, in 18 languages, 1ssued to
all employees supported by a rainng and engagement
programme to iImprave awareness of the Groups values
Global tetephone and intranet channels are available for
employees to report in Lonfidence any concerns regarding
potentially unethical behaviours

See also Ervironmental impact of products and operations nsk

Continuous improvement of all processes and project
management controls to ensure both technical and business
objectives are achweved

All major programmes subject to approval and regular review
by the Board with particular focus on the nature and potental
impact of emerging nisks and the effective mitgation of
previously denufied threats

Continual upgrading of secunty equipment and software, and
deployment of a mult 1ayered protection system that includes
web gateway filtering firewalls and intruder detection
Additional specialist resources commitied

Active sharing of information through industry and
government forums

The Group operates, and will contmue to operate in a safety
first culture

Ongoing actions and actmties being drrven 10 tmprove
matunty at entry IN{o service

Continuing engineenng focus on improvements to product
reliatskty and service hves.
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CIVIL AEROSPACE

The civit aerospace business powers over 30 types
of commercial aircraft and has a strong position in
all sectors of the market widebody, narrowbody and
corporate and regional aircraft Over 13,000 engines
are currently in service with 650 airlines, freight
operators and lessors and 4,000 corporate operators
A Rolls-Royce powered aircraft takes off or lands
every 2 5 seconds

£4919m £392m

Undertying revenue 2010 Underlying profit 2010

Highlights

First run, on schedule, for Trent XWB

Trent 1000 accumulated more than 2,000 test flight hours
Trent 700 continues to fead on Arrbus A330

AE 3007A2 enters INto service

V2500 record production level

92 per cent of Trent engines under TotalCare®

Key financial data

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Underlying revenue £m 3907 4,038 4,502 4,481 4,919
_ e +15% +3%]  +11% 0% +10%
Underlying profit before 519 564 566 493 392
financng€m ___  _ H#14% +9%( 0% -13% -20%
Net assets £m 1,889 2,260 246 2,733 2,627
Qther key performance indicators
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Order book £bn 200 359 435 470 485
o XS] +80%| #21%|  4B%)  +3%
Engmne delveries 856 83 o87) B4l 846
Underlying service
tevenwesfm 23101 | 2534| _ 2726( 2626} 3,027
Underlying service
revenues % B 59 83 61 59 62
Percentage of fleet under
management 48 55 57 59 70
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DIRECTORS REPORT — REVIEW OF OPERATIONS CIVIL AERQSPACE (CONTINUED)

The arline industry has shown recovery in 2010, (after sigmificant losses
in 2008 and 2009) with above-average passenger and cargo traffic
grewth and a return to profit for many airlines Business jet fights also
increased, although not ta the levels before the downturn Large cabin
business aircraft deliveries, where Rolls-Royce has a strong position, have
been more resilient, driven by demand in Asia and Europe, although the
US market remains weak The small- and mid-size arrcraft sectors, which
are concentrated in the US market, continued to be subdued

Widebody

We made good progress with the fatest members of the Trent engine
famly, the Trent XWB and Trent 1000 The Trent XWB will power the
Alrbus A350 XW8 and ran for the first tme in June - fulfilling a schedule
commitment we made four years ago Seven engines will runin 2011
as part of a comprehensive test programme

The Trent 100G, which powers the Boeing 787 Dreamliner, has
accumulated more than 2,000 hours of test fight ume on four aircraft
The engine won several new orders in 2010, taking the total on order
to nearly 550 The aircraft 1s now expected 1o enter service in the third
quarter of 2011

The business continues to work closely with both large aircraft
manufacturers, Arrbus and Boeing, to support these programmes

Of the Trent engines already in service, the Trent 700 confirmed its
market feading position on the Arbus A330 1t has won more than

90 per cent of orders announced 1n 2010 and move than 70 per centin
the past five years Orders were particularly strong in the second half of
2010, with US55 billion of business announced since the start of July

Rolls-Royce continued 1o enjoy success In growth markets in China,
Arr China, China Eastern and Cathay Pacific selected Trent XWB and
Trent 700 engines In South East Asia, Thai Airways and Garuda ordered
Trent 700s, and 1n the Middle East, Emirates and Egyptar extended
TotalCare service agreements and Tunisar became a new member

of the Trent fammily, ordering Trent 700s

ATrent 900 engine suffered a significant failure on a Qantas Airbus A380
The cause of this failure, which was specific to the Trent 900 and related
to a component In the turbine area, was quickly established and
addressed The A380 fleet has returned to normal operation

Narrowbody

In the narrowbody market the V2500 engme, produced by International
Aero Engines (IAE) in which Rolls-Royce 1s a major partner, delivered

371 engines in 2010, s highest ever production level 1AE gamned
significant comtract awards from Sichuan Airhnes, Vietnam Airhnes, TAM
Aurlines, BOC Airlines and Ching Southern There are now more than
4,500 V2500 engines flying with more than 190 customers worldwide
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Corporate and reglional

In the small- and medium-size engine market the BR725 remains
on schedule for entry into service on the Gulfstrearm G650 11 2012,
following an exemplary flight and engine test programme The first
Embraer Legacy 650 large executive jet, powered by the new
Ro'ls-Royce AE 3007A2 engine, was delivered to a Middle East
customer in December

Services

Revenues from TotalCare long-term support agreements remained
resihent in 2010 The proportion of Trent engines In service with
TotalCare reached more than 90 per cent, while time and matenals
actvity showed some recovery in the second half of the year Overall
reliabiity of the Rolls-Royce engine fleet conttnued to improve with
Trent engines achieving on average one mitlhion hours between in-flight
shut downs, a rate 20 umes better than that required by the regulators
for approval of Extended Range Twin Operations

Future

The business cantinues to plan for the future, with new two-shaft

and three-shaft engines The Advance2 and Advance3 technology
programmes are being driven to support the potenuial for new engine
requirements in the latter part of the decade The business is also
continuing 1ts research into open rotor technology, which we believe
could provide a step change 1in engine perfarmance

Construction work at the Seletar large engine assembly complex in
Singapore 15 well advanced and is scheduled to open in 2012 Work at
the new Crosspointe facility in Virginig, US, 1s also proceeding to plan

While economi¢ prospects reman uncertain in many countries for 2011,
traffic growth 1s iImproving and we expect 10 see It return 1o 1ts historic
average of five per cent per annum

Cil prices have remained generaily high, encouraging arrlines to retire
older arrcraft during the economic downturn The Rolls-Royce powered
flaet 15 relatively young and as a result, more fuef efficient We are
benefiting from the upturn as hours flown under TotalCare agreements
continue to grow This underlines the value of our balanced services and
products business model
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DEFENCE AEROSPACE

Rolls-Royce 1s the world's second largest provider
of defence aero-engine products and services, with
18,000 engines In service for 160 customers in 103
countries Our engines power aircraft in all sectors
transport, combat, reconnaissance, training,
helicopters and unmanned aerial vehicles

£309m

Underlying profit 2010

£2123m

Undertying revenue 2010

Highlights

TP400 engine approaching 3,000 test flying hours
F-358 achieved first verucal landing

Adour engine order worth £200 millien from India
Service business worth £15 bilon secured

Key finanaial data

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Underlying revenue £m 1,601 1,673 1,686 2,010 2,122
e F13%] 6| H1%] +19%)  +6%
Underlying profit before 193 199 223 253 309
financing £m —_— ATH) 3% 1% +13%|  +22%
Net assets £m (83} (247) (228) (329) {569)
Other key performance indicators
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Qrder beok £bn 32 44 55 65 65
3%) +38% | +25%| +18% 0%
_Engine deliveries 514 435 517 682 710
Underlying service
Jevenuesfm 853 &7 947y 1046] 1,103
Underlying service
revenues % 53 52 .56 52 52
Percentage of fleet under
management 11 11 12 16 18
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DIRECTORS REPORT - REVIEW OF OPERATIONS DEFENCE AERQSPACE (CONTINUED)

There continues to be pressure on defence spending in our key markets
in Europe and the US However, cur broad preduct portfolio and strong
service and support position on many of the new and established
defence aircraft programmes have continued to provide protection
against the changes 1n defence spending by these important customers

We stll see growth opportunities in these markets and, in addition, we
are well positioned 1o secure growth from emerging economies in Asia,
the Middle East and South Armerica

Transport

Rolls-Royce consolidated 1ts position as a world leader in the transport
market as our AE 2100 engine for the Lockheed Martin C-130J transport
arrcraft continued to register arders with existing customers, such as the
US Arr Force, while the global fleet expanded with the Indian Air Force
taking delvery of its first arrcraft

The Airbus A400M military transport aircraft enjoyed a year of fight test
success with 1ts TP400 engines achieving more than 3,000 flying hours
and completing the final bench test requirements, thereby clearing the
path to certification

In 2011, we expect to begin flight tesung wath the US Arr Force for the
certification of the 756 engine enhancement kit for the C-130 This will
provide significant fuel savings, a substantial tmprovement to engine
relability and improved hot day/high-altitude performance over the
existing engine fleet

Combat

In the combat sector our twin contributions to the Lockheed Martin
F-35 programme continue to make significant progress in the test phase
The umique short take-off and vertical landing (STOVL) Rolls-Royce
LiftSystem® powered the F-358 variant aircraft to its first vertical landing
in March 2040 1115 now ready for Intial Service Release in advance of
the first customer deliveries 1o the US Marine Corps, scheduled for 2011

The F136 engine programme for the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter has
continued to illustrate the benefits of s advanced design and
technotogies, which are uniquely tailored for the requirements of the
arcraft Six production-standard 7136 engines have been tested during
2010 and the programme 1s making excellent progress on the path

1 first flight
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Trainers
In India, the Governmenit placed an order for a second tranche of
Adour-powered Hawk Advanced Jet Trainers, worth up to £200 mullion

Helicopters

In the helicopter market we were awarded a mulu-million dollar contract
by the US Army to design and develop a dual-channel, full authonty,
digrtal engine control {FADEC) for the M250-powered OH-58 Kiowa
Warrnor helicopter We also recewved the US Army Kiowa Warrior Supplier
Excellence Award

In addition, the LHTEC CT5800 engine, which powered three first flights
In 2009, achieved the milestone of 50,000 n-service flying heours

Services

The success of our services business continued in 2010, attracting major
contracts worth around £15 billion Among these was an extension of
the long-term suppori for the RB199 engines powering the UK's Tornado
fleet, and MissionCare™ contracts to provide avallability-based engine
support for V-22 Osprey transport aircraft and the C-130J in service with
the US The US Navy again renewed its support agreement for Adour
F405 engines in the T-45 Goshawk trainer The Canadian Awr Force's

AE 2100 engines are now also part of the MissionCare fleet

Future

We continue to make good progress on the US Air Force Adaptive
versatile Engine Technology (ADVENT) demonstrator programme [tis
designed to reduce fuel consumption significantly, enabling extended
mission ranges and loiter times In December, we completed the fan g
tests and work continues in preparation for the core and engine
demonstrator phases of the programme

Our Unmanned Arr Systems portfolio was further increased by the roll
out of the BAE Systerms Tararus technology demonstrator powered by the
Adour engine We conunue to invest in performance improvements of
established fleets such as the Northrop Grumman Global Hawk which is
powered by our AE 3007

Despite the budget cuts in traditional geographical markets, the defence
business has the opporiunity to compete in a global market potenuiaily
worth around US$430 bilkon over the next 20 years Many of our
customer requirements for the next ten years are already ¢ontracted

and there are key export opportunities for programmes across all

market sectors
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MARINE

Rolls-Royce has a world-leading range of capabilities
In the marine market, encompassing the design,
supply and support of power and propulsion
systems We are leaders in the integration of
technologically complex, mission critical systems
for offshore ol and gas, merchant and naval vessels
3
g
—13
£2,591m £332m
Underlying revenue 2010 Underlying profit 2010
Highlights
Strong profit growth despite chailenging market environment
ODIM acquired to extend deepwater oil and gas capabilities
First order secured for revolutionary wave-piercing UT Design vessel
. Warld's largest gas-powered ferry commissioned -
g using Bergen engines
g US Navy order for ten MT30-powered Littoral Combat Ships
§ Global service capabilities extended
Key financial data
2006 2007 2008 2000 2010
Underlying revenue £m 1,299 1,548 2,204 2,589 2,591
— e e FIB% ] +19%) 4420 +17%|  +0%
Underlying profit before 101 113 183 263 332
financing £m H13% +12% +62% +44% +26%
@ Net assets £m 543 508 453 661 758
E’ Other key performance indicators
% 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
E Order ook £bn 24 47 52 35 3.0
S L] +o6%|  +11%| 3% -16%
—= Underlying service
revenues tm LoLJer o sas) N2 78S 872
Underlying service
revenues % 37 35 32 30 34
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PIRECTORS' REPORT - REVIEW QF QPERATIONS MARINE (CONTINUED)

Rolls-Royce has more than 2,500 marine customers and has equipment
instalted on over 30,000 vessels worldwide, including those of 70 navies

The manine business had another strong year, despite ingenng
macroeconomic uncertainty and a sluggish recovery in new
shipbuilding activity Service opportunities continued to INCrease as a
result both of the large number of vessels incorporating Rolls-Royce
equipment enterning the market in recent years, and our expanding
services network

Revenues proved to be resilient in 2010 despite a slowdown in original
equipment orders Growth was driven by our aftermarket services and
ongoing suiccess in the offshore market As a result, marine profit has
increased by 26 per centin 2010

Offshore

The design of offshore vessels and the high-technology equipment they
employ, 1s central to our business today, and we continued our strong
performance In this sector This was largely based on the success of our
specialist UT Design vessels and ability to integrate sophisticated
systems into complex ships The latter part of 2010 saw a sight rebound
in orders for highly specialised offshore vessels, highlighted by the

first order for the innovative UT 790 wave-piercing series This new
design impraves stability and crew safety, while mimimising
environmental impact

Duning 2010, we completed the acquisition of ODIM The advanced
automated handling solutions ODIM brings to our marine business
has further extended our capabylities in the range of vessels and
equipmeni we supply to support ol and gas customers in areas such
as se1smic surveys, deepwater installation, well intervention and ather
subsea operations

As the ail and gas industry continues to explore ever deeper waters,
the capabilities that the business now has in these highly-skilled areas
will mean that we continue to be a strong partner for our offshore
exploration and production customers

Naval

Qur naval business had a strong year, with significant activity in the

UK, the US and South Korea In early 2011, we received an order from
Lockheed Martin for the provision of MT30s, the world’s most powerful
gas turbing, together with Kamewa waterjets, to power a further ten

US Navy Littoral Combat Ships This is the largest surface fleet order ever
achieved by Rolls-Royce We continued to deliver power and propulsion
equipment for the UK's new Queen Elizabeth class aircraft carners
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Merchant

We investin technology that addresses the need for more efficient
marine power and propulsion sysiems This s pnmarly through the
reduction of exhaust gas emissions and improvernents in ship design
QOur Bergen gas engines already surpass International Manume
Organization (IMO) limts for NOx emissions, and several arders for
these cleaner engines were secured for specialist coastal vessels and
fernies in 2010

We believe that our strong focus on environment and safety technology
will be increasingly attracuive to customers, resulting in new business
opportnites in the merchant and specialist vessel sector

Services

Our services revenues grew by 11 per cent in 2010, now representing
34 per cent of total marine revenue, and we have continued to develop
both capacity and capability to realise the significant opportunity that
our increasing installed base represents

Our global pool of service engineers increased by 20 per cent during the
year and we have further extended our service centre network with four
facilities across Europe and Africa being expanded or opened

We have enhanced our range of equipment upgrades and successfully
introduced an innovative underwater repair service that reduces vessel
downtime and increases our ability to support customers operating in
remote locations in addition, we are continuing to develop equipment
health monitoring capabilities, leveraging proven experuse in other
Group sectors

Future
Qur strong profit performance in 2010 was a result of delivery of existing
orders combined with continued growth in service related activity

Although new orders in equipment reduced in 2010, there was some
recovery in the second half of the year This, combined with anticipated
further growth in services, provides us with good visibility of revenues
N 2011
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ENERGY

The energy business supphes gas turbines,
compressors and diesel power units to customers
around the world The business 1s a world leader in
the supply of power for onshore and offshore oil
and gas applications Our developing cvil nuclear
capability has further strengthened our position

In the power generation market

£1,233m £27m

Underlying revenue 2010 Underlying profit 2010

Highlights

Eight industrial Trent units sold

Avon 200 upgrade now sold to over 80 customers i
57 Bergen diesel engines sold for land-based power applications
20 nuclear instrumentation and control systems for China

Key financial data

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Underlying revenue £m 546 558 755 1,028 1,233
. +2%| 2% +35%| _ +36%|  +20%
Underlying profit before (18) 5 2) 24 27
Mﬁnancmg £m -1900%{ +128% -140% | -+1300% +13%
Net assets £m 355 346 377 542 410
Other key performance indicators
2006 207 2008 2009 2010
QOrder book £bn 05 09 13 13 12
. 7~ ) +80% +44% 0% -8%
_Engine delivenes 87y 78 106 a7 a5
Underlying service
_revenues £m 251 289 370 470 542
Underlying service
revenues % 46 52 49| 46 44
Percentage of fleet under
management 6 7 9 10 10
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The energy business delivered a strong performance in 2010 with
underlying revenue of £1 2 billion, an increase of 20 per cent over 2009,
and profit growth of 13 per cent as the business delivered a strong
second half recovery to offset the £26 million charge taken in the first
half of the year related to the industnial Trent engine During 2010, the
land-based diesel power business was integrated into energy, INcreastng
revenue by £140 million

Ol prices continued to strengthen guring the year and, as a result, bid
actvity Increased in the ol and gas sector, although it 1s also the case
that a number of potential projects were delayed The tradittonal power
generation market for the Trent continues to be depressed by the low
demand far electricity in developed countries However, the business
has been successful in securing new unit orders for both the Trent gas
turbine and Bergen reciprocating engines in countries where significant
power shortfalls exist, with major orders receved from Bangladesh, Indha,
and Venezuela

Orders for land-based diesel and gas engine power generation
applications tnipled i 2010 when compared 1o the preceding two years

A packaging partnership for the industnial Trent was agreed with STX
In South Korea, further broadening terntonal coverage

Services

Demand for aftermarket products and services again grew strongly with
another record year delivering revenue of £542 million, an increase of

15 per cent over 2009 Including the land-based diesel units there are
now a total of 662 units, or 33 per cent of the fleet under long-term
service agreemenis Operators continue 1o benefit from product
upgrades that incorporate the latest technology, including the Avon 200
upgrade, which was intreduced in 2006 and has now been delivered to
more than 24 customers

Developments

Investment in low carbon technology products continued with the
ongoing development of fuel cell technology In tidal generation the
500kW demonstration unit at the European Marine Energy Centre in the
Orkney Islands successfully achieved its technical milestones, generating
In excess of SOMWHh in the process and earning a Renewable Cffset
Credit under the UK Government's tarff regime Plans are now underway
to build a 1MW unit that will provide the basis for a commercially
avallable product
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Nuclear

Duning 2010, we continued to progress plans for a UK nuclear
manufacturing base and announced the opening of two new
nuclear-specific Unversity Technology Centres (UTCs), located at
Impenal College London and the Unwversity of Manchester Rolls-Royce
15 also a lead partner in the UK Government's Nuclear Advanced
Manufacturing Research Centre (NAMRC) facility, which 1s due to open
n September 2011

The business further extended 1ts nuclear manufacturing skills base
through the integration of Canada-based ODIM Numet, specialising
in engineening, manufactuning and through-hfe support of nuclear
1sland systems

In India, a Memorandum of Understanding was signed with Larsen &
Toubro Lid for a collaborative approach to address new nuclear build
markets both in {ndia and internationally At the beginning of 2011,
Rolls-Royce signed an agreement to collaborate with Nuclear Power
Delivery UK consortium an its plans to deploy the Westinghouse nuclear
reactor In the UK

The nuclear instrumentation and control business performed well In
2010, establishing a solid platform fer global growth across Central
and Eastern Europe, China and Indta 1t 15 also delivening 20 safety
instrumentation and control systems for eight new plants in China

Future

Tradionally a strong od price has resulted in increased business for
onginal eguipment in the ol and gas sector We would therefore expect
the market to continue 1o strengthen for products and services if the oil
price remains relatively bigh In power generation we now have a broad
range of systems to offer and this puts us tn a position of strength 1o
take advantage of any market upturn We will also continue tc explore
OpPROFtUNItIEs IN emerging economes
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ENGINEERING AND TECHNOLOGY

In 2010, Rolls-Royce invested a total of £923 million
In gross research and development, of which
£506 million was funded from Group resources

Research and development are fundamental to our
future success, providing technologies and intellectual
property that allow us to compete on a global basis in
highly competitive markets

£923m

Gross research and development 2010

Highlights

Successful ng demonstrator for the ADVENT programme
Certficavon of the RR300-powered Robinson helicopter

First test of the Trent XWB

The AE 3007A2-powered Legacy 650 achieved entry into service
LiftSystem™ on the F35 Lightning Il completed a flawless first hover
The udal stream generator ran to full power {500kW)

Key performance indicators

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Gross research and

development expenditure fm 747|  824|  885|  Bo4| 923
Net research and

development expenditure £m 395 4541 490 471 = 506
Net research and
_development charge fm_ 370 381 403 3791 422
Net research and development

expenditure % of

underlying revenue 54 58 54 47 47
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The Group's engineering and technology activities are undertaken
by close to 10,000 product, engineering and technology specialists
covering more than 40 mejor programmes The actvity is global with
main engineering centres located in the UK, US, Germany, the Nordic
countnies, Singapore and India

Research

Our advanced research is supported through our worldwide netwaork

of 28 Rolls-Royce University Technology Centres, working across a range
of specialist subject areas such as matenals, noise, vibration and
combustion Two new centres for nuclear technclogy at Impenal College
London and at the University of Manchester were added during the year

During 2010, we strengthened our new Advanced Technology Centre
(ATC) In Singapore which 1s developing manufacturing and electrical
systems and high-power computing capabilities Work began on the
new, dedicated home for the ATC as part of the Seletar development
We opened our new Mechanical Test Operations Centre in Dahlew 1z,
Germany, dunng the year This centre provides mechanical testing
capability for all areas of the Group Building on the success of our
membership of the Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre (AMRC),
we continue 1o increase our focus on advanced manufacturing In the
UK, we opened the Advanced Fabrication Research Centre at
Strathclyde, Scotland, and the Nuclear Advanced Manufacturing
Research Centre project was launched We are also establishing the
Commonwealth Centre for Advanced Manufacturing (CCAM) at the
Crosspointe complex in the Commonwealth of Virginia, USA

In 2010, we established the Manufacturing Technology Centre (MTC) in
Coventry, UK MTC will be the largest in the network of AMRCs when 1t
opens in 2011 Technology programmes in the areas of kigh integrity
Joining, intelligent automaton, advanced fixturing and net shape
powder manufacture have already been taunched through MTC
partnerships wath founder members Rolls-Royce, Airbus and Aero
Engine Controls

Environmental performance

Further improving the environmental performance of our products and
operations 1s a key driver for research and development in Rolls-Royce
We completed the first build of the Environmaentally Friendly Engine,
and the second build of our mud-size technology demonstrator engine,
E3E, was tested successfully in Germany The E3E, two-shaft core
demonstrated, amongst other successes, critical operability throughout
the flight envelope up to 38,000, for the novel lean-burn combustor

The European STREAMUNE programme led by Rolls-Royce was launched
1n 2010 The project includes 22 partners in eight countries and focuses on
demaonstrating radical new marnne propulsion concepts, amed at
deiivering increases in efficiency of at least 15 per cent We achieved
notable engineering successes in each of our key business sectors in 2010
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Civil aerospace

In the civil aergspace business, the first Trent XWB engme went to test
on schedule in june, running to 100,000Ibs of thrust later in the year
Flight testing of the BR725 for the new Gulfstream G650 progressed well
and has now achieved 1,000 hours The Trent 1000 flight test programme
for the Boeing 787 continued, although Boeing announced in early 2011
that the entry Into service for the ancraft would be further defayed until
later in 2011

2010 also brought a number of challenges to the civil aerospace
business The erupuon of a volcano in lceland in Aprtt 2010 resulted in
signihicant disruption to the aviation industry Our engineering team
took a leading role and worked In a systematic way to assist the arrlines
and industry regulators on this 1ssue Towards the end of 2010, a

Trent 900 suffered a high-profile failure on a Qantas Arbus A380, which
inivated a stgnificant and urgent response from the engineering team
In order to return 1o normal operations

Marine

In 2010, the marine business acquired CDIM and we have successfully
integrated the engineers of this business into the Rolls-Royce engineering
community ODIM’s people have a wealth of skills and technological
knowledge We anticipate the acquisiion will enhance our offshore
capabiity significantly Marine sold the first offshore vessel with a
wave-piercing design (UT 754 WP) for delivery in 2012 and the Dynamic
Positioning Release 3 (OP3) successfully passed concept design review

Defence aerospace

In defence aerospace, the STOVL variant of the Lockheed Martin F-35
Lightning Il, equipped with the Rolls-Royce LiftSystem®, successfully
completed a flawless first hover and vertical landing in March 2010

The pace of the F136 engine development programme accelerated
significantly during 2010 with six new test engines delivered during the
year Approxirnately 900 test hours were completed according to plan
for the F136 programme 1n 2010 The programme also continued its
successful history of meeting contractual milestones with the first STOVL
propulsion system delivered to test, on time

LibertyWorks® in Indianapclis continues to perform well on the ADVENT
demonstrator programme, ng testing demonstrated fan performance
as expected and with a favourable stability margin Work continues

in preparation for the core and engine demonstrator phases of

the programme

{n 2010, Robinsan Helicopter obtained FAA certification for the
RR300-powered RG6 helicopter and commenced customer deliveries

Energy

We continue to develop our business activittes in the ¢ivil nuclear market
and also continued with further investment In nuclear engineers and

in infrastructure

Our first tida! stream generator was deployed offshore of the Orkrey
Islands. A major milestone was reached on November 10, 2010 when the
turbine generated 500kW at ful! power for the first ime at the test ste
The twirbine 15 now being operated unrestricted with several periods of
fully automatic 24-hour operation and has achueved all requirements to
gan a renewable obligation certificate
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DIRECTORS' REPORT = REVIEW OF OPERATIONS [CONTINUED)

OPERATIONS

We continue to invest in operational capability to
enable the long-term growth plans of the Group
to be executed

Qur strong positions In growing markets,
represented by a record order book, together with
Increasing services activity, place a demand on us
to deliver world-class operational excellence from
modern and efficient facilites

£36Tm

Capital expenditure

Highlights

Seletar and Crosspointe facilitres on schedule

Simple and scalable processes being embedded globally
Expansion of repair and overhaul capability in Asia
Further mvestment in IT completed across the Group
Supporting new advanced manufactunng centres

Key performance indicators

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Capital expenditure £m ) 303 304 283 291 361
Underlying revenue per

employee* £000 182 194 211 233 259

* Calculated on a three-year rolling basts
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DIRECTORS REPORT - REVIEW OF OPERATIONS OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

There has been significant uncertainty in the economic environment
durning the last two years and our supply chain has performed well
throughout this volatle period, with an increasing emphasis on
productity, flexibility and execution The 2010 results reflect thus
performance through a marginal reduction ininventory and progress
in productivity, reflected by an improvement in revenue per employee

Our global operational network 1s a highly integrated actvity including
our own facilities, partners and other external supplers feeding the gas
turbine applications in all four businesses In addition, we are managing
substanual global supply chains to support our growting range of marnne
and nuclear actvities

Delivering excellence

During 2010, we have continued to focus on operational excellence
with our programme of Investments to improve current productivity
and support the inevitable growth embedded in the order book

We work in partnership with our external partners and suppliers to
reduce waste, mprove designs and introduce better manufactuning
methods for new and existing products Our achievernents have helped
offset inflationary pressures in 2010, however, there remains more 1o do
Creating simple, scalable processes and a culture of ‘ight first ime”are
key to operational excellence and will help achieve cost reductions in
every aspect of our operations

The ongoing drive to reduce inventory provided further benefits in 2010
We are estabhshing systematic changes that can transform working
caprtal management and, In ime, release cash

Investing for growth

2009 proved to be a year of firsts with an unprecedented number of
new programmes reaching first flight or launch In 2010, the work to
support these programmes progressed well In June 2010, the first
Trent XW8 engine ran for the first ime, In Ine with the plans we set out
four years ago Flight test work progressed on the new Trent 1000 for
the Boeing 787 and the TP400 for the Airbus A400M transport arrcraft
I marine, we introduced a new wave-piercing design of offshore
support vessel, and in energy we launched the upgraded industrial
RB211, the -H63
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Our success at winning business in the wide-bodied arcraft market
means we expect to more than double the number of Trent engines
being delivered by the middle of this decade To manage this change in
volume, investment in new faciliues, tooling and capability continued
during 2010 Building work has progressed as planned on the
Crossponte facility in Virginia, US, and at Seletar Aerospace Park in
Singapore With the external building work broadly complete, both

are on target to be in cperation by 2011 and 2012 respectively

We opened the new Mechanical Test Cperations Centre at Dahlewitz,
Germany, and a new facility 1o support the F-35 LiftFan™ assembly in
Indianapolis, US We alsc expanded the cvil aerospace repair and
overhaul joint venture, Singapore Aero Engine Services Limited,
Increasing capacity to 250 large engines per year

In the UK, the new disc manufacturing plant in Sunderland 1s
progressing to plan and, in addition, we are supportirig the
development of four advanced manufacturing research centres

Two similar centres are being developed cutside the UK All of these
will help impreve manufactuning performance across the supply
chatn Additional manufacturing capacity, for the submarines and civil
nuclear businesses, 1 being added to our existing facilivies in Derby

Peaple and capability

We are commutted to investing in, and developing, our people 10 equip
them with the skills required to meet the challenges and opportunities
we face as the business grows Through our ethics, health and safety
programmes, we are helping our pecple to make the night decisions and
ensuring that the safety of our people and products are at the forefront
of our minds and actions In 2010, we continued to invest heavily in
information and technology across the Group Investments in Product
Lifecycle Management (PLM), Computer Aided Pracess Planning (CAPP)
and Manufacturnng Execution Systerns (MES) are key to providing the
tools to enable effectiveness and efficiency

Future

Qur journey to create a global, best-in-class, and fully integrated
operations funcuon is well underway While economic uncertainty
seems likely 1o continue, our prcrities remain 1o impiove the
effectiveness of our delivery and ensure we are well placed to
meet the operational demands of the future
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DIRECTORS REPORT - REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

SERVICES

Rolls-Royce provides power systems for applications
that routinely operate in particularly harsh
environments, often with years between intervention
Service activities provide over one half of the Group’s
revenues, having increased ten per cent compound
over the past ten years

£5544m

Underltying services revenue 2010

Highlights

Service revenues increased by 13 per cent to £5 5 billion

76 per cent of the large civil engine fleet now under TotalCare®

0SyS expands service diagnostic and predictive capabilities

Major contracts secured for Tornado, Typhoon and C-130) engines
Over 30 marine service centres in operation around the world

350 Industnial gas turbines now covered by long-term service contracts

Key performance indicators

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Underlying revenue £m 3,901 4,265 4755| 4927 5544
Underlying services as a
percentage of Group revenue 53% 55% 52% 49% 51%
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DIRECTORS REPORT — REVIEW OF OPERATIONS SERVICES {CONTINUED)

As the onginal equipment manufacturer, Rolls-Royce 15 best placed to
provide mission critical support, long-term product care and well
planned maintenance on behalf of customers in each of the markets we
serve The Group's service capabiltes include field maintenance and
suppart services, the provision of replacement parts, eguipment
overhaul services, component repair, data management, equipment
leasing and inventory management These are typically packaged
together and sold as long-term support agreements such as our
TotalCare suite We work closely with customers to align each service
package to their operational needs, helping to maximise the avaitabihty
and efficient operation of the equipment on therr behalf

Civil aerospace

We have 76 per cent of the large engine fleet and 92 per cent of the
in-service Trent fleet now managed under TotalCare We also have 900
corporate and business jet aircraft enrolled in CorporateCare®, the
equivalent offering for this market sector In 2040, operational planrng
has been further enhanced across the Trent family of engines with the
adoption of sophisticated proactive engine life management policies
These combine our technical knowledge with the service data on each
individuzl engine to enable each customer o manage therr whole fleet
1N a mare predictable manner

Our network of On-Wing Care facihties supperted over 3,500 events
glohally in 25 different countries

Defence aerospace

we continued to develop MissionCare™ provision worldwide and service
presence on military bases A long-term service agreement was signed
with Lockheed Martin to support the Canadian Air Force fleet of C-130)
mulitary transport aircraft New contracts were also signed with the UK
Ministry of Defence 10 increase the scope of support for the frontine
Ternado and Typhoon fighter arrcraft operations In 2010, Rolls-Royce
completed 500,000 fight hours of MissionCare support for the Adour
engines that power the US Navy’s T-45 training aircraft

Energy

We secured further long-term service agreements which, together with
the additonal 38 new gas turbine units that became operational during
2010, mean the number of gas turbines under long-term service
agreements 15 approaching 350 Additionally, a number of tong-term
service agreements were renewed, the most significant being with
Total in the North $ea supportng i4 gas turbine packages on two
platforms for a period of ten years We continue to develop the service
infrastructure to support the growth of the Rolfs-Royce fleet in China,
India, Brazil, Malaysia and Russia, along with extending the global
footprint of the business with expanding operatiens in West Africa

and Central Asia
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2010 also saw the 20-year anriversary of the Rolls Wood Group repair
and overhaul jont venture The Rolls Wood Joint venture continues to
mainitain its position as the major supplier of repair and overhaul services
for Rolls-Royce industrial gas turbine engines The scope of the joint
venture was expanded in the year with the official opening of a faciity in
Malaysta in partnership with OTEC.

Marine

Service opportunities have continued to INCrease In marine as a resuft
of the large number of vessels with Rolls-Royce equipment installed,
now totalling over 30,000 vessels worldwide As this installed base of
equipment continues to grow, we are actively expanding our support
capacity and capability and now have over 30 dedicated marnne service
centres serving customners across North and South America, Afnica,
Europe, the Middle East, Asia and Oceamia Marine customers seek to
have therr ships serviced close to where they primarily operate, and
we continued our expansion by adding around 200 service engineers
globally We continue to expand our service capabiliies and in 2010
we completed more than 50 successful underwater intervention reparr
services which enabled major propulsion overhauls to be compleied
without the need for ime consuming dry docking

Future

The Group invested over £26 million this year in developing and
restructuring our wholly-owned gas turbine repair and overhaul
network, which will deliver significant improvements in operational
performance and customer satisfacton 2010 also saw the celebration
of ten years of Rolls-Royce ownership of the Oakland repar and
overhaul facility in the US

Our component repair business cantinues to grow rapidly and delivered
£150 milion in benefit across afl sectors in 2010

Asset optimisation service development has advanced strongly, led by
the Optimized Systems and Solutions In¢ {OSyS} business OSyS has
expanded our n-service diagnostic, nisk management and predictive
capabilites Through OSyS, we continue to advance the health
monitonng services and capzabilities already apphed successfully to
aircraft engines and energy systems with more than 8,900 assets
being monitored
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SUSTAINABILITY

Qur business activities need to be seen in the
broader context of sustainable development A
secure supply of affordable energy is a prerequisite
for sustainable economic growth, which in turn
provides the foundations for social development

Climate change and other environmental concerns
mean that new forms of power and propulston
systems are required to address these 1ssues The
environmental challenges posed are complex
Technology will play a critical role and innovation
will be vital Rolls-Royce has highly relevant skills
that can be applied to these challenges
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The products and services that we delver are critical to
the operations of our customers and we pay the highest
attention to product respoensibility, guided by our core
values of reliability, integnty and innovation We also
recognise the social responsibilities that come from being
a major employer, neighbour and partner as we conduct
our business around the world In this regard we follow
our published Global Code of Business Ethics Corporate
respansibility s fully integrated into our business
activities We believe that conducting business in a
responsible manner creates competitive advaniage by
enabling us 1o
- attract, retain and motvate the best people,
- develop and maintain successful working relationships
with customers, suppliers and governments, and
-« support the global communities in which our
employees live and work

External recognition and benchmarking
Rolls-Royce 1s ranked 1in a number of external indices
which benchmark our performance

Business in the Community Corporate Responsibiity Index (BitC)

The BitC Index assesses the extent to which corporate strategy
15 integrated into business practice throughout an organisation
In 2010 Rolls-Royce retaned 1is Gold status with an overall
score of 31 per cent We also scored 94 8 per cent in the
Environmental lndex componens of the overall survey

Dow Jones Sustainability World and European Indexes (DJSI)

Rolls-Rayce has retained 1ts position in the DJST for the ninth
consecutive year and, with an overall score of 79 per cent,
was secter leader for the Aerospace and Defence sector
The Group scored 100 per cent for environmental reporung,
product impact and operational eco-efficiency and
occupational health and safety

Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP)

For the third consecutive year Rolls Royce has been included
within CDP's FTSE 350 Carbon Disclosure Leadership Index,

in recognition of a professional approach to corporate
governance in respect of chmate change disclosure practices’
Our score increased from 76 1in 2009 to 7911 2010




Ethics

We regard ethical behaviour as key to maintaining and
strengthening our reputation and in support of our
commitment to act with integrity, we continued the
deployment of the global ethics programme launched in
2009 Thus 1s underpinned by our Global Code of Business
Ethics which 1s 1ssued to all employees

Complance and assurance

The new UK Bribery Act, which 1s expected to come into
force in May 2011, and whose scope extends beyond UK
borders, has led us to prioritise the review of the policy
areas linked to anti-brbery and corruption Policies on
gifts and hospitality and commercial intermediaries were
reviewed and updated during the year and agreement
was given for the estabhishment of a new compliance
organisatien

Training and awareness programme

The global ethics training programme in 2010 was
incorporated into a global rsk, reputation and ethics
training curnculum A tallored e-learning package on the
Global Code of Business Ethics has been developed to
reinforce the key ethics messages and allow employees
to work through ethical dilemmas This will be introduced
N 2011

Reporting hne

An independently operated and confidential ethics
reporting facility 1s available worldwide This allows
employees to raise 1ssues or concerns regarding
business conduct independently of the normal
management chain

Governance

The following serior corporate governance bodies are

in addition to those described on pages 44 to 46

+ The Group Community Investment and Sponsorship
Committee, chaired by the Chief Executive,

- The Global Dwversity Steering Group, charved by the
Chief Cperating Cfficer,

. The Sustainability Steering Group, chaired by the
Director - Engineenng and Technology,

« The Environment Councll, chaired by the Director -
Engineerning and Technology, and

+ The Environmental Advisory Board, chaired by
a senior academuc from the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology

Our people

Rolls-Royce employs 38,900 people in more than 50
countries Our growing order book and the continuing
innovation of the Group's products makes itimperative
that we have a skilled workforce that 1s committed t©
delivering excellence to customers To achieve this, we
seek 1o create an inclusive working environment that
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attzacts and retains the best people, enhances ther
flexibibity, capabifity and motivation, and encourages
them to be involved 1n the ongoing success of the Group

Our workforce 1s dispersed globally across our
business seciors

BUSINESS SEGMENT HEADCOUNT

Cwil aerospace 19,500

Defence aerospace 6,300

Marine 9,000

Energy 3500

TOTAL 38,900
Resourcing

n 2010, over 1,250 expernenced professionals were
recruited to support the growth of the business and,
of these, nearly 50 per cent were recruited outside of
the UK During 2010, our campus teams were active at
more than 40 universities in the UK, Europe, Asia and
the US, and we recruited 222 graduates onto our
graduate programmes from 73 universities and 25
nations worldwide

We were ranked 26™ overall in The Times newspaper’s
Top 100 UK Graduate Employers of 2010, achieving first
position in the Engineening sector In Singapore, we
entered Singapore’s Top 100 Graduate employers in
21% place

in 2010, we recruited 220 apprentices globally Our
apprenticeship programme in the UK was graded as
‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted

Learming and career development

Rolls-Royce provides all employees with access 1o
learning that helps them deliver high performance in
therr current and future jobs We have made significant
improvements to the quality of our performance
development review activity and in 2011 we will continue
1o focus on developing the nght performance culture
The Global Code of Business Ethics, rolled out to
managers in 2009, has been cascaded to all employees
during 2010 A Global Gifts and Hospitality and
Commercial Intermedianes policy compliance
programme has been provided to all employees as a
result of the new UK Bribery Act

We provide over 2,400 learning solutions globally through
our online fearning system The catalogue includes
several hundred programmes covening healih, safety

and the environment, dversity, ethics and corporate and
management responsibility
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By the end of 2010, empleyees from 55 countries had
accessed the learning system with over 34,000 employees
undertaking more than 94,000 days of learning Of these,
86,000 hours conststed of online learning We have
updated our global leadership development framework

in 2010 and partnered with world-class providers o
ensure that the Group has a strategically focused and
consistent way of managing its people

Learning Investment for 2010 was £33 millon

Engaging employees

We continue 1o place great value on giving a voice to our
workforce Employee opinions are obtained via a two-year
rolling engagement programme Improvement activities
are then embedded into locat and corporate business
planning acuvines In 2070, the Groyp conducted

1ts second global engagement survey Seventy-four

per cent of the workforce responded, represenung a
continuing high level of participanon in such activities

Comprehensive feedback has been shared with teams
across the Group The general trend indicates an
improvement in overall engagement levels compared
to 2009 when the first global survey was undertaken

Encouraging diversity

The Group 1s committed to developing a diverse
workforce and equal opportunities for all Qur global
govermnance framework for diversity includes a senior
executive Global Diversity Steering Group that provides
leadership and shapes strategic direction

During 2010, we developed a number of awareness
programmes to increase self awareness and promote
crass-cultural working The Group 1s launching a reverse
mentoring programme in 2011, where our most senior
executives will be reverse mentored by a colleague who
15 Junior to them in the orgarisation The aim 1s to give
senior executives a different perspective from a colleague
who can share diverse experiences and deas

The Group supports a number of women's networks that
focus on personal and professional development as well
as providing support through netwerking

Our policy 15 to provide, wherever possible, employment
training and development oppertunities for disabled
people We are committed to supporung employees
who become disabled dunng employment and helping
disabled employees make the best use of theur skills

and potential
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Product responsibility

Product safety 1s paramount and the hughest standards
are mantained by the application of a robust safety
management system Our role does not siop once the
product has been delivered to the cusiomer Safety and
reliability are our highest priorities and we continue t©©
drive uncempromised levels through ngorous design
processes and by providing expert through-life support

Rolls-Royce 1s both committed and well placed to find
solutions to the substantial challenges posed by climate
change We recewve independent expert advice from

the Group’s Environmental Advisory Board, comprsing
disunguished academics who are leading authoniues in
therr respectve fields, wital 1o the overall business strategy
and design process

The Board believes that technology must be appled

on anindustnial scale, through companies such as
Rolls-Royce with its global reach, 1o achieve significant
reductions in emissions In 2010, we invested £923 mithon
in research and development, two-thirds of which was
amed at improving the environmental performance of
our products

The aviation industry has a strong track record of
addressing its environmental impact, investing
consistently In product technology over the past six
decades Aircraft today are 75 per cent quieter and use
70 per cent less fuel on a passenger-kilometre basis than
the earliest jet ar¢raft Rolls-Royce 1s continuing to work
on ways to further reduce the effect of aviation

The Trent 900 and 1000 engines, for the Arbus A380 and
Boeing 787 respectively, and In the future the Trent XWB
for the Airbus A350 XWB, help us demenstrate progress
towards meeting our Adwisory Councll for Aeronautics
Research in Europe (ACARE) goal of a 15-20 per cent
reduction in engine fuel busn by 2020 compared to 2000
levels The Group also continues to drive for reduction in
noise and improvements 1 air quakity




In the longer term, we continue 1o see epen rotor
technology as offening a potental step change in
performance and we are currently targeting entry into
service early in the next decade for this technelogy Qur
civil engine product strategy for 2010-2025 means that
we will have engines entering service that, on average,
will reduce the fuel burn of arcraft replaced in that
15-year penod by at least 15 per cent

There 15 widespread interest in the possibility that the
aviation industry could replace, at least i part, radinonal
fuels with biofuel - a synthetic fuel made from biomass
Rolls-Royce actively supports, and plays a central part in,
the ngorous scienufic tesung and evaluation of biofuels
and we support demenstrations of biofuels where they
directly contribute to developing fuel specification
critena, or to the improvement of scientific
understanding However, we have to make sure that
bicfuel achieves the same technical and commercial
standards as traditional fuels, and that its production is
sustainable (taking account of such factors as impact on
bicdiversity, water resources, livelihocds, ecosystems and
life-cycle CO, emissions)

Rolls-Royce, as a world leader in manne technology,

1s well placed to help address the requirement for
significantly reduced emissions Our latest generation
Azpull thruster technology, which 1s up to 16 per cent
more efficient than conventional manne thrusters,
enables ships to use less energy and so reduce emissions
Our Bergen lean-burn reciprocating gas engine achieves
up to a 90 per cent reduction in oxides of nitrogen,
virtually zero emissions of sulphur and a 20 per cent
improvement in CO, emissions, compared with a
conventional diesel engine

The Group continues to explore cpportunities in low
emission and altermative energy products and is warking
in partnership with the UK Energy Technologies institute
As part of this work programme, a prototype tidal device
has been developed and 15 under test at the European
Marine Energy Centre, in the Orkney Islands, Scotland

The need to drasucally cut greenhouse gas emissions,
combined with the increasing insecurnity of ol supplies,

1s likely to lead to an expansion of nuctear power over the
coming decades With more than 50 years' experence in
designing and supporting pressursed water reactors, we
are well placed to make a significant contribution to this
nuclear renaissance We have recently established a new
cwvil nuclear business with the aim of serving this
growing global power market
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We are also leading the development of the Nuclear
Advanced Manufactuning Research Centre (NAMRQO),
as part of the UK's Low Carbon Industral Strategy

Operational HS&E performance

Rolls-Royce 15 committed to buslding and maintaining a
high reliability organisation, one that delivers consistently
high performance across all aspects of health, safety and
environmental (HS&E) management Our objective 15 to
achieve world-class levels of performance throughout our
business and to be widely recogrused for the excellence
of our performance

Durng 2010, the Group conducted a programme

of Process Safety audits an our main manufacturning
plants and test facilives The results are being used ta
further strengthen our approach to assurance over
process safety

We operate three sites in the UK which together
manufacture, test and support nuclear reactor cores for
the Royal Navy's submarines The Nuclear Propulsion
Assurance Committee regularly monitors the
performance of both the submarines and our recently
formed civil nuclear business and seeks evidence that
the highest standards of HS&E are maintained and that
fit-for-purpose processes are followed

The Group's contribution 1o developing best practice
through third party collaboration continues We are
taking a leading industry role In Registration, Evaluauon,
Authorisation and restriction of Chemicals (REACH), the
latest EU chermicals regulation, and continue to work with
ather companies, trade bodtes, sectors and regulators on
implementaton to ensure our continued access 1o
matenals necessary for the production and support of
our preducis

Operational performance

In 2009, we declared a new set of global targets for

our HS&E performance Progress against these will be
reported in an update to our last HS&E report 'Powering
a better world’ planned for Apnl 2011 We made progress
against two of our key targets reducing the Group's Total
Reportable Ijury (TRI) rate and greenhouse gas (GHG}
emissions Our data collecuon and reporung 1s subject to
independent assurance by Deloitte LLP
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TRI

Following a reduction of 40 per cent in our TRI' rate during
2007-2009 we sat 3 new target last year to reduce this by a further
50 per cent by 2012 (based on 2009) We can now report that we
have reduced our TRIfram 0 73 per 100 employees in 2005 to 069
In 2010 This represents a five per cent reduction winch 15 slightly
behind our Intenm rarget We continue to develop global
programmes focused on improving our performance

GHG

At the end of our last three-year target Cycle (2007-2000) we
reported a 38 per cent recduction In energy use (normalised on
turnover) in addinon there was an accurmulated 36 per cent
reducuon in absolute GHG emissions in the past decade Duning
2010 we have achieved a further three per cent reduction in total
Group GHG emussions {including product test and development)
moving us towards our target of a ten per cent reduction
{normalised) by 2012 In absolute terms, GHG emissions for our
facilities (excluding product test and development) have remained
at a similar Jeval 1o 2009 compared with our five per cent reduction
target by 20122

TR cover fatahues, lost time injuries, restricted work cases and medical
treatment Cases.

2€nergy/GHG data for 2010 has been forecast based on data collected
dusing January 10 October 2010 For details of the methodology see our
‘Bagis of Reporung available at www rolls royce com

Rolls-Royce plc Annual report 2010

GROUP GREENHOUSE GAS - GHG EMISSIONS FOR 2010 (ktCOe)

2010 2009
Scope 1 {direct) 2173 2104
Scope 2 (indirect) 3531 3562
Tota! GHG 580 4 5666

We recognise the need to make cuts in global enwssions
within our own operations Indvidual reduction targets
and budgets have been agreed for our top 25 energy
consuming sites to enable us to bulld on previous
improvements in energy efficiency We will continue 1o
work an ways to reduce our reliance on fossil fue's This
includes using mare sustainable energy sources, like
renewable and ather low carbon technologies/materials
within our faciities where this 1s cost effective

and practical

Learning from incidents

This year we have introduced a new process of notifying
serious and high-potential incidents to semor management.
High-potenual incidents are now required to be reviewed
at Chief Operating Officer level within the businesses and
functions This is iIntended to strengthen our tearrung from
incidents and to prevent their reaccurrence

Health and wellbeing

Rolls-Royce recognises the association between physical
and mental health and the need for our employees to
consider their personal wellbeing A preventative
occupational health strategy has been in place since
2005 and supports employee wellbeing and productivity
through a series of health promotion inimatives

In 2010, 1,300 employees took part in the ‘Know your
body metrics’ health promotion campaign in the UK
representing six per cent of the covered population

Qur Group-wide HS&E targets for the penod 2009-2012
are set out opposite

(The methodology used by the Group te collect and
report HS&E performance data is set out 1n our ‘Basis of
Reporting avallable at www rolls-royce com)




CURTARGETS ARE

PROTECT HEALTH

Reduce the Group incident rate of occupational
diseases and other work related ill-health by
ten per cent by end 2012

PREVENT INJURY
Reduce the Group TRI rate by 50 per cent by end 2012

REDUCE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Five per cent reduction in Group facthty GHG by

end 2012 (absolute) (excluding product development
and test)

Ten per cent reduction in total Group greenhouse gas
emissions by end 2012 {normalised by financial
revenues) (Including product development and test)

Ten per cent reduction i total Group production
waste {solid and liquid) by end 2012 (normalised by
financial revenues)

70 per cent Group recycle rate of solid waste by
end 2012

Note A full update on our progress against these
targets will be provided on www rolls-royce com/
sustainability in April 2011 Progress against our TR
and GHG targets is provided cpposite

Suppliers

In 2010, supplier engagement has seen Rolls-Royce
leading Global and Regional Supplier Forums which
focused on near-term and long-term business
impraovements We alsa hosted Regienal Supplier Groups,
culminating in a Globat Best Practce Sharing event aimed
at promoting the apphcation of lean techniques across
the supply chain

Society

We aim to communicate effectively, protect or enhance
local quality of life and be recognised as part of the local
community We also recognise that there are significant
business benefits for our organisation through
community Investment These benefits include
recruitment and retention of siaff, employee engagement
and development of our reputation and brand
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Community investment

The Group has a long-standing commitment to
supporung its local communities focusing on four key
areas education, environment, regeneration, and arts and
culture The Group's total contribution 1n these areas was
approximately £5 3 million in 2010, measured using the
London Benchmarking Group model

Donations and sponsorship

The Group's charitable donations amounted to

£2 3 milion, of which £1 15 million were made in the

UK Rolls-Royce made chantable donauons of US$970,000
in the Americas, €535,000 in Europe and £80,000 i

other regions

Afurther £1 1 milhion was contributed in sponsarships
including the Smithsonian National Ar and Space
Museum in North America, the Brandenburg Summer
Festival in Germany, and The Big Bang fair for young
scientists and engineers i the UK

Each year, the Rolls-Royce Science Prize awards £120,000
In prize money to recagnise excellent and innovative
science teaching in the UK This year's winner, Teesdale
School in Barnard Castle, England, receved a total of
£20,000 for their project in which pupils developed
ennchment devices for primates i 2005

Employee time

Employee ume contributed during 201015 estmated
at a value of over £1 5 million, with more than

4,000 employees parucipating In activities with
societal benefits

Qver 300 employees across the globe took partin 30
community and education outreach projects as part of
their personal development during the year Our
programme of community projects, run by graduate and
apprentice trainees, was awarded a ‘Big Tick’ by Business
in the Community in its Awards for Excellence in 20101n
the category of Building Stronger Communities’

Employee giving

Rolls-Royce finances the adminastration of a Payroll Giving
Scheme for UK employees, enabhng them to make
tax-free donations to their chosen chanties During 2010,
employees gave almost £460,000 to more than 500
charntable causes in Nerth America, employees donated
US$430,000 directly from payroll to good causes through
the United Way and Centraide schemes, a percentage of
which 15 matched by the Group
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FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REVIEW

“The Group delivered a
particularly resthient
performance in 2010
with strong order flow
delivering a record order
book at the period end”

The trading performance in 2010 met the expectations
of the Board and the guidance provided throughout the
year, delivering a seven per cent increase in Group
underlying revenues with underlying profit before tax
up four per cent to £955 mullion There was a cash inflow
of £325 miflion in the year delivering a year end net cash
balance of nearly £1 6 billion

These achievernents came in a year that saw the broader
envirenment remaining difficult and unpredictable with
significant macro-econormic, industry and Company-specific
challenges throughout 201G It was especially pleasing that
further significant milestones on Major new programmes,
considerable investment n product development and
continued expansion of the global facilities and supply chain
were also delivered along with a restient trading outturn
This performance continues to highlight the strength of the
portfolio and the benefits of the long-term and disciplined
application of the power systems sirategy

All of our businesses have been affected by the economic
factors that have been prevalent in the last few years and
that have had an impact on our competitors However,
the Group has ssgnificant advantages in the diversity of
its businesses, both by sector and geographical dispersal
The age of our nstalled fleet of products, the strong
positions we hold on current and future major
programmes, together with the Group’s services revenues
have all helped to deliver significant progress 1n the last
three years This is demonstrated by growth inthe order
book of 29 per cent, Increase in underlying revenues of
39 per cent, and increase in underlying profit before tax of
19 per cent. Throughout this tme, the portfolio has
continued to evohle with investments totalling more than
£4 billion in product development, acquisitions, capacty
and faciliies This establishes a strong platform for long-term
growth inrevenue and productmity and hence profitability

The results were affected by the movements in foreign
exchange rates through 2019, especially the GBP/USD
and the GBP/EUR which are explained in the following
section
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The Group has mantained a strong financial position
throughout the year and its parent company, Rolls-Royce
Group ple, continues 1o hold strong credit ratings from
both Standard & Poor's {A-, Stable) and Moody's

(A3, Stable) At the year end, the Group held gross cash
balances of £3 2 billion with £1 6 billion of cutstanding
debt comnutments ~ a net cash position of nearly

£1 6 bilhon with the average net cash position having
improved by £336 million to £969 millionin 2010

The maturmes of the Group’s existing band facilities, at
around £1 6 bilion, are well spread with the €750 million
Eurobond due in the first half of 2011, as shown in the
chart below The Group had a further £450 million interm
funding available to it that was undrawn at the year end
The Group essentially completed the refinancing of the
2011 Eurobond via the successful ten year £500 million
GB? bond issued 1 the first half of 2009, the proceeds of
which are currently held on term deposit and will be
avallable to settle the 2011 bond when 1t falls due There
are no other matenal matunties until 2013

Foreign exchange effects on published results
whilst continuing to influence the Group's published
results in 2010, currency movemenis were less distortive
than in prior years given that average and spot rates for
the GBP/USD and GBP/EUR remained in a relatively
narrow range throughout the year, as shown in the
table below

Market exchange rates. 2009 2010
USD per GBP

- Year end spot rate 1615 1566
- Average spot rate 1566 1543
EUR per GBP

- Year end spot rate 1126 1167
- Average spot rate 1123 1167

These movements have influenced both the reported
income statement and the cash flow and closing net cash
position (as set out In the cash flow staiement and

note 2 in the financial statements) in the following ways




Income statement

The most important impact was the end of year mark

to market of outstanding financial instruments (foreign
exchange contracts, interest rate, commaodity and Jet fuel
swaps) The principal adjustments related to the GBF/USD
hedge book

The impact of this mark 1o market 15 included in net
financing in the Income statement and caused a net

£431 mithon loss, coninbuting to a published profit before
tax of £703 million These adjustments are non-cash,
accounung adjustments required under 1AS 39 Anancal
Instruments Recogriion and Measurement As aresult,
reported earnings do not reflect the econamic substance of
denvatives that have been settled in the financial year, but
doinclude the unrealised gains and losses on denvatives
that will only affect cash flows when they are settled at
some point In the future to match trading cash flows

Underlying earnings are presented on a basis that shows
the economic substance of the Group's hedging
strategies in respect of transacyional exchange rates

and commadity price movements Further details and
information are included within the section on key
performance inchcators on page 8 and in note 2 of the
financial statements

Underlying profit before 1ax of £956 million benefited
fram £74 million of foreign exchange benefits compared
to 2009 The achieved rate on selling USD income was
around nine cents better in 2010 than 2009 and 15
expected to improve by a similar level in 2011 In 2010,
these better achieved rates contnibuted £72 mifion of
transactiionat benefits In addition, the improvement in
the average GBP/USD of three cents contributed net
translation benefits totalling £2 milhon to underlying
profit before tax in the year

Cash flow and balance sheet

The Group maintains a numbser of currency cash balances
which vary throughout the financial year These net cash
batances were improved by the effects of retranslation,
causing an improverment of £17 mullion in the 2010 cash
flow and hence the closing balance sheet net cash position

Summary

The Group’s revenues increased by six per centin 2010
o £11,085 million with 86 per cent of revenues from
customers outside the UK Underlying revenues grew
seven per cent in 2010, consisting of a three per cent
improvement i orignal equipment revenues with
services growing 13 per cent including double digit
services growth in civil aerospace, marine and energy
and a five per cent improvement In defence aerospace
Services activities represented 51 per cent of Group
underlying revenues in 2010
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« Underlying revenues in the avil aerospace segment
grew ten per cent 1o £4,919 million (2009 £4,481
million) with & 15 per cent tmprovement in service
revenues and a two per cent Improvement in
revenues from original equipment New engine
delivenies were stable at 846 (2009 844 engines) and
included a record 371 V2500 engines for the Airbus
A320 family of aircraft, and a small recovery in engine
deliveries for corporate and regional apphcations
Trent dehveries for widebody commercial awcraft
totalled 185 engines including a record number, 139
of Trent 700s, for the Arbus A330 arcraft The overall
total was held back by delayed entry into service and
slower production ramp up In Major new
applications, the Boeing 787 and Aitbus A380
respectively Services revenues grew strongly
reflecting three key elements the completion of a
spares distribution and fogistics arrangement with
Aviall Inc, and the disposal of associated spares
inventory which contributed around one third of the
annual services growth, the effect of better GBP/USD
achieved foreign exchange rates which represented
around one third of the service iImprovement, and
the ongoing utilisation and some limited recovery in
discretionary service activity

UUnderlying defence aerospace revenues grew by
six per cent to £2,123 milhon (2009 £2,010 million}
supported by strong growth in deliveries for the
military transpart sector Onginal equipment
revenues grew six per cent and services revenues
increased by five per ¢ent aver 2009 The portfolio
proved to be resilient despite some modest effects
from the completion of the Strategic Defence and
Security Review (SDSR) in the UK and 15 expected to
grow revenues at a similar overall rate in 2011

Underlying revenues in the marine business were
stable in 2010 at £2,591 mullion {2009 £2,589 million}
teflecting a five per cent dechine from onginat
equipment, as the subdued order cycle began to
impact deflivenies This was offset by further services
growth, with underlying revenues 11 per cent higher
1 the year benefiting from a growing installed base
and new services centres commencing operation
around the world

The energy business made significant progress again
in 2010 with a 20 per cent growth in underlying
revenues to £1,233 milhon (2009 £1,028 million), and
1s now more than 60 per cent higher than 2008

Underlying profit margins before financing costs reduced
shghtly frorm 97 per cent in 200910 9 3 per centin 2010
The reduction in ma:gin reflected changes in revenue
mix, higher levels of research and development charges,
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Increasing costs asscCiated with the launch phase of
major new programmes In addition, the performance
reflected the net impact of a number of positive and
negative one-off items i the year including the Awiall
distribution agreement and costs associated with the
Trent $00 fallure on an Airbus A380 which offset
improvements n aperational performance and
productivity and the benefits of better achieved foreign
exchange rates in the year

Underlying financing costs reduced by £14 midlion to
£54 million {2009 £68 million), primarily a function of
lower finance costs associated with financial risk and
revenue sharing partnerships as one of the major
arrangements came to an end in late 2009

Restructuning charges in 2010, totalled £46 million down
£9 millon from the prior year These costs are inctuded
within operating costs

The Company pard an intenm dnadend of £550 rilhon on
February 11,2010

Order book

The order boak at December 31, 2010, at constant
exchange rates, has remained resihent at £59 2 billion
(2009 £58 3 bilhon) This included firm busmess that had
been announced but for which contracts had not yet
been signed of £4 5 billion {2008 £6 8 billion)

Aftermarket services agreements, including TotalCare®
packages, represented 31 per cent of the order book,
having increased by more than 40 per cent in the last
three years These are long-term contracts where only the
first seven years'revenue is included in the order book

Aftermarket services

The Group contnues to be successful in developing its
aftermarket services actwvives These grew by 13 per cent
on an underlying basis in 2010, reflecting increasing
installed base of products across all four markets,
expansion of the global services network, especially

in the marne sector, and some encouraging signs of
improving trends in the discretionary service spend in
some large cvil engine programmes Underlying services
accounted for 51 per cent of the Group revenues in 2010

In particular, TotalCare packages in civii aerospace

now cover 70 per cent, by value, of the installed fleet
TotalCare packages cover long-term management of the
mantenance and associated logistics for our engines
and systems, monitornng the equipment In service o
deliver the system availability our customers require with
predictable costs The pricing of such contracts reflects

Rolls Roy<e plc Annual report 2010

ther long-term nature Revenues and costs are
recognised based on the stage of completon of the
contract, generally measured by reference to flying hours
The overall net position of assets and habihities on the
balance sheet for TotalCare packages was an asset of
£920 millron {2009 £970 million)

Cash

There was a cash inflow In the year of £325 mdlion (2009
£183 million outflow) and an improvement In average
net cash balances to £969 milhon {2009 £633 million)

A modest increase in underlying profits combined with
a strong working capital performance offset more than
£800 mithion in mvestment In preduct development,
operatonal faclives and tooling and the acquisition

of ODIM ASA N the year

These total cash investments of £842 million {2009
£688 million} in intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment and acquisiions together with dividends
of £550 mullion (2009 nd) and tax payments of

£168 milion (2009 £119 million) represented the
major cash outflows in the period

The net cash balance at the year end was £1,598 millicn
(2009 £1,273 million)

Taxation

The overall tax charge on the profit before tax was
£159 million (2009 £740 million), a rate of 22 6 per cent
(2009 25 0 per cent}

The tax charge on underlying profit was £236 mullion
{2009 £187 mullion) a rate of 24 7 per cent (2009
204 per cent)

The overall tax charge was reduced by £29 million in
respect of the expected benefit of the UK research and
development tax credit The underlying tax rate 1s
expected to be around 25 per centin 2011

The operation of most tax systems, Including the
avallability of specific tax deductions, means that there
15 often a delay between the Group tax charge and the
related tax payments, 1o the benefit of cash flow

The Group operates internatonally and 15 subject to tax in
many diffenng jurisdictions As a consequence, the Group
15 routinely subject to tax audits and examinations which,
by their nature, can take a considerable pencd to

conclude Provision is made for known 1ssues based on
management’s nterpretatien of country-specific legislation
and the likely outcome of negotiation or hugation The
Group believes that 1t has a duty to shareholders to seek




to mmirnise 1ts tax burden but to de so ina manner which
15 consistent with its commercial objectives and meets s
legal obligations and ethical standards While every effort
15 made 10 maximise the tax efficiency of its business
transactions, the Group does not use artificial structures
its tax planning The Group has regard for the intention of
the legislauion concerned rather than just the wording
itself The Group 1s committed to bullding open
relationships with tax authonuies and to following a policy
of full disclosure in order to effect the umely settlement
of its tax affairs and to remove uncertainty in 115 business
transactions Where appropriate, the Group enters into
consultation with tax authorities to help shape proposed
legislation and future tax palicy

Transactions between Rolls-Royce subsidiaries and
associates i different Junsdicitons are conducted on
an arms-length basis and priced as if the transactions
were between unrelated entities, in compliance with
the OECD Model Tax Convention and the laws of the
relevant jurisdictions

Before entering into a transaction the Group makes every
effort 1o determine the tax effect of that transaction with
as much certainty as possible To the extent that advance
rulings and clearances are avallable from tax authonties,
in areas of uncertainty, the Group will seek to obtain them
and adhere to thew terms

Pensions

The changes made to the Group's UK pension schemes
over the last few years have enabled the deficit to remain
stable and modest The charges for pensions are
caleulated In accordance with the requirements of IAS 19
Empioyee Benefits The Group's principal UK defined benefit
schemes employ a lower risk Investment strategy 10
which the interest rate and inflation nsks are largely
hedged and the exposure to equities has reduced to less
than 20 per cent of scheme assets As reported last year,
the primary objective of the revised investment strategy
15 to reduce the volatiity of the pension schemes o
enable greater stability in the funding requirements

Over the last two years our three major defined benefit
pension schemes have increased the assurned life
expectancy of members and pensioners but, even after
allowing for these changes, the overall funding level
across these schemes has improved

Further information and details of the pensions’charge
and the defined benefit schemes’ assets and liabilities
are shown in note 17 to the financial statements The net
defiait, after taking account of deferred tax, was £593
miilion (2009 £590 million} Changes in this net position
are affected by the assumptions made in valuing the
lrabutiies and the market performance of the assets
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Investments

The Group continues to subject all investments to
rigorous examination of nisks and future cash flows to
ensure that they create shareholder vatue All major
investments require Board approval

The Group has a portfolio of projects at different stages
of therr life cycles Discounted cash flow analysis of the
remaining life of projects 1s performed on a regular basis
Sales of engines in production are assessed against
criteria in the ariginal development praogramme to
ensure that overall value 15 enhanced

Gross research and development (R&D) investment
amounted to £923 million (2009 £864 mullion) Net R&D
charged 1o the iIncome statement was £422 million

(2009 £379 million) The level of self-funded investmeni
in R&D 15 expected to remain at approximately four to five
per cent of Group revenues in the future The impact of
this investment on the ncome statement will reflect the
mix and maturity of individual development programmes
and will result In an increase in the level of net R&D
charged within the income statement in 2011

The contmued development and replacement of
operational facilities contributed to the total expenditure
In property, plant and equipment of £361 milhon

{2009 £291 million) Investment in 2011 is anticipated to
increase compared 1o the 2010 level as the investments
n new facihties in the US and Singapore continue

tnvestment in training was £33 rmultion (2009 £24 million)

Intangible assets

The Group carried forward £2,884 mithon (2008 £2,472
milhon) of intangible assets This comprised purchased
goodwill of £1,108 million, engine certfication costs and
parucipation fees of £496 million, development
expenditure of £630 million, recoverable engine costs of
£346 mulion and other intangible assets of £304 milion
Expenditure on intangible assets 1s expected 10 reduce
modestly in 2011, largely as a result of the status of
development programmes [ntangible assets of

£211 mullion arose during the year as a result of the
acquisition of ODIM ASA

The carrying values of the intangible assets are assessed
for imparrment against the present value of forecast cash
flows generated by the intangible asset The principal nisks
remain reductions in assumed market share, programme
UMINgS, INCreases In unit cost assumptions and adverse
movements in discount rages There have been no
impatrments 11 2010 Further details are given in note 7 of
the financial statements

Business review

Other matters

Financial statements




Business review

Other matters

Financial statements

Partnerships

The development of effective partnerships continues to
be a key feature of the Group's long-term strategy Major
partnerships are of two types joint ventures and risk and
revenue sharing partnerships

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are an integral part of our business They
are involved 1n engineenng, manufactuning, reparr and
overhaul, and financial services They are also commoen
business structures for companies participating in
international, collaborative defence projects They
share risk and investment, bring experuse and access 1o
markets and provide external objectivity Some of our
Joint ventures have become substantial businesses

A major proportion of the debt of the joint ventures s
secured on the assets of the respective companies and
15 nan-recourse 1o the Group

Risk and revenue sharing partnerships {(RRSPs)

RRSPs have enabled the Group to build a broad portfolio
of engines, thereby reducing the exposure of the business
to mdiwvidual product risk The primary financial benefitis
a reducticn of the burden of R&D expenditure on new
programmes

The related R&D expenditure 15 expensed through the
income statement and the iniial programme recepts
from partners, which reimburse the Group for past R&D
expenditure, are also recorded in the income statement,
as other operating Income

RRSP agreemenis are a standard form of co-operation in
the civil aero-engine industry They bring benefits to the
engine manufacturer and the partner Specifically, for
the engine manufacturer, they bring some or all of the
following benefits addinonal financal and engineering
resource, sharing of sk, and initial programme
contribution As appropriate, the partner alse supplies
components and as consideration for these components,
receves a share of the long-term revenues generated by
the engine programme 1n proportion to its purchased
programme share

The sharing of nsks fundamental to RRSP agreements
Partners share financral investment in the programme,
typically through
market risk, as they receve therr return from future
sales,
- currency risk, as ther returns are denominated
in US dollars,
- sales financing obligations,
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+ warranty costs, and
« where they are manufactunng or development
partners, technical and cost risk

Partners that do not undertake development work or
supply components are referred 1o as financial RRSPs and
are accounted for as inancial mstruments as described in
the accounting palicles on page 57

In 2010, the Group receved other operating income of
£95 million (2009 £82 mullion)

Payments to RRSPs are recorded within cost of sales and
Increase as the related programme sales increase These
payments amounted to £198 million {2009 £231 million)

The classification of financial RRSPs as financial instruments
has resulted in a hability of £266 million (2009 £363 million)
being recorded 1n the balance sheet and an associated
underlying financing cost of £13 mullion (2009 £25 million)
recorded in the income statement.

The Group also receves government launch investment
In respect of certain programmes The treatrent of this
investment 1s similar to non-financial RRSPs

Risk management

The Board has an established, structured approach to nisk
management The sk committee {see page 44) has
accountability for the system of sk management and
reporting the key risks and associated mitigating actions
The Director of Risk reports 1o the Finance Director The
Group’s policy 1s to preserve the resources upon which its
continuing reputation, viability and profitability are built,
to enable the corporate cbjectives to be achieved through
the operation of the Rolls-Royce business processes Risks
are formally identified and recorded in a corporate risk
register and its subsidiary registers within the businesses
These are reviewed and updated on a regular basis, with
nsk mitigation plans identified for key nsks Principal risks
and uncertainties are identified on pages 12 and 13 and
certain financial nisks are described below

Financial nsk

The Group uses various financial Instruments in erder

10 manage the exposures that anse from its business
operations as a result of movements in financial markets
All reasury activities are focused on the management
and hedging of nsk It1s the Group’s policy not to trade
financial instruments or to engage In speculative
financial transactions




During the year, the Group reviewed and amended 1ts
credit and short-term cash investment policies to reftect
the state of the credit market and to ensure the Group
can continue to lay-off market risks associated with its
business As a result, the Group has revised the minimum
publicly assigned long-term credit rating reguirements
for transacting financial nstruments with a counterparty
from Standard & Poor'sA-* 1o ‘BBB+ (or the eguivalent
ratings from Moody's and/or Fitch) o reflect the general
lower 'evel of ratungs within the banking sector

Deposits and investments in other debt instruments
continue 1o require a short-term rating from Standard &
Poor's of A-1"{or the equivalent ratings from Moody's
and/or Fitch)

The most significant economic and market risks continue
to be movements in foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates and commodity prices The Board regularly
reviews the Group's exposures and financial risk
management and a specialist committee also considers
these in detall

All such exposures are managed by the Group Treasury
function, which reports 1o the Finance Director and which
operates within written policies approved by the Board
and within the internal conuol framework deseribed

on page 44

Currency nsk

The Group is exposed to movements In exchange rates
for both foreign currency transactions and the translation
of net assets and income statements of foreign
subsidianes

The Group regards Its interests in overseas subsidiary
companies as long-term investments and manages s
translational exposures through the currency matching
of assets and liabilities where applicable The matching
15 reviewed regularly, with appropniate risk mitigaticn
performed where matenal mismatches anse

The Group has exposure to a number of foreign
currencies The most significant transactional currency
exposures are USD/GBP and USO/EUR

The Group manages Its exposure to movements In
exchange rates at two levels

1) Revenues and costs are currency matched where it is
economic to do so The Group actively seeks to source
suppliers with the relevant currency cost base to avoid
the r1sk or to flow down the risk 1o those suppliers that
are capable of managing it Cutrency nsk is also a pnme
consideration when deciding where to locate new
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facitities US dollar income converted inta sterling
represented 19 per cent of Group revenues in 2010
(2009 23 per cent} US dollar income converted into
euros represented four per cent of Group revenues in
2010 (2009 two per cent)

1) Residual currency exposure 1s hedged via the financial
markets The Group operates 2 hedging policy using a
variety of financial instruments with the objective of
mirmmising the smpact of fluctuavons in exchange
rates on future transactions and cash flows

The permitted range of the amount of cover taken s
determined by the written policies set by the Board,
based on known and forecast income levels

The forward cover 1s managed within the parameters of
these policies in arder 10 achieve the Group's objectives,
having regard to the Groups view of long-term exchange
rates Forward cover s in the form of standard foreign
exchange contracts and instruments on which the
exchange rates achieved are dependent on future
Interest rates

The Group may also write currency opticns against 2
portion of the unhedged dollar income at a rate which 1s
consistent with the Group’s long-term target rate At the
end of 2010, the Group had US$209 billon of forward
cover (2009 US$18 8 bulhion}

The consequence of this palicy has been to maintain
relatvely stable long-term foreign exchange rates

Note 15 1o the financial statements includes the iImpact
of revaluing forward currency contracts at market values
on December 31, 2010, showing a negative value of
£336 million (2009 negative value of £144 million) which
will fluctuaie with exchange rates over time The Group
has entered into these forward contracts as part of the
hedging policy, described above, in order to miuigate
the impact of volatle exchange rates

Interest rate nisk

The Group uses fixed rate bonds and floating rate debt

as funding sources The Group's policy 1s to maintain a
proportion of its debt at fixed rates of interest having
regard to the prevalling interest rate outicok To implement
this policy the Group may utilise a combination of interest
rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate caps
10 manage the exposure

Commodity risk

The Group has an ongoing exposure to the price of Jet
fuel and base metals ansing from business operations
The Group's objective 1s to minimise the impact of price
fluctuations The exposure 1s hedged, on a similar basis

Business review

Other matters

Financial statements




Business review

QOther matters

Financial statements

to that adopted for currency risks, in accordance with
parameters contained 1n wrtten policies set by the Board

Counterparty credit nsk

The Group has an established policy for managing
counterparty credit sk A common framewaork exists to
measure, report and control exposures to counterparties
across the Group using value-at-nisk and fair-value
techniques The Group assigns an iternal credit rating
to each counterparty, which 1s assessed with reference
to publicly available credit information, such as that
provided by Fitch, Moody's, Standard & Poor's, and other
recognised market sources, and 1s reviewed regularly

Funding and iquidity

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of
shareholders' funds, bank borrowings, honds, notes and
finance leases The Group borrows in the major global
markets in a range of currenaies and employs derivatives
where appropriate to generate the desired currency and
Interest rate profile

The Group’s objective 1s to hold inancial investments and
maintain undrawn commutted facilities at a leve! sufficient
1o ensure that the Group has available funds to meet ity
medium-term capital and funding obligations and to
meet any unforeseen obligations and oppariunities The
Group holds cash and shert-term investments which,
together with the undrawn committed facilities, enable

It to manage its krquidity risk

Shori-term investments are generally held as bank
deposits or In'AAA rated money market funds The Group
operates a conservative investment pohicy which limits
investments to high quality instruments with a short-term
credit rauing of ‘A-1'from Standard & Poor's or better (or
the equivalent ratings from Moody’s and/or Firch)
Counterparty diversification 15 achieved with surtabte
risk-adjusted concentration hmits Investment decisions
are refined through a system of monttoring real-ume
equity and credit-default swap (CDS) price movements of
potentizl investment counterparties which are compared
to other relevani benchmark indices and then
risk-weighted accordingly

The Group's borrowing facilities decreased during 2010
following the matunity of a US$187 million US private
placement As at December 31, 2010 the Group had

total committed borrowing facihives of £2 0 billion

{2009 £2 15 billion} The proceeds of the £500 million GBP
bond i1ssue in 2009 are anuopated to be fully used 1o pay
down the debt matunties occurnng in 2011 The matunty
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profile of the borrowing facilities 15 staggered to ensure
that refinancing levels are manageable i the context of
the business and market conditions

There are no rating triggers contained in any of the
Group's faciliuies that could require the Group 1o
accelerate or repay any facility for 2 given movement
in the Group's credit rating

The Group’s £250 million bank revolving credit facilty
contains a rating price grid, which determines the
borrowing margin for a gwven credit raiing The Group's
current borrowing margin would be 20 basis points (bp)
over sterhng LIBOR (f drawn The borrowing margin on
this facility increases by approximately Sbp per one notch
rating downgrade, up to a maximum borrowing margin
of 55bp The facility was not drawn dunng 2010

There are no rating price grids contained in the Group's
other berrowing faciliues

The Group continues to have access to all the major
global debt markets

Credit rating

The Group’s parent company, Rolls-Royce Group ple,
subscribes to both Moody's Investors Service and
Standard & Poor’s for its official publiased credit ratings
As at December 31, 2010, Rells-Royce Group plc's
assigned leng-term credit ratings were

Raung agency Rating Quilook Category
Investment

Moodys A3| .Sl ..grade
Investment

Standard & Poor’s A- Stable grade

As a long-term business, the Group attaches significant
importance to maintaiming this mvestment grade credit
rating, which it views as necessary for the business to
operate effectively

The Group's objective is to maintam this ‘A’ category
investment grade credit rating from both agencies

Sales financing

In connection with the sate of its products, the Group
will, on some oceasions, provide financing suppaort for its
customers This may involve the Group guaranteeing
financing for customers, providing asset-value guarantees
(AVGs) on awrcraft for a proporuion of their expected future
value, or entering mnto leasing transactions




The Group manages and monitars iis sales finance related
exposures 10 customers and products within wntten
policies approved by the Board and within the internal
framework described in the governance section The
contingent liabilities represent the maximum discounted
aggregate gross and net exposure that the Group has in
respect of delivered awrcraft, regardless of the pointin
time at which such exposures may anise

The Group uses Ascend Worldwide Limited as an
independent appraiser to value its secunity portfolio at
both the half year and year end Ascend provides specific
values {both current and forecast future values) for each
asset in the secunity portfolio These values are then used
to assess the Group's net exposure

The permitted levels of gross and net exposure are
limited in aggregate, by counterparty, by product type
and by calendar year At the year end, the gross leve! of
commitments on delivered aircraft was U$5991 million,
compnsing US$618 million for AVGs and US$373 milhon
for credit guarantees

The Board regularly reviews the Group's sales inance
related exposures and risk management activities Each
financing commitment is subject to a credit and asset
review process and prror approval in accordance with
Board delegations of authority

The Group operates a sophisticated nsk-pricing model
to assess sk and exposure

Costs and exposures associated with providing financing
support are incorporated in any decision to secure new
business

The Group seeks 10 mimimise the level of exposure
from sales finance commitments by

+ the use of third-party non-recourse debt where
appropriate,

the transfer, sale, or reinsurance of risks, and
ensuring the proportionate flow down of nsk and
exposure to relevant RRSPs

Each of the above forms an active part of the Group’s
exposure management process

Where exposures anse, the strategy has been, and

continues to be, to assume where possible liquid forms of

financing commitment that may be sold or transferred to
third parties when the opportunity arises Note 21 to the
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financial statemenits describes the Group's conuingent
liabiktes There were no material changes to the Group's
gross and net contingent habilities duning 2016

Accounting standards

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
1n accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS), as adopted by the EU In 2010, the
changes that have had the most significant effect on the
Group's financial statements are the revisions to [FRS 3
Business Combinanions and amendments 1o I1AS 27
Consohdated and Separate Financial Statements These
amendments affect the accounting for acquisitions and
transactions with non-conirolling interests and have been
applied 1o the acquisition of ODIM ASA (see note 23 to the
financial statements) There 1s nG retrospective Impact

A summary of other less significant changes, and
those which have not been adopted 1n 201C,15
included within the accounting policies in note 1 to
the financial statements

Regulatory developments

In response to the financial crisis, governmenis and
regulators around the world are considering various
regulatory reforms to the financial markets with the am
of improving transparency and reducing systernic f1sk
While the proposed reforms are predominantly directed
at financial institutions, some of them may have
imphcatons for non-financial Instizutions

In particular, proposals by both US and European
regulators to reform the Qver-the-Counter (OTC)
denvatives market could have implications for the Group
in terms of future funding requirements and increased
cash flow volatility, if parues to future OTC derivative
transactions were required to clear such transactions via
an exchange or central clearing and be required to post
cash collateral 1o reduce counterparty risk

Andrew Shilston
Finance Director
February 9, 2091
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[BOARD OF DIRECTORS |

Sir Simon Robertson

Non-executive Chairman

Chairman of the normnations committee

Sir Simon Robertson was appointed 1o the Board in 2004 He s the
founder member of Simon Robertson Associates LLP and Deputy
Chairman of HS8C Haoldings plc He 1s a non-executive director of
Berry Bros & Rudd Limited and The Economist Newspaper Limited

He 15 a director of The Royal Opera House Covent Garden Limited and a
Trustee of The Eden Project and of the Royal Cpera House Endowment
Fund He 15 the former President of Goldman Sachs Europe Limited

He was knighted in the 2010 Queen's Birthday Honours for services

to business Age 69

Sir John Rose

Chief Executive

A member of the nominations commuttee

Sir John Rose was appointed to the Board in 1992, having joined
Rolls-Royce in 1984 MHe has been Chief Executive since 1996 and will
retire from the Company at the end of March 2011 He s a Trustee of
The Eden Prgject Age 58

Helen Alexander CBE

Non-executive director

Chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the ethics and
nominations committees

Helen Alexander CBE was appointed to the 8eard in September 2007
She 15 President of the CBI and Chairman of the Port of London Authonty
and of Incisive Media She 15 a non-executive director and charr of the
remuneration committee at Centrica plc and senier adwviser to Bain
Capital She was CEOQ of the Econormist Group from 1997 1o 2008 She is
also Chair of the Advisory Council of the Said Business School, Oxford,
Deputy Char of the governors of St Paul's GirlsSchool and a trustee of
the World Wide Web Foundation Age 53

Peter Byrom

Non-executive director

A member of the ethics and nominations committees

Peter Byrom was appointed to the Board in 1997 He 1s Chairman of
Domino Printing Sciences ple and 15 a Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical
Society He was a director of AMEC ple from 2005 10 2011 and of

NM Rothschild & Sons Limited from 1977 to 1996 Age 66
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lain C Conn

Non-executive director, Senior Independent Director

A member of the audit and norminations committees

tain Conn was appointed 10 the Board in 2005 He has been an executive
drirector of BP pl ¢ since 2004 and (s Chief Executive of Refining and
Marketing, having previcusly held a range of executive positions within
the BP Group worldwide He s Charman of the Advisory Board of

The Impenal College Business School Age 48

Pater Gregson

Non-executive director

A mermber of the remuneration and norminabions commutiees

Peter Gregson was appointed to the Board in 2007 He s President and
Vice-Chancellor of Queen’s University Belfast and serves an the Northern
Ireland Economic Development Forum, the Council of CBI Northern
Ireiand and the Steering Group of the US-Ireland Research and
Development Partnership He 15 @ Fellow of the Royal Academy of
Engineerng, a Member of the Royal Insh Academy and Deputy
Lieutenant of Belfast He was formerly Professor of Aerospace Materials
and Deputy Vice-Chancellor of the University of Southampton and has
served on the Councils of the Royal Academy of Engineering and the
Central Laboratory of the Research Councils Age 53

James Guyette BSc

President and Chief Executive Officer of Rolls-Royce North America Inc
Jim Guyetie was appointed to the Board in 1998 having joined
Rolls-Royce in 1997 He is a director of the PrivateBank and Trust
Company of Chicago, lllinois and of priceline com Inc and he 15
Charman, National Air & Space Museum, Washington DC Until 1995
he was Executive Vice President, Markeung and Planning of United
Arrlines Age 65

John McAdam

Non-executive director

A member of the remuneration and nominaitions committees

John McAdam was appointed to the Board in 2008 He 1s Charman

of United Utilities Group PLC and of Rentokil Initial ple, the Serior
Independent Director of J Sainsbury plc and a non-executive director
of Sara Lee Corporation He was the Chief Executive of IC1 plc untit ICI's
acquisivon by Akzo Nobel Age 62




John Neill CBE

Non-executive director

A member of the audit and nominations committees

John Neill was appointed to the Board in 2008 He 1s the Chief Executive
of the Umpart Group of Companies He 1s a member of the Councii and
Board of Business in the Community and 1s a non-executive director of
Charter International plc He 15 Vice President of the Society of Motor
Manufacturers and Traders, BEN, the automotive industry charity and
The Institute of the Motor Industry Age 63

John Rishton

Nan-executive diector

John Rishton was appointed to the Beard in 2007 He served as
Chairman of the audit committee and a member of the ethics and
nominations committees until September 30, 2010 when the Board
announced that he had been appointed to succeed S John Rose as
Chief Executive He will take up that role on March 31, 2011 John
Rishton 1s currentty Chief Executive Officer of Royal Ahold He began his
career In 1979 at Ford Mator Company and held a vaniety of positions
both in the UK and in Europe In 1994 he joined Brish Asrways Plc
where he was Chief Financial Officer from 2001 to 2005 He s a former
non-executive director of Allled Domecq Age 52

Andrew Shilston MA, ACA, MCT

Finance Director

Andrew Shilston was appointed to the Board 1n 2003 having Joined
Rolls-Royce in 2002 He was a non-executive director of Cairn Energy PLC
until May 2008 and he was Finance Director of Enterprise Oil plc from
1993 untd 2002 Age 55

Colin Smith BSc Hons, FREng, FRAeS, FIMechE

Director — Engineering and Technclogy

Colin Sruth was appointed to the Board 1in 2005 having joined
Rolls-Royce n 1974 He has held a variety of key positions within
Engineenng including Director — Research and Technology and Director
of Engineering and Technology - Civil Aerospace He 1s a Fellow of the
Royal Academy of Engmeering, the Royal Aeronautical Society and the
Institution of Mechanical Engineers Age 55
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lan Strachan

Non-executive director

Chairman of the ethics and audit cormmittees and a member of the
nomingtions committee

lan Strachan was appointed to the Board w1 2003 He 15 a non-executive
director of Xstrata plc, Transocean Inc and Caithness Petroleumn Limited
He 15 the former Chief Executive of BTR ple, former Deputy Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer of Rio Tinto plc, former non-
executive Chairman of Instinet Group In¢ and former non-executive
director of Johnson Matthey plc, Commercial Union and Reuters
Group plc Age 67

Mike Terrett

Chief Operating Officer

Mike Terrett was appointed to the Board 1in 2007, having joined
Rolls-Royce i1 1978 He has held a variety of senior positions in the
development of new aero-engine programmes including Managing
Director of Arrlines and President and Chief Executive Officer of
International Aero Engines (IAE) based in the United States Prior to
hts appointment as Chief Operating Officer he was President -

Civil Aerospace He s a Member of the Institute of Mechanical
Engineers and a Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical Society Age 54

Tim Rayner

General Counsel and Company Secretary

Tim Rayner joined Rolls-Royce 1n 2007 having previously been General
Counsel and Company Secretary at United Utlities PLC Age 50

At December 31, 2010, all the directors were also directors of
Rolls-Royce Group plc, the ultimate parent company As directors of
the ulumate parent company, there is no reguirement to disclose therr
individual remuneration or therr interests in the shares of Rolis-Royce
group companies In this Annual report, as they are included in the
Annual report of Rolls-Royce Group plc
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[INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board - system of internal control and its effectiveness

The Board 1s responsible for the Group's system of internal control and
for maintaining and reviewing its effectiveness from both a financial and
an operational perspective The system of internal controt is designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objecuves and to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
matenal misstaternent or loss The Group's approach 1o 1nternal control 15
based on the underlying principle of ine management’s accountabitity
for control

In reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control, the
Board has taken account of the results of the work carred out to audit
and review the activities of the Group

Financial reporting

The Group has a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual
budget approved by the Board Rewvised forecasts for the year are
reparted at least quarterly Actual results, at both a business and Group
level, are reported monthly against budget and vanances reviewed
Financial managers are required to acknowledge in wning that their
routine financial reporung 15 based on reliable data and that therr results
are properly stated in accordance with Group requirements In addwon,
for annual reporting, business presidents and finance directors are
required to acknowledge that their business has complied with the
Group Finance Manual

The audit committee

The committee has responsibility for recommending the financia!
statements to the Board and for reviewing the Group's financial reporting
and accounuing policies 1115 also responsible for the relationship with
the external auditors and for assessing the role and effectuveness of the
internal audit funcuon, which in Rolls-Royce 15 termed business assurance
In addition, the committee reviews the Group’s procedures for detecting,
monitoning and managing the nisk of fraud

The committee has responsibility for recommending to the Board the
appointment of the external auditors and for reviewing the nature,
scope and results of the annual external audit It also approves the

audit fee and, on an annual basis, assesses the effectiveness and
independence of the external auditors A resolution to reappoint the
auditors, KPMG Audit Plc, and to authornse the directors to determine the
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auditors' remuneration, will be proposed at the 2011 Annual General
Meeting (AGM) The committee keeps under review the Group's internal
controls and systems for assessing and mitigating financial and
non-financial nisk 1t also reviews and approves the business assurance
work programme and ensures that this function 1s adequately resourced
and co-ordinated with the work of the external audrtors Twice a year,
the committee receives a written report on the reviews conducted
throughout the Group by business assurance and reparts from senior
executives on the key business risks and risk systems in selected sectors

The risk committee

The Group has established and implemented a sound nsk management
structure throughout the business that supports programme execution,
informs decision making and, ultimately, helps to deliver better
business performance

The sk committee has accountability for the system of risk
management and reports annually to the Board on the palicy. process
and operation of the nsk management system and the principal nsks
facing the Group, including the treatment plans 1n place to manage
them The nisk commuttee has responsibility for implementing the
Board's policies on risk and internal control and reviews the results of
the nsk management process, which operates at all levels of the Group

Specific comrmuttees have accountability for reviewing certain categories
of nisk The financial nisk committee reviews credit, market or hquidity
risks The ethics committee reviews those risks with a significant

ethical dimension

The nsk comm:ttee has developed a sk policy which states that risk
management Is a part of every manager's responsibility and 15 1o be
embedded within the day-to-day activity

Risk management process

Rolls-Royce takes a proactive approach to the management of risk and
recognises the risk management process as fundamental in achieving its
business objectives Throughout the Group, risks are identified, assessed
and managed through an estabfished structured approach The Board
has reviewed the rnisk management process




Risks are defined as threats to the achievemnent of business objectives or
to the continuing repuiation of the Group As part of the business cycle,
each part of the Group 1s required to identify and record key risks
together with appropriate treatment activities Risks are documented m
a framework of rsk registers and are reguiarly reviewed and updated by
management

The process provides methods for escalation and aggregation at every
level of the business, delegation to the appropriate levels within the
organisation ensures that nsk and treatment actions are owned, defined,
resourced and effectve The top-level corporate risk regssier s an
aggregation of lower-level nsk registers from where risks are escalated to
be reviewed by the Board The Board also considers these nsks in the
context of the Group's business strategy
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This ongoing process has been in place duning 2010, up to and including
the date of approval of this Annual report contained within it

Management has continued to perform comprehensive risk reviews for
all major programmes, including business change plans Independent
gated reviews are conducted where key nsks and miigating actions are
identified and reported to management for incorperation into
programme plans The risk management process places significant
emphasis on learning from and sharing prior experience

Risk profile

The Group's nsk profile has increased over the past five years which, in
part, can be atinbuted to the increasing maturity of the processes to
recogruse and formally communicate risks

The significant risks anising from economic downturn and financial
market disruption in that period have been or are being addressed by
comprehensive mitigation strategies and plans The external business
environment 15 challenging and whilst competitive pressures remain
high there are some early signs of recavery across all sectors

Had the Group remained so sttongly dependent upon the civil
aerospace business, then its exposure to the cychical downturn in the
economy affecting the global demand for arr travel would have been
much more severe While 1t s still possible that there may be a‘double
diprecession, the Group has performed well to date in the recessionary
environment The benefits of a strong aftermarket business, a broad
portfolio of products across all businesses and the growing influence of
geographical diversification have all been factors in maintaining a strong
financial performance Continued development of the portfolio in areas
such as marine, energy and cvil nuclear will further mitigate the nsk

Low probability/high impact events that are beyond the range of
normal expectations have attracted a substantial degree of focus n
2010 The European sovereign debt cnsis threatening the euro, the April
eruption of the Eyjafjallajokull volcano in Iceland, which shut down
Europe's arspace for six days, and the oil spill n the Gulf of Mexico have
together resulted in a much deeper consideration of the nisks to
arganisational resilience

The rehability of our products remains a sigrsficant exposure and recent
events have highlighted the negative impact that any deficiencies could
have on the Group's reputation Management attention 15 on the ‘safety
first’ culture and there 1s continuing engineering focus on product
reliability and service hves
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Principal risks and uncertainties
The Principal nisks and uncertainties; described in the table on pages 12
and 13, are amang those that may have an impact on the Group’s
performance This 1s notwithstanding other nsks and uncertainties that
are currently unknown to the Group, or which the Group does not
presently consider to be matenal The principal nsks reflect the global
nature of the business and the competitive and challeng:ng business
environment inwhich it operates Risks, including those to the Group’s
reputation, are considered under four broad headings

business environment risks,

strategic risks,

financial nisks, and
+ operational risks

Continuous improvement of the risk management process
Cevelopment, implementation and maintenance of the standard global
process is the responsibility of a dedicated Enterprise Risk Management
team, part of the Risk function, led by the Director of Risk The team has
created a comprehensive framework for the assessment of risk
management process maturity that enables focused improvement
actions and drives consistent application of the risk management
process throughout alk levels of the Group

An integrated range of to0ls and training supports the nsk process
Implementation of an enterpnse-wide nsk database application enables
the recording, analysis, communication and management of risks across
the Group

A global network of nisk champions, mentors and facilitators drives the
application of the standard process in each part of the business and
helps to develop, embed and share best practice throughaut the Group

The nisk management process is subject to continuous IMprovement
Cver the past year, training matenal has been enhanced for all nisk roles
to ensure consistency of sk management capability for all levels of the
organisation The global uptake of risk training has more than doubled in
companson 1o 2009

As the Group broadens 1ts portfolio and enters new terntones through
organic growth and acquisiion, it places increased emphasis on the
need to understand the geopoliticat risks inherent in the business
Imtiatives are underway to formahse, corroborate and respond
these risks
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[SHAREHOLDERS AND SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital

Throughout 2010, the Company’s authonsed share capiial was
£400 million, comprising 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 20p
On December 31, 2010, there were 1,630,996,508 ordinary shares
In 1s5ue

The ardinary shares are not listed

Dividends
An intenm dvidend of £550 million was paid on February 11, 2010

[OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Political donations
In Ine with its established policy, the Group made no polucal
donations in 2010

Duning the year, the contribution made by a US subsidiary towards the
running expenses of a political acton committee (PAC) orgarised by its
employees was USS nil {2009 US$524,636) PACs are a common feature
of the US political system and are gaverned by the Federal Election
Campalign Act The Rolls-Royce PAC 1s independent of the Company and
independent of any political party its funds are contributed voluntariy
by employees and the Company cannot affect how they are applied
Such contnbutions do not require authonsation by shareholders under
the Companies Act 2006 and therefore do not count towards the
£25,000 Group company and £50,000 aggregate imits for political
donaticns and expenditure for which shareholder approval will be
scught at the AGM

Payment to suppliers

when dealing with supphers, the Group 1s guided by the Supply Chain
Relationships in Aerospace (SCRIA) initiative It seeks the best possible
terms from supphiers and when entenng into binding purchasing

contracts, gives consideration to quality, delivery, price and the terms
of payment In the event of disputes, efforts are made to resolve
them quickly

The Company had the equivalent of 60 days’purchases outstandtng at
December 31, 2010, based on the average daily amount invoiced by
suppliers during the year

Auditors

A resolution to reappoint the auditors, KPMG Audit Ple, and to
authorise the directors te determine therr remunerauen, will be
proposed at the AGM

Indemnity

The Company has entered into separate Deeds of Indemnity in favour
of 1ts directors The deeds provide substantially the same protection as
that already prowided to directors under the indemnity in Article 170 of
the Company’s Articles of Assocration The Company has also arranged
appropniate insurance cover for any legal action taken against its
directors and officers

| MATERIAL LITIGATION

In 2010, Rolls-Royce commenced an action in the United States against
United Technologies Corporation (UTC), the parent company of Pratt &
Whitney, alleging that the GP7200 turbofan engine, UTC’ geared
trbofan enging, and other UTC turbofan engines infringe Rolls-Royce
swept fan blade patent A tnal 1s expected be held in June this year
UTC subsequently commenced proceedings against Rolis-Royce in the
United States and in England alleging that Trens 900, Trent 1000 and
Trent XWB engines infringe 1ts patent Judgements n UTC's cases are
expected 10 be handed down berween 2012 and 2015

Rolis-Royce ple Annual report 2010

1t 15 not possible to comment at this stage on the amount of any
damages which mught be awarded in favour of, or against, Rolls-Royce
although an award of damages or the financial effect of other remedies
could be material Rolls-Rayce 1s advised that it has a strong claim
against UTC and strong defences in the proceedings brought by UTC
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[ ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the

Annual report and financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual report and the
Group and parent company financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare Group and parent
company financial statements for each financal year Under that law
they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and apphcable law and
have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in
accordance with UK Accountng Standards and applicable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statenents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit
or loss for that period In preparing each of the Group and parent
company financial statements, the directors are required to

. selact suntable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

« make jJudgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent,
for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

- for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial
statements, and
prepare the financial staterments on the going concern basis unless it 1
Inapproprate to presume that the Group and the parent company will
continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting

records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent cempany’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financiat pasition of the parent company and enable them to ensure
that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They
have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably cpen
o them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other wrregulanties
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Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible
for prepanng a Directors'report that complies with that law and those
regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the
corporate and financial Information included on the Group's website
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissermination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdicuons

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, together with the factars likely to affect
its future development, performance and position are set out on pages
1to 27 of the business review and a summary of the principal risks
affecting the business are shown on pages 12 and 13 The financial
position of the Group, its cash flows, lquidity position, borrowing
facilities and financial risks are described in pages 34 to 41 of the
business review In addition, notes 1, 12,13 and 15 of the consclidated
financial statements include the Group's objectives, polictes and
processes for financial risk managerment, details of its cash and cash
equivalents, Indebtedness and borrowing facilittes and its financial
instruments, hedging activities and 1ts exposure to counterparty credit
nisk, lguidicy nsk, currency risk, intesest rate nisk and commodity
pricing risk

As described on page 40, the Group meets its funding requirements
through a mixture of shareholders' funds, bank borcowings, bonds, notes
and finance leases The chart on page 34 shows the matunty profile of
the Group's outstanding debt faciities, a total of £501 mulion 15 due to
expire In 2011 The Group has a further £450 million of term funding
avalabie that s currently undrawn

The Group's forecasts and prajections, taking :to acceunt reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group has
sufficient financial resources As a consequence, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group are well
placed to manage ther business risks and to continue In operational
existence for the foreseeable future, despite the current uncertain global
economic outlook Accordingly, the directors continue to adopt the
going cancern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements




Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this

repori confirms that

1) sofar as the director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of
which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

1) the director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken as a
director in order 1o make hemself or herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of
that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of Section 418 of the Compamies Act 2006

Responsibility statement

Each of the persons who s a director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that to the best of his or her knowledge

1) each of the Group and parent company financial statements,
prepared in accordance with IFRS and UK Accounting Standards
respectively, gives a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the issuer and the undertakings included
in the consolidaton taken as a whole, and

the Directors'report on pages 1 to 49 includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of
the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face

=

By order of the Board

Tim Rayner
General Counse! and Company Secretary
February 9,2011
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5i INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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124 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[TO THE MEMBERS OF ROLLS-ROYCE plc |

We have audited the financial statements of Rells-Royce plc for the year ended December 31, 2010 set out on pages 52 to 123 The financial reporung
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements 1s applicable law and Intermational Financial Reporting
standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financal
statements 1s applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UX Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chaprer 3 of Part 16 of the Comparies Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required 1o state to them in an auditors’report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 10 anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 48, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility 1s to audt, and express an opinion on, the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Audiiing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's {APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financal statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 15 provided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKP

Opinion on finanaal statements

In our opimon

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's affarrs as at December 31, 2010 and of the
Group's profit for the year then ended,
the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepied Accounting Practice,
the financtal statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirernents of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinian, the information given in the Directors’report for the financial year for which the financizl statements are prepared 1s cansistent with the
financial staternents

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 1o report 1o you if, in our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us, or

. the parent company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting recards and returns, or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

. we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

A J Sykes (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Ple, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

February 9, 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

[FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010 |

2010 2009
Notes £m fm
Revenue oL . N 2 11,085 10,414
Cost of sales (8,885) (8303}
Gross profit 2,200 | 2
Other operating income . 95 89
Commerciat and admiristrative Costs (8348) (740}
Research and development costs (422) {379)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 9 93 93
Operating profit . 1,130 1,174
Profit/(loss} on disposal of businesses 23 4 (2}
Profit before financing and taxatign 2 1,134 1,172
Financing Income . . 3 453 2276
Financing costs 3 (884) (491)
Net financing 431) 1785
Profit before taxation L. 703 2957
Taxation 4 {159) (740)
Profit for the year 544 2217
Attributable to
Ordinary shareholders .. 540 222t
Non-controlling interests 4 (4)
Profit for the year 544 2217
| FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201 01
2010 2009
Notes £m fm
Profit for the year N 544 2,217
Other comprehensive Income (OC1) R
Foraign exchange translation differences on foreign operations 22 (156)
Met actuanial gans/(losses) relaung to post-employment schemes 17 157 (1,148
Movement in uniecogrised post-retirament surplus . 17 {300) 707
Movemnent in post-retirement minimum funding fiability 17 49 40
Transfers from transition hedging reserve - (27)
Share of OCI of joint ventures and associates L o 9 (16) 20
Related tax movements 4 29 141
Total comprehensive income for the year 485 1794
Attributableto . R
Orginary shareholders 481 1798
Nor-tontrolling mieresis 4 {5)
Total comprehensive income for the year 485 1794
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

[AT DECEMBER 31,2010
2010 2009
Notes tm Im
ASSETS
Non-current assets =
Intangble assets 7 2,884 2472
Property plant and equipment g 2,136 2009
Investments - joint ventures and associates 9 393 437
Investments ~ ather N 9 n 58
Other financial assets R 15 k74| 637
Deferred tax assets 4 451 360
Post-retirement scheme surpluses 17 164 75
6,410 6048
Current assets o ~
Inventores 10 2,429 2432
Trade and other receivables 1 3,943 3948
Taxation recoverable [] 12
Cther financial assets 15 25¢ 80
Short term investments 328 2
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2,858 | 2960
Assets held for sale 9 9
9,823 G443
Total assets 16,233 15491
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities )
Borrowings i3 (651} (126)
Cther financial liabilities R 15 (82) (168)
Trade and other payables 14 (6,160) (5628)
Current tax habihties (170} (167)
Provisions for habiliies and charges 16 (276) (210)
(7,339) 6 299)
Non-current habiities
Borrowings 13 {1,135} (1787)
Other financial liabilities 15 (945) _(868)
Trace and other payables . 14 (1,271} (1145}
Deferred tax habilities 4 (438) (366}
Provisions for habilities and charges 16 {268) (232)
Post retirement scheme deficits 17 {1,020) {930
15,077} (5,328)
Total liabilities {12,416} (11627
Net assats 3,817 3 864
EQUITY
Equity attnbutable to ordinary shareholders . .
Called-up share capual L . 18 326 126
Share premium account 631 631
Hedging reserves (37| _ a9
Teanslation reserve . L. . 524 503
Retained earnings 2,369 2423
3,813 3864
Ngm-controlling interests 4 -
3,817 3864

&n pagps 52 1101 were approved by the Board on February ¢ 2011 and signed on its behalf by

Andrew Shilston Finance Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

[FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010]

2010 2005
Nores £Em £m

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxauon . 703 2957
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 9 (93) (93}
(Profit)/loss on disposal of businesses 23 4) 2
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment . (0} . (40}
Net financing 3 431 {1,785
Taxation paid (168) {119
Amgriisation of Intangible assets 7 130 2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 237 194
Impairment of Investments 9 3 -
InCrease in provisiIcNs 99 81
Decrease in inventores 41 1%
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 20 (85}
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 527 | _ (364)
Increase in cther financial assets and labilines (298} (303)
Addiional cash funding of post-retirement schemes {135); (159)
Share-based payments 19 50 3
Transfers of hedge reserves 1o ncome statement 15 - 2N
Dividends receved from joint ventures and associates 9 68 77
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1.671 607
Cash flows from [nvesting activities
Adcinions of unhisted snvestments m]. .2
Disposais of unlisted investments 46 -
Additions of ntangible assets (321)) {339)
Disposals of Intangible assets - 2
Purchases of property plant and eguipment (354} (258)
Disposals of property, plant ang equipment 38 a2
Acquisitions of businesses 23 {150} 7
Disposals of businesses 23 2 3
Investments i1 jont ventures and associates {19} &7
Net cash outflow from investing activities {759) (606)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayrnent of loans (o8) (tQ)
Proceeds from Increase in loans 2 693
Capual element of finance lease payments - {3}
Net cash flow from (Decrease)/increase in borrowings (106) 680
Interest receved 1" 24
Interest paid (64) (66)
Interest element of finance lease paymenis -1, _m
Increase 1N shert-term rvesiments (326) m
Dwvidends paid . (550} -
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financing activities {1,035} 636
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (123} | 637
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 2,956 2460
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents 17 {141)
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2,850 2956
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

|FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010|

2010 2009
£m £m
Reconciliation of movements in cash and cash equivalents to movementsin netfunds oL R L R
(Decease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (123) 637
Net cash fiow from decrease/(increase) in borrowings ~ _ . R 106 | . _lesm
Cash outflow frem increase in short-term investments 326 1
Change i net funds resulting from cash flows R . _ 309 {42
Net funds (excluding cash and cash equivalents) of businesses acquired (3}] -
Exchange gains/(losses) an net funds . . 17 {141}
Fair value adjustments 26 110
Movement in net funds . . . 351 73)
Net funds at January 1 excluding the fair value of swaps 1,049 1122
Net funds at December 31 excluding the fair value of swaps . . 1,400 [ 1049
Farr value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 198 224
Net funds at December 31 1,598 1273
The movement in net funds (defined by the Group as including the items shown below) 15 as follows
At Net funds of At
January 1 Funds businesses Excthange Fair value Reclassi= | December 31,
2010 flow acquired differences  adjustments fications 2010
£m £m £m £Em £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 1,238 385 23 - - 1,646
Overdrafts a)]_ (4} - - - 8
Shart-term deposits 1,722 {504) (5) - - 1,212
Cash and cash equivalenis . 2,956 {123) . 17 - - 2,850
Short-term investments 2 326 - - - - 328
Other current borrowings - {122) 168 - - 59 (688} (643)
Non-current borrewings (1,786) (2) ) - (33) 688 (1,134)
Finance leases (1) - - - - - i¢l}
1,049 09 ) 17 26 - 1,400
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 224 (26) 198
1,273 309 {1) 17 - = 1,598
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

[FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010]

Attributable to ordinary shareholders

N
Share Share Hedging  Translation Retained controll?:g Total

capital premium reserves' reserve earnings Total interests egulty

Nates £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £im

At January 1 2009 326 £31 {22} 660 454 2049 9 2058
Profit for the year . - - - - 2221 2221 4 2217

Fareign exchange translation differences on foreign

operations - - - (155) - (155} m (156}
Net actuanal osses relating to post-retirement schemes - - - - (1148) (1,148) - (1148
Movement 1n unrecogmised post-retirement surplus - - - - 707 707 - 707
Movement in post-retirement rmmmum funding hatility - - - - 40 40 - 40
Transfers from transition hedging reserve - - 27) - - (27) - (27
Share of OCI of joint ventures and associates ? - - 22 2 - 0] - 20

Related tax movements - - 8 - 133 141 - 141
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3 {157) 1,953 1,799 (5) 1,794
Share-based payments - direct to equnty 3 - - - - 15 15 - 15
Transactions with non-controlling interests - - - - - - 4 (4)
Related tax moverments 4 - - - - 1 1 - 1
Other changes in equity in the year — - — — 16 16 (4} 12
AtJanuary 1, 2010 326 631 {19) 503 2,423 3,864 - 3,864
Profit for the year - - - - 540 540 4 544

Foreign exchange translation differences on fereign

operations - - - 22 - 22 - 22
Net actuanal gains relating ta post-reirement schemes - - - - 157 157 - 157
Movement In unrecognised post-retirement surplus - - - - (300) (300) - (300)
Movernent In post-relivement minimum funding hability - - - - 49 45 | - 49
Share of OCI of joint ventures and associates ? - - (18 1 1 (16) - (16)
Related tax movements - - - 2 31 29 = 29
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {18) 21 478 481 485
Dividend paid - - - - (550) (5501 - (350}
Share-based payments - direct to equity * - - - - 13 13 - 13
Related tax movernents 4 - - - - 5 5 - 5
Other changes in equity in the year — - — - (532) (532) - {532)
At December 31, 2010 326 631 (37) 524 2,369 3,813 4 3,817

' Seeaccounting policies note 1-— hedge accounting Hedging reserves include nll (2009 nil 2008 £19m) i respect of the transiton hedging reserve and £{37)m (200G £(19} 2008 £{41)m} 0 respect of the

cash flow hedging reserve

1 Cenan of the Groups Joint ventures and associates hold interest rate and inflation swaps for which cash flow hedge accounuing has been adopted
3 The share based paymeni — direct to equity 1s the net of the credit 1o equity in respect of the share based payrment charge 1o the ncome statemens and the actual cost to the Group

Rolls-Royca pic Annual report 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ 1 ]][ACCOUNTING POLICIES |

The Company

Rolls-Royce plc (the ‘Company’) 1s a company domiciled in the United Kingdom The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2010 comprise the Company and 1ts subsidianes (together referred to as the ‘Group’) and the Group's interest In joinitly
controlied and associated enuties The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on February 9, 2011

Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

In accordance with European Union (EU) regulations, these financial statermnents have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB), as adopted for use in the EU effective at December 31, 2010
{Adopted IFRS) The Company has elected to prepare its parent company accounts under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP)

The financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis except where Adopted IFRS requwres the revaluation of financia!l instruments
to farr value and certain other assets and habilities on an alternative basis — most significantly post-retirement schemne labiiities are valued on the
basis required by IAS 19

The Group’s significant accounting policies are set out below These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements and by all Group entities

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Adopted IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgements
The directors consider the potential key areas of judgements required to be made In applying the Group's accounting policies to be

+ Alarge prepertion of the Group's activities relate to long-term aftermarket contracts The determination of appropriate accounting policies for
recognising revenue and costs in respect of these contracts requires judgement, In particular (1) whether an aftermarket contract 1s knked, for
accounting purposes, to the retated sale of original equipment and (1) the appropriate measure of stage of completion of the contract

. Where the Group participates (n the financing of original equipment, judgement is required to determine whether revenue should be recognised or
whether the transaction results in the consolidation of a special purpose financing entity

. As set out n note 7, the Group has significant intangible assets The decision as to when to commence capitalisation of development costs and
whether sales of oniginal equipment give rise to recogrisable recoverable engine costs 15 a key judgement

. A set out (n note 21, the Group has contingent liabilites in respect of financing support provided to customers Judgement 15 required 1o assess the
Iikelihcod of these crystallising, In order to assess whether a provision should be recognised

Key sources of estmation uncertainty in applying the Group's accounting pohcies are described on page 62

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all of 1ts subsidiary undertakings made up to December 31,
together with the Group's share of the results of joint ventures and associates up to December 31

A subsidiary 1s an entity controlled by the Company Control exists when the Company has the powey, directly or ndirectly, to govern the financial
and operating policies of the entity sc as to derive benefits from its activities

A joint venture 1s an entity in which the Group holds a long-term interest and which i Jjointly controlled by the Group and one or more other
venturers under a contractual arrangement An associate is an entity, being neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture, in which the Group holds a
long-term interest and where the Group has a signficant influence The results of joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting

Any subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures or assectates sold or acquired duning the year are included up 1o, or from, the dates of change of control

Allinira-group transactions, balances, Income and expenses are ehminated on consolidation Adjustments are made to eliminate the profit or loss
afising on transactions with Joint ventures and associates 1o the extent of the Group’s interest In the enuity
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[ 1 ][ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) |

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition
Revenues comprise sales to outside customers after discounts, excluding value added tax

Sales of products are recognised when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred 1o the customer, the sales price
agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured On occasion, the Group may participate in the financing of engines in comjunction with arframe
manufacturers, most commonly by the provision of guarantees as descnbed in note 21 In such circumstances, the conungent obligations arising
under these arrangements are taken Into account 1n assessing whether significant nisks and rewards of ownership have been transferred 1o the
customer Where it 1s judged that sufficient nisks and rewards are not transferred, the transaction 1s treated as a leasing transaction, resulting in an
operating lease between the Group and the customer No deliveries of engines were treated as operating leases during 2010 Depending on the
specific circumstances, where applicable, the financing arrangements may result in the consolidation of the entity established to faciltate the
financing Such special purpose entities will be consolidated as required by Adopted IFRS No such entities were consolidated at December 31, 2010

Sales of services are recogmsed by reference 1o the stage of compleuon based on services performed to date The assessment of the stage of
completion 1s dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs incurred to the extent these relate to services perfermed
up to the reporting date, achieverment of contractual milestones where appropriate, of flying hours or equivalent for long-term aftermarket
arrangements

Linked sales of products and services are treated as a single contract where these components have been negotiated as a single commercial package
and are so closely interrelated that they do not aperate independently of each cther and are considered to form a single project with an overal! profit
margin Revenue 1s recogrised on the same basis as for other sales of products and services as described above

Provided that the cutcome of construction contracts can be assessed with reasonable certainty, the revenues and costs on such contracts are
recognised based on stage of completion and the overall contract profitability

Full provision 1s made for any estimated losses to completion of contracts having regard to the overall substance of the arrangements

Progress payments received, when greater than recorded revenue, are deducted from the value of work in progress except to the extent that
payments on account exceed the value of work In progress on any contract where the excess 15 ncluded i trade and other payables The amount by
which recorded revenue of leng-term contracts 15 In excess of payments on account is classfied! as amounts recoverable on contracts and 1s
separately disclosed within trade and cther receivables

Risk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs)

From time-to-time, the Group enters into arrangements with partners who, In return for a share in future programme revenues or profits, make cash
payments that are not refundable Cash sums receved, which reimburse the Group for past expenditure, are credited to other operating income

The arrangements also require partners © undertake development work and/or supply components for use in the programme at their own expense
No accounting entries are recorded where partners undertake such development work or where programme components are supplied by partners
because no obligation arises unless and until programme sales are made, Instead, payments to partners for their share in the programme are charged
to cost of sales as programme revenues arise

The Group has arrangements with partners who do not undertake deveiopment work or supply parts Such arrangements are considered to be i
financial instruments as defined by IAS 32 Ftnancial Instruments Presentation and are accounted for using the amortised cost method

Government [nvestment
Where a government or similar body has previously invested in a development programme, the Group treats payments to that body as royalty !
payments, which are matched o related sales

Government grants

Government grants are recognised In the Income staternent so as 1o match them with the related expenses that they are intended to compensate
Where grants are received in advance of the related expenses, they are included in the batance sheet as deferred income Non-monetary grants are
recognised at far value

Interest

Interest recewvable/payable is credited/charged to the Income statement using the effective interest method Where borrowing costs are attnbutable
1o the acquisition, construction or production of a qualfying asset, such costs are capitalised as part of the specific asset
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Taxation
The tax charge on the profit or lass for the year compnses current and deferred tax Current tax 1s the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment ta tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amaunts of the assets
and habilives for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes

Deferred 1ax labiities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidsanies and joint ventures, except where the
Group 15 able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 11 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future Deferred tax 1s not recognised on taxable temporary differences arising on the imitial recognition of goodwill or for temporary differences
ansing from the inmal recogmuon of assets and habilitees in @ transaction that 1s not a business combination and that affects nerther accounting nor
taxable profit

Deferred tax s calculated using the enacted or substantively enacted rates that are expected to apply when the asset or hability 15 settled Deferred
tax 1s charged or credited in the mcome statement or statement of comprehensive income as appropriate, except when it relates to items credited or
charged directly to equity :n which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets are recogrused only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the assets can
be utilised

Foreign currency translation

Transactions 1n overseas currencies are translated into local currency at the exchange rates ruling on the date of the transacuon Monetary assets and
liabilities denorminated in foreign currencies are translated into local currency at the rate ruling at the year end Exchange differences arising on foreign
exchange transactons and the retranslation of assets and habiliues into sterling at the rate ruling at the year end are taken into account 1n determining
profit before taxation

The trading results of overseas undertakings are translated at the average exchange rates for the year The assets and labilities of overseas
undertakings, including goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the year énd
Exchange adjustments arising from the retranslaton of the opening net investments, and from the ranslauon of the profits or losses at average rates,
are taken to equity

Financial instruments
IAS 3G Ainancial instrummenits Recogmibon and Measurement requires the classification of financial instruments nto separate categories for which the
accounting requirement is different The Group has classified its inanciat instruments as follows

- Short-term tnvestments are classified as available for sale, If designated upon initral recognition

- Short-term deposits {principally compnising funds held with banks and other financial institutions), tade recevables and short-term investments not
designated as avallable for sale are classified as loans and receivables

+ Borrowings, trade payables, financial RRSPs and C Shares are classified as other liabilities

« Dervatives, comprising forergn exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps are classified as held for trading

Financial Instruments are recognised at the contract date and initially measured at fair value Their subsequent measurement depends on their
classification

- Loans and recewvables and other habiliies are held at amorused cost and not revalued {except for changes in exchange rates which are included in
the income statement) untess they are included In a farr value hedge accounting refationship Where such a relationship exists, the instruments are
revalued in respect of the nisk being hedged if instruments held at amortised cost are hedged, generally by interest rate swaps, and the hedges are
effective, the carrying values are adjusted for changes in fair value, which are included in the income staternent

- Available for sate assets are held at fair value Changes in fair value ansing from changes in exchange rates are included in the income statement
All other changes i farr value are taken to equity On disposal, the accumulated changes in value recorded in equity are included in the gain or loss
recorded i the iIncome statement

- Held for rading instruments are held at farr value Changes m farr value are included in the income statement unless the instrument s included in a
cash flow hedge If the instruments are Included 1n a cash flow hedging relavienship, which 1s effecuve, changes in value are taken to equity When
the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement

Financial instruments are derecogmised on expiry or when all contractual nghts and obhigations are transferred
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Hedge accounting
The Group does not apply hedge accounting In respect of forward foreign exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast
transactions denorminated in foreign currencies

The Group does not apply hedge accounting in respect of commodity swaps held 1o manage the cash flow exposures of forecast transactions in
those commodities

The Group applies hedge accounting in respect of transactions entered Into to manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of its borrowings
Forward foreign exchange contracts are held to manage the farr value exposures of borrawings denominated in foreign currencies and are
designated as farr value hedges Interest rate swaps are held 1o manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as farr value or cash flow
hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively

Changes in the fair values of denvatives designated as fair value hedges and changes in farr value of the related hedged rtem are recognised directly
in the Income statement

Changes in the farr values of denvatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effective are receg nised directly in equity Any
ineffectiveness in the hedging relationships 1s included in the income staterment The amounts deferred in equity are recogrised in the incorme
statement to match the recognition of the hedged item

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 15 sold, terminaied, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting
Atthat ume, for cash flow hedges and if the forecast transaction remains probable, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised
In equity 1s retained In equity untl the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transactuon 1s no longer expected 1o occur, the net cumulative gain of
loss previously recogmsed in equity is transferred to the income staternent

The portion of a gain or loss on an instrument used t hedge a net investment In a foreign operation that 1s determined to be an: effecuve hedge (s
recognised directly in equity The ineffectve portion is recognised immediately in the income statement

Until December 31, 2004, and as allowed by IFRS 1 Fist-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, the Group applied hedge
accounting for forecast foreign exchange transacuons and commodhty exposures in accordance with UK GAAP On January 1, 2005, the fair values of
derivatives used for hedging these exposures were included in the transition hedging reserve This reserve was released 10 the income statement
based on the designation of the hedges on January 1, 2005 The reserve was fully utihsed in 200

Purchased goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration for shares in subsidiary underiakings, joint ventures and assocrates over

the far value 1o the Group of the net of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed

§  ToDecember 31, 1997 Goodwill was wrtten off to reserves in the year of acquisition

W From January 1, 1998 Goodwill was recogmised within intangible assets in the year s which it arose and amortised on a straight-line basis overits
useful economic Iife, up to @ maximum of 20 years

v} From January 1, 2004, 1n accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, goodwill 1s recognised as per (i) above but 1s no longer amortised

Certification costs and participation fees

Costs ncurred 1n respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new <ivil aeto-engine/arcraft combinations and payments made to
arrframe manufacturers for this, and participation fees, are carried forward in intangible assets to the extent that they can be recovered out of future
sales and are charged to the income statement over the progiamme life, up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry into service of the product

Research and development
In accordance with 1AS 38 intangible Assets, expendiiure incurred on research and development, excluding known recoverable amounts on contracts,
and contributions to shared engineenng programmes, 1s distinguished as relatng exther to a research phase or to a development phase

Ali research phase expenditure 1s charged to the income statement For development expenditure, this 15 capitalised as an internally generated
intangible asset only If it meets sirict critena, relatng in particular to techmical feasibility and generation of future economic benefits

Expenditure that cannot be classified into these two categones Is treated as being incurred in the research phase The Group considers that, due to
the complex nature of new equipment programmes, it 15 not possible to distnguish reliably between research and development activities unti|
relatively late in the programme

Expenditure caprtalised (s amortised over its useful economic iife, up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry into service of the product
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Recoverable engine costs

On occasion, the Group may sell onginal equipment to customers at a price below 1ts cast, on the basis that this defcit wil! be recovered from future
aftermarket sales to the oniginal customer Where the Group has a contractual right to supply aftermarket parts 1o the customer and s intellectual
rights, warranty arrangements and statutory airworthiness requrements provide reasonable control over this supply, these arrangements are
considered to meet the definition of an intangible asset Such intangible assets are recogrised 1o the extent of the deficit and amortused on a
straight-line basis over the expected period of utilisation by the onginal customer

Software
The cost of acquinng software that 1s not specific to an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as an intangible asset and amoertised over
its useful economic life, up to a maximum of five years

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipmant assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for imparment in value

Depreciaticn s provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost, less the esumated residual value, of property, plant and equipment over therr
estmated useful Ives No depreciation is provided on assets in the course of construction Estimated useful lives are as follows

1) Land and buldings, as advised by the Group's professional advisors
a) Freehold buildings - five 1o 45 years (average 24 years)
b} Leasehold buldings - lower of adwisor’s estimates or perrod of lease
d Nodepreciation s provided on freehold land

1) Plant and equipment - five 10 25 years (average 13 years)

) Arrcraft and engines - five to 20 years (average 16 years)

Leases

) Aslessee Assetsfinanced by leasing agreements that give nghts approximating to ownership (finance leases) are capitalised at therr far value and
depreciation 1s provided on the basis of the Group depreciation policy The capital elements of future obligations under finance leases are
included as labilites in the balance sheet and the current year's interest element, having been allocated to 2ccounting penads to give a constant
penodic rate of charge on the outstanding hatulity, 1s charged to the income statement The annual payments under all other lease arrangements,
known as operating leases, are charged to the Income statement on a straight-line basis

W As lessor Amounts recenvable under finance leases are included within receivables and represent the total amouni outstanding under the fease
agreements less unearned iIncome Finance lease income, having been allocated to accounting periods to give a constant periodic rate of return
on the net iInvestment, 1s included in revenue Rentals receivable under operating leases are included in revenue on a staight-ine basis

Impairment of non-current assets
Impairment of non-current assets 1s considered 1n accordance with 1AS 36 imparment of Assets Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent of other assets, impar meni 15 considered for the cash-genesating unit to which the asset belongs

Goodwill and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually Other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
are assessed for any indications of tmpairment annually If any iIndication of impairment 15 identified, an mpairment test 1s performed to estimate the
recoverable amount

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of value in use or fair value less costs to sell, if this is readily available The value in use s the present value of future
cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the ume value of money and the rnisk specific to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated 1o be below the carrying value, the carrying value 1s reduced to the
recoverable amount and the impairment ioss recognised as an expense

tnventoties

Inventories and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first-in, first-out basis Cost comprnises direct materials
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and thase overheads, Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment, that have been incurred
bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition: Net realisable value represents the estimated selling prices less all estimated costs of
completion and casts to be incurred in markeung, selling and distnbution
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bark and in hand and short-term deposits with a matunity of three months of less on inception The Group
considers overdrafts repayable on demand) to be an integral part of its cash management activities and these are included in cash and cash
equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as & result of a past event, and it 15 probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the direcior’s best estimate of the expenditure required o settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is matenial

Post-retirement benefits

Pensions and similar benefits (principally healthcare) are accounted for under IAS 19 Employee Benefits For defined benefit plans, obligations are
measured at discounted present value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value The service and financing costs of such plans are recogrised
separately In the income statement, current service costs are spread systematically over the Ives of employees and financing costs are recogrised in
the periods inwhich they arise Actuanal gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive iIncome

Surpluses in schemes are recognised as assets only If they represent economic benefits avallable to the Group in the future A habulity 1s recognised to
the extent that the minimum funding requirements in respect of past service will give nise to an unrecognisable surplus Movements in unrecogrised
surpluses and minimum funding habilities are included in the statement of comprehensive iIncome

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

Share-based payments

The Group provides share-based payment arrangements to certain employees These are principally equity-settled arrangements and are measured
at farr value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The farr vatue 1s expensed on a sraight-line basis over
the vesting penod The amount recognised as an expense 1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares or options that will vest, except where
addiuonal shares vest as a result of the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) performance condiuion in the Performance Share Plan

Cash-settled share options {grants in the International ShareSave plan) are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date The Group recognises a
habihity at the balance sheet date based on these far values, taking into account the estimated number of apuons that wilk actually vest and the
relative completion of the vesting period Changes in the value of this liability are recognised in the income statement for the year

The farr values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as folfows

) ShareSave plans - using the binorual pricing model,

) Performance Share Plan - using a pricing mode! adjusted to reflect non-enutlement to dividends {or equivalent) and the TSR market-based
performance condition,

m) Annual Performance Related Award plan deferred shares — share price on the date of the award

See note 19 for a further description of the share-based payment plans

Contngent llabilities

in connection with the sale of its products, the Group will, on occasion, provide financing support for ts customers These arrangements fall into two
categories, credit-based guarantees and asset-value guarantees In accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 and IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts,
credit-based guarantees are treated as insurance contracts The Group considers asset-value guarantees 1o be non-financial iabilties and accordingly
these are also treated as insurance contracts Prowision 1s made as described above

The Group's contingent liabihties relating to financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers and a broad
product portfolio, and are reported on a discounted basis

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the above accounting policies, management has made appropnate estimates In many areas, and the actual outcome may differ from
those calculated The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant nsk of causing materal adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilimes within the next financial year are set out overleaf The esumaton of the refevant assets and habiliies involves
the combination of a number of assumptions Where appropriate and pracucable, sensivities are disclosed in the relevant notes
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Current economic environment

The current economic environment could IMpact a number of estimates necessary to prepare the financial statements, In particular, the recoverable
amount of assets and contingent habilines The Group has taken these factors Inio account In assessing the estimates set out below These matters aie
discussed in more detail in the Finance Director’s review

Forecasts and discount rates
The carrying value of a number of items on the balance sheet are dependent on the esumates of future cash flows ansing from the Group’s
operations, in particular

The assessment whether there are any indications of impairment of development, participation, cerufication and recoverable engine
costs recognised as intangible assets are dependent on forecasts of cash flows generated by the relevant assets {Carrying values at
December 31, 2010 £1,472m, Decernber 31, 2009 £1,290m)

« The Ainancial iizbilivies arising from financial risk and revenue sharing partnershups are valued at each reporting date using the amortised cost
method (Carrying values at December 31, 2010 £266rn, December 31, 2009 £363m ) This involves calculating the present value of the forecast cash
flows of the arrangement using the Internal rate of return at the iInception of the arrangement as the discount rate

. The realisation of the deferred tax assets (carrying value at December 31,2010 £451m, December 31, 2009 £360m) recognised 1s dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profits The Group recognises deferred tax assets wheie it 1s more likely than not that the benefit will be
realised

Assessment of long-term contractual arrangements

The Group has long-term contracts that fall nto different accounting penods In assessing the allocation of revenues and costs 1o iIndividual
accounting pencds, and the consequential assets and habrlries, the Group estimates the total revenues and costs forecast to anse In respect of the
contract and the stage of completion based on an appropriate measure of performance as described under revenue recognition on page 60

Post-retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pensian schemes and similar arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with 1AS 19 The accounting valuation,
which was based on assumptions determined with iIndependent actuanal advice, resulted in a net deficit of £856m before deferred taxaton being
recognised on the balance sheet at Decemnber 31, 2010 (December 31, 2009 £855m) The size of the net deficitis sensitive to the market value of the
assets held by the schemes and to actuanal assumpuons, which include price inflation, pension and salary increases, the discount rate used in
assessing actuarial habilities, mortality and other demographic assumptions and the levels of contributions Further details are included in note 17

Provisions

As described 1n the accounting policy above, the Group measures provisions {carrying value at December 31, 2010 £544m, December 31, 2009 £442m)
atthe directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date These estimates are made, taking account
of nformation avarlable and different possible outcomes

Taxation

The tax payable on profits 15 determined based on tax laws and regulations that apply in each of the numeious jurisdictions in which the Group
operates Where the precise impact of these laws and regulations 1s unclear then reasonable esumates may be used to determine the tax charge
included in the financial statements If the tax eventually payable or reclaimable differs from the amounts oniginally estmated then the difference will
be charged or credited in the financial statements for the year in which it is determined

Rewisions to Adopted IFRS 1n 2010

In 2010, the Group has adopted Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations (including Amendments to IFRS 3 in Improvements to IFRS (2009) and
amendments to IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financiol Statements were applicable for 201G The acquisiion of ODIM ASA (see note 23) has been
accounted for in accordance with the requirements of Revised IFRS 3 There was no retrospective impact

No other revisions to Adopted IFRS that became applicable in 2010 had a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements

Revisians to IFRS not applicable in 2010

Standards and interpretations issued by the 1ASB are only applicable if endorsed by the EU If endorsed, IFRS 9 Finanaal Instruments will be applicable
fram 2013 If endorsed, this standard wilt simplify the classification of financial assets for measurement purposes, but 1s not anticipated to have a
sigrificant impact on the financial statements

The Group does not consider that any other standards, amendments or Interpretatons issued by the 1ASB, but not yet applicable, wit have a
significant impact on the financial statements
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The analysis by business segment 1s preseated in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating segrnents, on the basis of those segments whose operating results
are reqularly reviewed by the Board (the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined by IFRS 8), as follows

Cvil agrospace - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of commercial aero engines and aftermarket services

Defence acrospace - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of military aero engines and aftermarket services

Marine - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of manine propulsion systems and aftermarket services

Energy - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of power systems for the offshore oil and gas industry and electrical

power generation and aftermarket services
Engineening and Technology, Operations and Services discussed in the business review operate ona Group-wide basis across all the above segments
The operating resulis are prepared on an underlying basis that excludes items considered 1o be non-underlying In nature The principles adepied are

Underlying revenues - Where reveriues are denominated In 2 currency other than the functional currency of the Group undertaling, these reflect the
achieved exchange rates anising on settled dervative contracts and exclude the release of the foreign exchange transition hedging reserve There s
no intersegment trading and hence all revenues are from external customers

Underlying profit before financing - Where transactions are denominated in a currency other than the functional cuirency of the Group undertaking,
this reflects the transactions at the achieved exchange rates on settled dervatve contracts and excludes the release of the foreign exchange
transiton hedging reserve

Underlying profit before taxation - (n addition to those adjustments in underlying profit before financing
Includes amounts realised from settled derivative contracts and revaluation of relevant assets and liabilities to exchange rates forecast to be achieved
from future settlernent of derwative contracts
. Exckedes unrealised amounts arising from revaluations required by 1AS 39 Financral Instrurments Recogmition and Measurement, changes in value
of financial RRSP contracts ansing from changes n forecast payments and the netsmpact of financing costs related w post-employment
scheme benefits
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This analysis also includes a reconcihation of the underlying results to those reported in the consohdated income statement

Total
Chvll Defence reportable
aerospace aerospace Marine Energy segments
Year ended December 31, 2010 £m £m £m £m £m
Underlying revenue from sale of onginal equipment 1,892 1,020 1,719 67 5,322
Underlying reverue from aftermarket services 3,027 1,103 872 542 5,544
Tota! underlying revenue 4,912 2,123 2,591 1,233 10,866
Underlying operaung profit excluding share of restlts of joint ventures and associates 315 _ 300 330 18 963
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 77 9 2 5 93
Profit on disposal of businesses - - - 4 4
Undetrlying profit before financing and taxation 392 309 332 27 1,060
Segment assets 7,783 1,361 2,360 1,154 12,658
Investments In Joint venturgs and asscciates 372 {15) 6 30 393
Segment habilities (5,528} (1,915) {1,608) {774) {9,825)
Net assets 2,627 {569) 758 410 3,226
Investment In Intangible assets property, plant and equipment and jont ventures and associates 568 53 65 16 702
Depreciation and amortisation 246 35 58 28 367
Year ended December 31 2009
Underlying revenue from sale of onginal equipment 1855 64 1,804 558 5181
Underlying revenue from aftermarket services 28626 1046 785 470 4,527
Total underlying revenue 4,481 2010 2589 1,028 10108
Undertying operating profit excluding share of results of joint ventuses and associates 409 247 263 23 942
Shara of results of joint ventures and associates 82 6 - 5 93
Profit/{loss) on chsposal of businesses 2 - - (4) 2
Underlying profit before inancing and taxation 493 253 263 24 1033
Segment assets 7 369 1,83 23N 1,007 11878
Investments In Joint ventures and associates n 62 77 27 437
Segment labiiuies 4907) (1,572} (1,737) 492 (8,708)
Net assets 2733 (329 661 542 3607
Investment in intangible assets, property plant and equipment and joint ventures and associates 522 56 122 20 720
Depreciation and amortisation 209 34 46 26 315

As noted in the Finance Director s review on page 36, 2010 profit before financeng for owil aerospace includes a charge associated with the Trent 900 failure on an

Awrbus A380 This has reduced profit before financing by £56m
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Reconcaliation to reported results

Total Underlying
reportable central Total Underying
segments Items underlying | adjustments Group
Year ended December 31, 2010 £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue from sale of onginal equipment N 5322 - 5322 1z 5,434
Revenue from aftermarket services 5,544 = 5,544 107 5,651
Total revenue 10,866 - 10,866 219 11,085
Operating profit excluding share of results of joint ventures and associates 963 (say 913 124 1,037
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 93 - 93 - 93
Profit on disposal of businesses 4 - 4 - 4
Profit before financing and taxation 1,060 (50) 1,010 124 1,134
Net financing 54) (54) (377) 431)
Profit before taxation {104} 956 {253) 703
Taxaton [236) (236) 77 (159}
Profit for the year (340) 720 {176) 544
Year ended December 31, 2009
Revenue from sale of onginat equipment 5181 - 5181 128 5309
Revenue from aftermarket services 4927 - 4,927 178 5108
Total revenue 10108 - 10,308 306 10414
Operating profit excluding share of results of joint ventures and associates 942 (50y° 892 189 1083
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 93 - 93 - 93
Loss on disposal of businesses {2) - (2) - (2}
Profit before financing and taxation 1,033 (50) 983 185 1172
Net financing (68) (68) 1,853 1,785
Profit before taxation R Lo (18 915 2,042 2,957
Taxatton (187) {187) (553) (740)
Profit for the year (305) 728 3 489 2217
' Central corporate costs
Underlying adjustments
2010 2009
Profit Profit
before Net before Net
Revenue financing financing Taxatlon Revenue financing financing Taxation
£ £m £m £m [l £m fm £m
Underlying performance 10,866 1,010 (54) (236) 10108 983 68) (187}
Release of transition hedging reserve - - - - 27 27 - -
Recognise revenue at exchange rate on date of transaction 219 - - - 279 - - -
Realised losses/(gamns) on settled dervative contracts ' - 180 (7) - - 274 &0 -
Net unrealised fair value changes ta denvative contracts ? - - (347) - - 14 1835 -
Effect of currency on contract accounting . - {56} - - - (126) - -
Revaluation of trading assets and habiliues - - - - .- 7 -
Financizl RRSPs — foreign exchange differences and changes in
forecast payments - - {6) - - - 72 -
Net post-retirement scheme financing - - 31 - - - s7) -
Related tax effect - - - 77 - - - (553)
Total underlying adjustments 219 124 (377) 17 306 189 1,853 (553)
Eg_orted per consolidated income statement 11,085 1,134 {431) (159) 10414 1172 1785 {740)

' Realsed losses/(gains) on settled denvative contracts included in profit before tax
- includes £2m of reahised losses (2006 £15m) deferred from prior years,

_ excludes £5m of losses (2009 gains of £6m} realised in the year on dedvative ConUacts settied in respect of trading cash

In pror years in respect of cancelled consracts,

_ excludes £10m of reatrsed gains (2009 rd in respect of denvatives held ia far value hedges and nil (2009 £14m realised lossas) in respect of demvauives held in net investment hedges

? The adjustment for unrealised fair valug changes included in profit before finanang includes the reversal of nil (2009 £5m unrealised gans) 1
companies and mil {2009 £9m unrealised tosses) for which the related trading contracts have been cancelled and consequently the fair valug
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[ 2 ][SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)]

2010 2009
£m £m
Reportable segment assets 12,658 11,878
investrnents In joint ventures and associates 393 437
Eliminations . B } n (823) {457)
Cash and cash equivalents and short 1erm investments 3,186 2,962
Faur value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 198 224
Income 1ax assets . 457 372
Post reurement scheme surpluses 164 75
Total assets 16,233 15,451
Reportable segment hizbiliues . . {9,825} _ (8,708}
Eliminations 823 457
Borrowings R R _ (1,786} (1,913}
Income tax liabilittes (608) (533
Post-retirement scheme deficits (1,020} {330)
Total Habilities (12,416) {11627)
Net assets 3,817 3,864
Geographical segments
The Groups revenue by desuination 1s shown below
2010 2009
£m fm
United Kingdom 1,594 1,458
Norway 486 443
Germany . 413 483
Spain 23 233
Rest of Europe 1,251 1109
USA i} 3,096 2,895
Canada 299 275
China . . . 890 640
South Kerea 355 3n
Middie East and South East Asia 1,585 ) 689
Rest of Asia 228 226
Africa 109 144
Australasia 153 230
Other 395 283
11,085 10414
In 2010 revenue (included in all reportable segments) of £1,131m was receved from a single customer
The cartying amounts of the Group's non-current assets, excluding financiat instruments, deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit surpluses, by the
geographical area in which the assets are located are as follows,
2010 2009
£m £m
United Kingdom 2,925 2,764
North Amenca 611 467
Nordic countries B _ . 908 824
Germany 625 574
Other 344 289
5413 4918
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[ 37][NET FINANCING]

2010 2009
Per Per
consolidated consahdated
income Underlying income Underlying
statement financing’ statement fingncing'
£m £m Em £m
Financing income
Interest recevable .13 23 2 21
Fair value gains on foreign currency contracts (note 15) - - 1783 -
Financial RRSPs - foreign exchange differences and changes in forecast paymens {note 15} - - 72 -
Fair value gamns on commodity denvatves (note 15) 2 29 - . 52 -
Expected return on post-retirement scheme assets (note 17) 400 - 305 -
Net foreign exchange gains 1 - 43 -
453 23 2276 2t
Financing costs
Interest payable _ . {62 62} (64) (64)
Fair value losses on foreign currency contracts (note 15) 2 (370} - - -
Financial RRSPs - foreign exchange differences and changes in forecast payments (note 16) 6) - - -
Financial charge refating to financial RRSPs (note 15} _ a3 (13 (25} (25)
Interest on post-retirement scheme habilities (note 17) (431) - (402} -
Other finanging charges {2) (2) = -
(884) {77) 491} (89)
Net financing (431) (54) 1785 {68)
Analysed as
Net interest payable . . . : (39 39| _ (43) (43)
Net post-retirement scheme financing 31 - (97) -
Net other financing {361) (15} 1925 (25)
Net financing {431) (54) 1785 (68}
! See note 2
2Net (loss)/gain on items held for trading {341) - 1835 -
|4 |[TAXATION]
UK Overseas Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £rn
Current tax R _ . .
Current tax charge for the year {2) 26 174 129 172 155
Less double tax rehef (2 (29) - - (2) (29)
. 4) {3) 174 129 _170 126
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 1 (4) 2 (23) 3 {27}
3} &) 176 106 173 99
Deferred tax B
Crediti/charge for the year (53} 628 41 21 (12) 649
Adjustments n respect of prior years L~ a2 . 1 4 L1 . @
Credit ansing from reduction in UK tax rate 3 - - - 13} -
{56) 616 42 25 {14) 641
Recognised in the income statement {59) 609 218 131 159 740
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[4 J[TAXATION (CONTINUED)]

Other tax credits/(charges)

od Equl
2010 2009 2010 gﬁg“‘
£m £m £m £m
Deferred tax
net actuanial {losses)/gains on post-reurement schemes ~ 3 342 - -
movement In unrecegrised surplus on post-retirement schemeas 8 {198} - -
movement In minimum funding hability (13) (o - -
release of ransition hedge reserve - 8| - -
share-based payment plans - - 5 1
net iInvestment hedge {2) - - -
29 141 5 1
Tax reconcihation
2010 2009
£m £m
Profit before taxation R R 703 2957
Less share of results of joint ventures and associates (note 9) {93) (93)
Profit before taxatien excluding joint ventures and associates 610 2,854
Norminal tax charge at UK corporation tax rate 28 0% (2009 28 0%) ” 802
UK RRD credit R (29) (26)
Rate differences ; 16 7
Other permanent differences 2 5
Benefit to deferred tax from previously unrecognised tax losses and temporary differences _ 15 21)
Tax losses In year not recogrused in deferred tax 3 8
Adjustments in respect of prior years ) . .4 (33)
Reduction in closing deferred taxes resuituing from decrease in UK tax rate 3) -
159 740
Analysis of taxation charge
Underlying items (note 2) _ 236 187 _
Non-underlying items 77 553
159 740
Deferred taxation assets and habilities
2010 2009
£m £m
AL January 1 (6) 497
Amount credited/(charged) 1o iIncome statement 14 641)
Amount credued te other comprehensive income R 29 141
Amount credited 1o equity 5 1
Acquisition of businesses . - (32} -
Exchange differences 3 4)
At December 31 13 6)
Analysed as
Deferred tax assets 451 360
Deferred tax habihues (438} (366}
13 &)
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[ 4 J[TAXATION (CONTINUED)]

The analysis of the geferred tax position is as follows

At Recognised At
January 1, in income Recognised Recognised Acquisition Excthange | December 31,
2010 statement in0Q inequity of businesses differences 2010
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Intangible assets R . . (250) {19 - - an (2) (282)
Property, plant and equipment (160) 10 - - - - (150}
Qther temporary differences _ (22) (25 - 5 (21) (m (64}
Amournts recoverable on contracts {243) 14 - - - - (229}
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits 265 39) 3 - - 6 263
Foreign exchange and commodity financial assets and lizbilities 54 40 - - - - 94
Losses 286 33 2) - - - 317
Advance corporation 1ax 64 - - - - - 64
5 14 29 S (32) 3 13
AL Recogrised At
Jamuary 1, inincome Recognised Recognised AcQuisition Exchange | December 31
2009 statemant n OCt nequly  of businesses differences 2009
£m fm £m £m £m £m £m
Intangible assets . . 200 {53) - - - 3 (250)
Property, plant and equipment (146) (17 - - - 3 (160
Other temporary differences (31) 2 - ) - g (22)
Amounts recoverable on contracts (195) (48) - - - - (243)
pensions and other post-retirernent scheme benefits 168 {17) 133 .- - (19) 265
Forengn exchange and commodity financial assets and liabihties 655 (609} 8 - - - 54
Losses ~ 182 101 - 3 - - 286
Advance corporation tax 64 - - - _ - 64
497 641) 141 1 — (4} (6)
2010 2009
£m £m
Advance corporation tax 118 118
Losses and other unrecognised deferred tax assets 51 59
Deferred tax not recognised on unused tax losses and other items on the basis that future economic benefit Is uncertain 169 177

The Emergency Budget on June 22, 2010 announced that the UK carporation tax rate will reduce from 28 per cent to 24 per cent over a penod of four years from 2011
The fiest reduction in the rate from 28 per cent to 27 per cent was substantively enactad on July 21, 2010 and will be effective from Apnl 1, 2011 As this rate change was
substantively enacted prior to the year end, the closing deferred tax assets and habilties have been restated The resulting charges or credits have been recogmised in the

ncome statement except to the extent that they relate to items previously charged or credited ¥ OC or equity

Accordingly, 10 2010 £3m has been credited o the Income statement, £1m has been charged to OCland £1m has been charged directly to equity Had the further tax
rate changes been substantively enacted before the batance sheet date, it would have had the effect of reducing the deferred tax asset and liability by £27m and

£29m respectively
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[ 5 J[EMPLOYEE INFORMATION |

Restated*
2010 2008
Average number of employees .
United Kingdom 21,000 21,300
Overseas 17,900 17,200
38,900 38500
Civil aerospace 19,500 16,800
Defence aerospace . 6,900 7100
Marine 9,000 8300
Energy 3,500 3,300
38,900 38500
* Following 2 review of the allocation of employees in functions serving more than one segrment the 2009 figures have been restated
£m Em
Group employment costs '
Wages and salaries .. . R 1,847 1725
Social secunty costs 212 194
Share-based payments (note 19) 50 n
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits {note 17} 22 263
2,330 2213
' Remuneration of key management personnel 1§ shawn n note 22
6 |[AUDITORS REMUNERATION |
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and Its assooiates were as follows
2010 2009
£m im
Fees payable 1o the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company s annual financial statements ! 17 01
Fees payable to the Company s auditers and 1ts associates for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 26 41
Total fees payable for audit services _ a3 42
Fees payable to the Company’s auditers and its associates for other services R
Other services pursuant to legislation 02 06
Other services relating to taxatian 05 04
50 52
Fees payable in respect of the Group's pension schemes .
Audst 02 02
QOther services relating to taxation 01 1
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[ 7 J[INTANGIBLE ASSETS]

Certification
costs and Development Recoverable Saftware and
Goodwill  participation fees expend|ture englne costs other Total
£m £m £m £m £m im

Cost
At January 1, 2009 . 1013 .568 632 463 254 2930 |
Exchange differences (28) &)} @ - @ 3s) |
Additions - 66 121 _ 13 32 342 |
Acquisitions of businesses 6 - - - - 6 ‘
Disposals - - - - an AR} |
AtJanuary 1, 2010 . 991 631 751 586 273 3,232 |
Exchange differences 6 2 - - )] 3 |
Addiions - 57 m m 46 325 '
Acquisiions of businesses 18 - - - 96 214 '
Disposals - - - - (1} 1) |
At December 31, 2010 1,115 686 862 697 413 3.773 '
Accumulated amortisation . B
At January 1, 2009 5 163 176 250 48 644 [
Exchange differences - () - - m @ '
Charge for the year' . 2 13 29 46 31 121
Disposals - - = - 3 3) |
At January 1, 2010 7 177 205 296 75 160
Charge for the year’ - 13 27 55 35 130
Disposals - - - - [§)] (1)
At December 31, 2010 7 190 232 351 109 889
Net book value
At December 31,2010 1,108 496 630 346 304 2,884
At December 31, 2009 984 454 546 290 168 2472
AtJanuary 1 2009 1008 403 456 213 206 2286

' Charged o cost of sales except development Costs, which are charged to research and development costs
g

Rolls Royce plc Annual report 2010




[7 |INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)|

Goodwill
In accordance with the requirements of I1AS 36 Impairment of Assets, goodwill 15 allocated 1o the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expecied to benefit from the synergies of the business combinaticn that gave rise 1o the goodwill as follows

Cash-generating unit (CGU} or group of CGUs

Primary

reporting 2010 2009

segment £m im

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Lid & Co KG Crvil gerospace 236 244
Commercial marine ~ ansing from the acquisitions of Vinters plc and Scancinavian Electric Holdings AS Marine 657 645
Commercial manne - ansing from the acquisition of ODIM ASA Marine 114 -
Other Various 0 95
1.108 984

Goodwilt has been tested for imparment duning 2010 on the following basis

. The cairying value of goodwill has been assessed by ceference to value in use These have been estimated using cash flows from the most recent
forecasts prepared by management, which are consistent with past experience and external sources of information an market condiions Given the
long-term and established nature of many of the Group's products (product Iives are often measured in decades), these forecast the next ten years
Growth rates for the period not covered by the forecasts are based on a range of growth rates {2 0-2 5 per cent) that reflect the products, industries
and countries in which the relevant CGU or group of CGUs operate
The key assumptions for the impairment tests are the discount rate and, in the cash flow projections, the programme assumptions, the growth rates
and the Impact of foreign exchange rates on the relationship between selling prices and costs Impairment tests are perfarmed using prevailing
exchange rates

- The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 13 per cent {2009 13 per cent), based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital

The principal value in use assumptions for goodwill balances considered to be indidually sigrificant are

« Rolis-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG - Volume of engine deliveries, flying hours of installed fleet and cost escalation, these are based on current
and known future programmes, estrnates of customers'fleet requirements and long-term economic forecasts The principal fareign exchange
exposure 15 on translating US dollar income into euros For the purposes of the impairment test only, cash flows beyond the ten-year forecasts are
assumed to grow at 25 per cent (2009 2 5 per cent) The directors do not consider that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
would cause the value in use of the goodwill to fall below its carrying value The overall level of business would need to reduce by more than

45 per cent to cause an impairment of this balance

Vinters plc - Volume of equipment deliveries, capture of aftermarket and cost escalation, these are based on current and known future programmes,
estimates of customers fleet requirements and long-term econormuc forecasts The principal foreign exchange exposures are on translating tncome
in a vanety of non-funcrional currencies into Norwegian Kroner For the purposes of the imparment test only, cash flows beyend the ten-year
forecasts are assumed to grow at two per cent (2009 four per cent) The directors do not consider that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions would cause the value In use of the goodwill to fall below 1ts carrying value The overall level of business would need to reduce by
more than 80 per cent 10 cause an impairment of this balance

.

Otherintangible assets
Cerufication costs and participation fees, development costs and recoverable engine costs have been reviewed for imparment In accordance with
the requirements of 145 36 Impairment of Assets Where an impairment test was considered necessary, it has been performed on the following basis

- The carrying values have been assessed by reference to value in use These have been estmated using cash flows from the most recent forecasts
prepared by management, which are consistent with past experience and external sources of tnformation on market condittons over the hives of the
respective programmes
The key assumptions underlying cash flow projections are assurned market share, programme timings, unit cost assumptions, discount rates, and
foreign exchange rates

. The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 11 per cent (2009 11 per cent), based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital

- No impairment Is required on this basis However, a combination of changes in assumptions and adverse movements in vanables that are outside
the Cornpany’s control {discount rate, exchange rate and airframe delays), could result in imparment in future years
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['8 |[PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT |

Land and Plant and Alrcraftand in course of
buildings equipment englines construction Total
im £m £m im £m

Cost ~
At January 1, 2008 787 2,350 171 245 3553
Exchange differences (17 (43) 2 ® 79
Additions 22 94 20 155 291
Reclassifications 30 78 5 {113) -
Transferred to assets held for sale (12) .- .- - 02
Disposals/wnte-offs {4) 52) (31 (3} (130}
AtJanuary 1, 2010 _BO6 2,387 163 276 3,632
Exchange differences ] 16 - 1 23
Additiens 1Al 94 35 221 361
Acquisibon of businesses 17 N 7 - - 24
Reclassifications 41 108 5 (154) -
Disposals/wiite-offs ) (74) (14) 2) (94)
At December 31, 2010 877 2,538 189 342 3,946
Accurnulated depreciation N . .
At January 1 2008 218 1308 32 - 1,558
Exchange differences @ {25) . ) - (28)
Charge for the year® 25 156 8 - 189
Imparirment 4 1 - - 5
Transferred to assets held for sale (12) - - - (12
Disposals/write-offs (2) {82) (5) - (89)
At January 1, 2010 m 1,358 34 - 1,623
Exchange differences 4 n - - 15
Charge for the year 37 190 10 - 237
Disposats/wiie-offs m 62) 2 - (65)
At December 31, 2010 271 1,497 42 - 1.810
Net book value . .
At December 31,2010 606 1,04 147 342 2,136
At December 34, 2009 575 1029 129 276 | 2005
AtJanuary 1, 2009 569 1042 139 245 1995

' Depretiation charged dunng the year s changed to the income staternent or ncluded in the cost of inventory as approprate:
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[ 8 ][PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED))

Property, plant and equipment includes

2010 2009
im im
Net book vatue of finance leased assets . . .
Land and buildings 8 g
Plant and equipment 5 6
Aucraft and engines - -
Assets held for use in operating leases
Cost ~ . . 159 . 133
Depieciation (35) (31}
Net book value 124 102
Capual expenditure commitments 215 146
Cost of fully depreciated assets 584 473
[ 9 |[INVESTMENTS]
Equity accounted
Joint ventures Assoclates Total Other unlisted
£m £m £Em Em
At January 1, 2009 345 - 345 53
Exchange differences . B33 4 (29 -
Additons 16 7 87 2
Taxation paid by the Group 2 - 2 -
Impairment . . m - | R
Share of retained profit 18 n 17 -
Transferred to other investments @ - 4) 4
Share of OCl of joint ventures and associates 20 - 20 -
At January 1, 2010 363 74 437 58
Exchange differences 4 2 6 -
Addiions 16 . 16 o
Taxatan paid by the Group 3 - 3 -
Impairment (1 - (1) (2}
Share of retained profit 4 LI 15 -
Transferred to subsidiary ' - 77 77 -
Disposals . - - - {46)
Share of OC| of joint ventures and associates {16} - (16) -
AtDecember 31, 2016 393 - 393 11

' Dunng the year the Group acquired the 67 per cent of the shares of ODIM ASA that itdid not already own - see note 23
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['9 |[INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)|

The summarised aggregated financia! information of the Group's share of equity accounted investments 1s as follows

Joint ventures Assoclates Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 |
£m fm £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets 1,405 1143 - 62 | 1,405 1212
Current assets 1,161 812 - 38 1,161 850
Liabilities ?
Current fiabilities (1,151) (705} - (20 (1,151} (729)
Non-current liabilines (1,022) (883) -~ (13) (1,022) {896)
393 363 — 74 393 437
?Liabilties include borrowings of {1,043) 816) - {5) {1,043) {821)
Joint ventures Assoclates Tatal
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£m fm £m £m £im m
Revenue 2,914 2,555 26 15 2,940 2,570
Profit before fnancing and taxation 128 132 1 - 129 132
Net financing (19 (26) - n (19) 27)
Taxation N7 {12 - - (7 12
Profit for the year recognised in the consolidated income staternent 92 94 1 (1 93 93
Dividends receved (68) 77) - - {68} (77
Retained profit 24 17 1 {1} 25 16
The pnncipal joint ventures are listed on pages 125 and 126
10][INVENTORIES |
2010 209
£m £fm
Raw matenals 377 358
Work in progress L 943 820
Long-term contracts work In progress 42 61
Firushed goods _ 1,024 1,163
Paymenits on account 43 30
2,429 2,432
Inventories stated at net reahsable value 202 138
Armount of inventory write-down 135 &3
Reversal of nventory write-down 2 5
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[11][TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES |

010 2009
£m £m
Trade recewvables 1,210 1,285
Amounts recoverable an contracts ! 1,580 | 1,524
Amounts owed by jointventures and associates 518 502
Amounts owed by parent undertaking - 71
Other recenables 449 401
Prepayments and accrued income 186 165
3,943 3648
Analysed as. R .
Financial instruments (note 15)
Trade recewvables and similar items . 1,801 1837
Other non denvative financial assets 419 382
Non-financial instrurnents 1,723 1729
3,943 3948
Trade and other receivables expected to be recovered in more than one year
Trade recervables 7 9
Amourits recoverable on contracts 1,176 1178
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 5 14
QOther recevables 56 35
Prepayments and accrued income 27 30
1,271 1,266
' The balance at December 31 2010 ncludes an allowance of £55m (2009 £43m) beng the directors’ best estmate of the loss that will eccur from the Groups contract with EPI Europvop
Internatonal GmbH to paricipate in the development of the TP400 engine for the As00M military transport aircraft
[12][CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS |
2010 2009
£m im
Cash at bank and in hand _ 1,646 1238
Short-term depaosits 1,212 1,722
2,858 2960
Overdrafts {note 13) (8) (4
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement (page 54) 2,850 2956
Cash held as collateral against third party obligations (note 21) 68 77
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[13}[BORROWINGS |
Lurrent Non current Total
2000 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m fm Em £m fm
Unsecured ~ R . R Lo
Overdrafts 8 4 - - 8 4
Bank loans ~ . . . . 1 2 _ 206 204 207 206
7 5% Notes 2016 £200m - - 200 200 200 200
584% Notes 2010 US5187m* - 120 - - - 120
6 38% Notes 2013 US$230m ! - - 162 155 162 155
£55% Notes 2015 US583m ! - - 60 57 60 57
z 4 /2% Notes 2011 €750m ? 642 - - 677 642 . 677
2 675% Notes 2019 £500m? - - 506 493 506 493
2 Secured ) 3 .
§ Cbligations under finance leases (note 20)* - - 1 1 1 1
g 651 126 1,135 | 787 1,786 1913
e ' These notes are The subject of nterest rate swap agreements under which the Group has undertaken 10 pay floating rates of interest, and currency swaps which form a farr value hedge
2 These notes are the subject of swap agreements under which counterparnes have undertaken to pay amounts at fixed rates of interest and exchange in cansideration for amounts payable at vanable rates
' of interest and at fixed exchange rates.
¥ These notes are the subject of swap agreements under which counterpartes have undertaken to pay amounts at fixed rates of imerest in consideravion for amounts payable at vanable rates of interest
*  Obliganons under finance leases are secured by related leased assets
[14][TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES |
Current Non-current
2010 2009 2010 2005
£m £m £m £fm
- Payments receved on account’! 1,560 1.550 475 544
g Trade payables 8N 861 - -
g2 Amounts owed to parent undertaking 250 - - -
b Amounts owed 1o joint ventures and associates . 267 276 7 L2
& Other taxaticn and sacial secunty 81 71 - -
- Other payables R 1,294 1,086 94 il
Accruals and deferred income 1,817 1,782 695 528
6,160 5628 1,271 1145
'Includes payrents recerved on account from jeint ventures and associates 258 200 243 259
Included within trade and other payables are government grants of £44m {2009 £31m) During the year, £2m (2009 £2m) of government grants were
released 1o the iIncome staternent
Analysed as
2010 2009
8 im Em
é Financal instruments {note 15)
@ Trade payables and similar items 2,212 2142
2 Other non-dervative finangial labihties . . 521 381
K=} Non-financial Instruments 4,698 4250
E 7,431 6,773
—lE
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[15][FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS]

This note should be read in conjunction with the Finance Direcior's review on pages 34 to 41

Carrying values and fair values of financial instruments

Asgets Liabifivies Total
Basis for Heldfor  Loansand Avaliable Held for  Amortised
g recelvabl for sale Cash trading cost
Notes falr value £m £rn £m £m £m £m im
At December 31, 2010
Unlisted non-current asset (nvestrments 9 A - 11 - - - - 1
Trade receivables and similar items 1 B - 1,801 - - - - 1,801
Other non-dervatve financial assets . " B | _ - 419 - - .- - 419
Dervative financial assets C 621 - - - - - 621
Short-term investments . . B - 328 - - - - 328
Cash at bank and in hand 12 B - - - 1,646 - - 1,646
Short-term deposits 12 B - 1,212 - - - - 1,212
Borrowings 13 D - - - - - (1,786) {1,786)
Derwative financial kabilities C - - - - (761} - {761)
Financial RRSPs D - - - -1 . - (266) (266)
Trade payables and similar items 14 B - - - - - 2,212} 2,212}
Other non-derivative financial hatihiuies 14 B - - - - - (521) (521)
621 3,771 ~ 1,646 {761) {4,785) 492
At Cecember 31 2009
Unlisted non-current asset investments 9 A - 58 - - - - 58
Trade receivables and similar items n B - 1837 - - - - 1837
Other non-dervative financia!l assets 1 B - 382 - - - - 382
Dervatrve financial assets, C 717 - - - - - 717
Short-term investments B - ~ 2 - - - 2
Cash at bank and In hand 12 B - - - 1238 - - 1238
Short-term deposits 12 B - 1722 - - - - 1722
Borrowings 13 D - - - - - {1913) (1913)
Derwatve financial labilines . C - - - - 673) - 673)
Financial RRSPs D - - - - - (363) (363)
Trade payables and similar tems 14 B | . = - - - - (2142)| (2142
Other non-dervative financial hatlities 14 B - - - - - (381) (384)
717 3,999 2 1238 (673) {4812} 484
Fair values equate to book values for both 2010 and 2009, with the following exceptions
2010 2009
Bock value Fair value Book value Fair value
£m £m Em im
Borrowsngs . R {1,786} (1,897) L (1913 (2012
Financial RRSPs (266) (296) (363 {390)

The farr value of a financial instrument 1s the price at which an asset could be exchanged, or 2 liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties
In an arm’s-length transaction Fair values have been determined with reference to available market information at the balance sheet date, using the

methadolegies described below
A These pnmanly compnse flgating rate convertible loan stock. The conversion conditions are such that fair value approximates 10 the book value

B Farrvalues are assumed t approximate to cost either due 10 the short term matunty of the insiruments o because the interest rate of the nvesiménts 1s reset after penod s not exceeding sex maonths.
C Fairvalues of denvative financial assets and labiliues are estmated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevaring interest rate curves. Amounts derominated in foreign currencies
are valued at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date These financial instruments are ncluded on the balance sheet at far value derved from observable market prces (Level 2 as defined

by IFRS 7 Finangial instruments. Drsclosures)

O Borrowing and financiat RRSPs are carned at amornised cost Far values are estimated by discounting expected future contracrual cash flows using prevailing interest rate curves Amounts denorminated 1n
foreign curmencies are valued a1 the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date For financial RRSPS, the contractual cash flows are based on future trading acuvty which 15 estmated based on

latest forecasts
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[15][FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) |

Carrying values of other financial assets and habilities

ex':::l\g: Commodity  Interest rate Total Flnandal
contracts contracts contracts derivatives RRSPs Total
£m im £m im £m £m
At December 31, 2010
Non-current assets n7z _ 18 36 37 - 3n
Current assets o8 10 142 250 - 250
Current labilities {38) (5) - (43) 39 (82)
Non-current lizbilities {713) (2) {3) (718) {227) (945)
{336) 21 175 (140) {266) {406}
At December 31, 2009 ~ R
Non-current assets 439 [} 197 637 - 637
Current assets ~ 72 4 4 80 - ac
Current fizbilimies (56) (12) - (68} (100) (168)
Non-current Labilities {589) (14 2) (605) (263) (868)
{144) (11) 199 44 {363) (316}

Foreign exchange and commodity finanaal instruments

The Group uses various financial Instruments to manage its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates The Group uses commodity swaps to
manage I1s exposure to movements in the price of commodites {jet fuel and base metals) The Group does not include foreign exchange or
commodity financial instruments in any cash flow hedging relationships for accounting purposes To hedge the currency nsk associated with a

borrowing denominated in US dollars, the Group has currency dervatives designated as part of fair value hedges

The farr values of foreign exchange and commodity instruments were as follows

Forelgn
exchange Commodity
Insti s instr

£m £m
At January 1, 2009 : (2181) (89
Movements (n fair value hedges ' (33) -
Movernents In net Investment hedges R (14) -
Movements in other denvative contracts ' 1,783 52
Contracts settled 301 26
At January 1, 2010 (144) (i}
Movements in fair value hedges '? . R 7 -
Movernents in other dervative contracts (370) 29
Contracts settled ! 171 3

At December 31, 2010 (336) 21

' Included in financing
7 Loss on related hedged items £7m (2009 £33m gain)
b Includes setttement of contracts held i fair value hedge relationships of £10m (2009 nil}
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Interest rate financial instruments

The Group uses miterest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate caps to Manage Its exposure 1o movements In interest rates

The fair values of interest rate financial iInstruments were as follows

Included in fair Other interest

value hedging rate finandal

Total relationships instruments

£m im im

At January 1, 2009 ~ 274 278 (4)
Movements In fair values '? 75) 77 2
At January 1, 2010 . . 199 201 (2)
Movements In fair vatues '? B (22) (21) (1)
Contracts settied 2) (2) -
At December 31, 2010 175 178 {3)

! Included n financing
7 Gain gnrelated hedged tems £21m (2009 £77m gain}

Financial risk and revenue shaning partnerships (RRSPs)

The Group has financial iabiliies arsing from financial RRSPs These financial habilities are valued at each reporung date using the amortised cost
method This involves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the internal rate of return at the inception

of the arrangements as the discount rate

The amortised cost values of financial RRSPs were as follows

2010 2009
£m im
At January 1 {363} (453)
Cash paid to partners 114 55
Additions . - (15}
Exchange adjustments included in OCI 2 ]
Fnancing charge ' (13 (26}
Excluded from underlying profit B
Exchange adjustments ' . (6) 45
Restructunng of financial RRSP agreements and changes in forecast payments ' - 27
At December 31 (266) (363)

' Included in finarking excluding rdl {2009 £1m) of finance charge capitalised in Intangrole assets

Risk management policies and hedging activities

The prinaipal financral nisks to which the Group 1s exposed are foreign curtency exchange rate nisk, iquidity risk, credit nisk, intecest rate risk, and

commodity price nsk The Board has approved policies for the management of these risks

Forexgn currency exchange rate risk — The Group has significant cash flows {most significantly US dollars, followed by the euro} demominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant trading entity To manage Its exposures to changes in values of future foreign currency
cash flows, SO as to mantain relatively stable long-term foreign exchange rates on seitled transactions, the Group enters into dervative forward

foreign currency transactions For accounting purposes, these denvative contracts are not destgnated as hedging mstrumernts

The Group a'so has exposures to the fair values of non-dervative financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies To manage the nisk of
changes in these fair values, the Graup enters into dernvative forward foreign exchange cantracts, which are designated as fair value hadges for

accounting purposes

The Group regards its interests In overseas subsidiary companies &s long-term investments The Group 2ims to match its translattonal exposures
by matching the currencies of assets and liabilities Where appropriate, foreign currency financial laliiues may be designated as hedges of the

net investimeny
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[15 |'FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) |

Liquidity risk — The Group's policy 15 1o hald financial investments and maintain undrawn commutted faciities at a leve! sufficient to ensure that the
Grougp has avallable funds to meet 1ts medium-term capital and funding obligations and to meet any unforeseen obligations and opportunities The
Group holds cash and short-term investments, which together with the undrawn committed facilities, enable the Group to manage its hquidity nisk
The profile of the maturity of the Group’s comrnitted facilities 1s shown in the Finance Director’s review

Credit nsk — The Group 15 exposed to credit risk to the extent of non-payment by either 11s customers or the counterparties of its financial instruments
The effective monitoring and controlling of credit risk 1s a key component of the Graup’s nisk management activities The Group has credit policies
covering both trading and financial exposures Credit risks ansing from treasury activities are managed by a central treasury funcuion in accordance
with the Group credit policy The objective of the policy I1s to diversify and mimimitse the Group’s exposure to credit nsk from its treasury actvities by
ensuring the Group transacts strictly with ‘BBB+ or higher rated financial institutions basec on pre-established limits per financial institution At the
balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credit nsk to individual customers or counterparties The maximum exposure to credit
nsk at the balance sheet date 15 represented by the carrying value of each financial asset, including dervative financial instruments

Interest rate risk — The Group's interest rate risk 1s primarily in relation to its fixed rate borrowings (fair value nisk), fleating rate borrowings, cash and
cash eguwvalents (cash fiow risk) Interest rate denvatives are used to manage the overall interest rate profile within the Group policy, which s 1o
maintain a higher propertion of net debt at floating rates of interest as a natural hedge to the net cash position These are designated as either fair
value or cash flow hedges as appropriate

Commedity nisk - The Group has exposures to the price of jet fuel and base metals anising from business operations To minimise its cash flow
exposures to changes in commaodity prices, the Group enters into dervative commodity transactions For accounting purposes, these dervative
contracts are not designated as hedging instruments

Other price nsk - The Group's cash equivalent balances represent investments in money market instruments, with a term of up to three months
The Group does not consider that these are subject to significant price risk

Denvative financial instruments
The nominal amounts, analysed by year of expected maturity, and farr values of denvative financial instruments are as fallows

Expected maturity Falr value
Between Between
Nominal Within one and two and After
amount one year two years five years five years Assets Liabilitles
£m £m £m im £m fm £m
At December 31, 2010
Foreign exchange contracts
Fair value hedges 175 - - 173 - 20 -
Non-hedge accounted 15,561 3,806 3,285 7427 1,043 395 (751}
Interest rate contracts
Farr value hedges 1,200 500 - 200 500 178 -
Non-hedge accounted 45 - - 46 - - (3)
Commodity contracts
Non-hedge accounted 138 60 43 35 - 28 (7)
17,120 4,366 3,328 7,883 1,543 621 {761}
At December 31 2009 . .
Foreign exchange contracts
Faiw value hedges ~ ~ . 80 106 - 128 46 3 -
Non hedge accounted 14,203 3.544 3184 6573 902 478 (645)
Interest rate contracts . .
Fau value hedges 809 116 500 §42 . 51 F| -
Non hedge accounted ~ 35 20 - - 15 - (2
Commodity contracts . ~
Non-hedge accounted 169 62 59 48 - 15 {26)
15 456 3843 3743 65891 1014 717 (673)

As described above, all denvative financial instruments are entered into for nsk management purposes, although these may not be designated as
hedging refationships for accounting purposes
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Dervative financial instruments related to foreign exchange nsks are denominated in the following currencies

Currencies purchased forward

Sterling US dollar Ewro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At December 31, 2010
Currencies sold forward
Sterting . - 175 - 35 210
1S dollar 13,195 - 1,161 642 14,998
Euro - - - 285 285
Other 76 35 106 26 243
At December 31, 2009
Currencies sold forward
Sterbing - 280 - 77 357
US dollar 11,508 - 1,094 810 13412
Euro - ~ - N n
Other 54 116 129 44 343
Other derivative financial instruments are denominated in the following currencies
2010 2000
£m im
Steriing 514 15
US dollar } 337 | 498
Euro 500 500
Other 33 -
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Non-derivative financaial instruments

Non-denvative financial instruments are denominated in the fellowing currencies

Sterling us dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At December 31, 2010
Assets
Unbsted non-current investments L] - 4 6 1
Trade recevables and simular iterns n2 1,120 210 159 1,801
Other non-dervative financial assets 155 46 40 178 419
Short-term investments 325 .- - 3 328
Cash at bank and in hand 445 614 156 431 1,646
Short-term deposits 853 20 317 22 1,212
2,091 1,800 727 799 5,417
Liabiltties
Borrowings (9056) (222) {656) (2) {1,786}
Financial RRSPs - (208) {58) - (266)
Trade payables and similar tems (1,040} (705) (219) (248} (2,212
QOther non-dervative financial liabilities (211) (166) (35) {109) (521)
(2,157) (1,301) (968) {359) (4.875)
{66) 499 {241} 440 632
At December 31, 2009
Assets _ . .
Unlisted non-current investments 49 - 4 5 58
Trade recevables and similar items 242 1175 225 195 1837
Other non-denvative financial assets 130 54 40 158 382
Short-term investments - .- - 2 2
Cash at bank and in hand 488 366 129 255 1238
Short term deposits 1517 1 192 12 1,722
2426 1596 590 627 5,239
Liabilitles .
Borrowings {893) (332) (683} (3) {1913}
Financial RRSPs - (303) {60) - (363}
Trade payables and similar tems {886} @11} 221} (224} {2,142)
Other non-derwative financial labiliies (187} {86) {23 {85} (381}
{1 966) {1,532} (587) {314) {4 799)
460 54 {397) 313 440
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Currency exposures
The Group's actual currency exposures after taking account of dervative foreign currency contracts, which are not designated as hedging instruments
for accounting purposes are as follows

Sterling S dollar Euro Other Total
Functional currency of Group operation £m £m £m £m £m
At December 31, 2010 o j j j
Sterling - 3 1 1 5
US dollar _ 1 - . n 164 16
Euro - n - (1 {2}
Other 1 - 1 2 4
Al December 37, 2009
Steding . - 2 - )]
US doltar 9 - . 6 4
Other - 4 (1) 4 7
Ageing beyond contractual due date
The ageing beyond contractual due date of the Group's financial assets 1s
Betwaen
tUp to three three months More than
months and one year oneyear
Within terms overdue overdue overdue Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At December 31, 2010 _
Unfisted non-current asset investments n - - - 1
Trade receivables and similar iems 1,505 180 86 30 1,801
Other non-derwative financial assets . . 396 19 1 3 419
Denvative financial assets 621 - - - 621
Short-term investments oL o 328 - - . - 328
Cash at bank and 1n hand 1,646 - - - 1,646
Short-term geposits 1,212 - - - 1,212
5,719 199 87 33 6,038
At December 31,2009
Unlsted non-Current asset INvestments 58 - - -L 58
Trade recenvables and similar tems 1,509 237 57 24 1837
Other non-denvative financial assets L. 363 . "o 3 2| 382
Dervaive financial assets N7 - - - 717
Shert-term investments . . . . 2 - - B - - 2
Cash at bank and 1n hand 1,238 - - - 1,238
Short-term deposits 1722 - - - 1,722
5609 251 70 26 5955
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Contractual matunty analysis

Gross values
Within Between Between
one one and two and After Camying
year two years five years five years Discounting value
£m £m £ £rm £m £im
At December 31, 2010

Borrowtngs (746) {68} (575) (887)| 490 {1,786)
Denvatve financiat habilities (43} {10 (525} (8} {75) {761)
Financial RRSPs 47} (39) {110} (152} 82 {266)
Trade payables and similar liems . {2,199} n L) (2} - (z212)
Qther non-dervatve financial liabiites {516} (3) (1} {1) - {521)
(3,551) {227) {1,215) {1,050) 497 (5,546)

At December 31 2009 N N
Borrowings m2 (203} (366) (1183)| 651 (1,913}
Dernvative financial labilities {66) (55 (424) (113) (1%) 673}
Pinanceal RRSPs . (118 (45) (109) (179)] 88 (363}
Trade payables and similar items {2,139) ) (n -1 - 2142)
Other non-derivative financial liabiues (377) (2) (1) {1) - (381)
(2812) (1007) {901) (1476) 724 (5472)

Interest rate nsk

in respect of income earning financial assets and interest bearing financial liabiliuies, the following table indicates their effective interest rates and the
periods in which they reprice The value shown is the carrying amount

2010
Period in which Interest rate reprices |
Effective 6 months More than
interest rate Total orless  6-12months -2 years 2 5years 5 years
9% £m £m £ £m_ £ £m |
Short term investments ' 11654% 328 327 1 - - -
Cash at bank and 1n hand ? _ 1,646 1,646 - - - -
Short-term deposits 3 1,212 1.212 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans
€5m floating rate loan EURIBOR+05 | {5) &Y - - - -
Cverdrafts * 8 8 - - - -
75m Indian Rupee Fixed Rate Loan 112467% m m - - - -
Interest rate swaps 72237% n 12 - - (13} -
£200m Noating rate loan GBP LIBOR + 0267 (2060) (200} - - - -
Unsecured bond issues
7¥a% Notes 2016 £200m 73750% (200)| - - - - (200)
6 38% Notes 2013 US$230m » 63800% | (162)] - - - (162) -
Effect of nterest rate swaps USDLIBOR+ 126 - (162) - - 162 .-
655% Notes 2015 US583m € 5500% {60) - - - (60) -
Effect of mterest rate swaps __ USDLIBOR+124 - L (60) - - 60 -
41£,9 Notes 2011 €750m 45000% (642)( 642) - - - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR+ 0911 - - - - - -
675% Notes 2019 £500m . __87500% |__ _ (506)] - - - - (506}
Effect of interest rate swaps GBFP LIBOR + 298 - (506) - - - 506
Other secured
Obligauans under iinance leases 5 Q000% {1} - - - -~ (1)
1,400 1613 i - {13 {201}

Rolls-Royce ple Annual report 2010




[15][FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) |

2009
Penod Tn which interest rate repnces
Effective & months More than
nterest rate Total or less 6-12 months 1 2years 2 5years 5 years
% £m £m fm fm £m
Short-term investments ! 86744% 2 2 - - -
Cash at bank and in hand 2 1238 1,238 - - -
Short-term depostts 1722 1722 - - -
Unsecured bank loans
€2 5m floating rate loan EURIBOR + 12 n n - - -
e€smfloaungrate loan EURIBOR +05] _ @) )] - - -
Qverdrafts * @) ()] - - -
75mindian Rupee Fixed Rate Loan 98167% (n 4)] - - -
Interest rate swaps R 61814% - 15 - - (15}
£200m floaung rate loan GBP LIBOR + 0 267 (200} {200} - - -
Unsecured bond issues
73%y% Notes 2016 £200m 73750% (200} ) _ - - - {2000
584% Notes 2010 US5187m 58400% {120 - {120) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR +1 159 - (120 120 - -
638% Notes 2013 US5230m 6 3800% (155) - - - {155) -
Effect of interest rate swaps _ USDLIBOR+126] -1 {155) - - 155 -
6 55% Notes 2015 US583m 6 5500% (57 - - - (57)
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 124 - (57) - - 57
4'/1% Notes 2011 €750m 4 5000% (6773} - - {677) -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0911 -1 677 - 677 -
6 75% Notes 2018 £500m 67500% (493) - - - (493)
Other secured
Obligations ungder finance leases 5 0000% () - - - {1
1049 1758 - - (705}

' |nterest on the shorl e mvestments are at fixed rates

7 Cash a1 bank and n hand compses bank balances and demand deposits and earnsinterest at rates based on dally bank deposit zates.

3 Short term deposits are deposits placed on money markets for penods up to three months and eam interest at the respecive short term deposit rates
.

Overdrafts bear interest at rates hrked 1o 2pplicable LIBOR rates that fluctuate in accordance with local practice

Some of the Group's borrowings are subject to the Group meeting certain obligatians, including customary financial covenants If the Group fails to
meet 115 obligations these arrangements give rights 1o the lenders upon agreement, to accelerate repayment of the facliies There are no rating
tnggers contained 1n any of the Group's faciliies that could require the Group to accelerate or repay any facihity for a given movement in the Group's

credit rating

In addition, the Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities available as follows

2000 2009

£m fm

Expining 1n One to two years 250 -
Expering after two years 200 450
450 450
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Sensitivity analysis
The Group % exposed to a number of foreign currencies The most stgrificant transactional currency exposures are US dollar with sterling and
US dollar with euro

At December 31, 2010 if sterling had weakened ten per cent against the US dollar with all other vanables held constant, profit after tax for the year
and equity would have been £989m lower (2009 £864m) If sterling had strengthened ten per cent against the US dollar wath all other vanables held
constant, profit after tax for the year and equity would have been £809m higher (2009 £707m) There would have been no change to the underlying
results that exclude unrealised gains and losses on foreign exchange derivatives

At December 31, 2010 if the euro had weakened ten per cent against the US dollar with all other vanables held constant, profit after tax and equity

for the year would have been £82m lower {2005 £88m) If the euro had strengthened ten per cent against the US dollar with all other vanables held
constant, profit after tax for the year and equity would have been £66m higher (2009 £72m) There would have been no change to the underlying

results that exclude unrealised gains and losses on foreign exchange denvatives

At December 31, 2010 if the price of commodities had been ten per cent lower, with all other vanables remaining constant, profit after tax for the
year and equity would have been £11m lower (2009 £11m), arising mainly as the result of lower far value gans on denvative contracts If the price

of commodities had been ten per cent higher, with all other vanables remaining constant, profit after tax and equity would have been £1im higher
(2009 £11m}, ansing mainly as the result of hugher fair value gains on denvative contracts There would have been no change to the underlying results
that exclude unreaiised gains and losses on commodity derivatives

At December 31, 2010 the Greup had no material sensitivity to changes n interest rates on that date The main interest rate sensitivity for the Group
anises as a result of the gross up of net cash and this 1s mitigated as described under the interest rate nisk management policies on page 39
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At Acquisitions/ Unused Charged to At
January 1, Exchange disposals of amounts income December 31,
2010 differences businesses reversed statement Utilised 2010
£m £m im £m £m £m £m
Wareanty and guarantees . R 224 | 3 2 (5) R 107 (33) 298
Contractloss 58 1 - (6) 31 (12} 72
Restructuring 8 - - ] 14 (6} 14
Customer financing n - - - 16 {9) . 78
Insurance 45 - - - 14 {4) 55
Other 36 1 - {4} 3 3] 27
442 5 2 {17} 185 (73} 544

Analysed as
2010 2009
£m £m
Current liabilities 276 210
Non-current liabilities 268 232
544 442

Provisions for warranties and guarantees pnmarily relate to products sold and generally cover a penod of up to three years
Provisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected 10 be utilised within two years

Customer financing provisions caver guarantees provided for asset value and/or finanaing These guarantees are considered to De Insurance contracts
In nature and provision is made in accordance with IFRS 4 insurance Contracts and I1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilies and Contingent Assets These
guarantees, the risks ansing and the pracess used to assess the extent of the nisk are described under the heading ‘Sales financing” in the Finance
Director’s review on page 40 The related contingent liabilities ansing from these guarantees and the sensitivity to movements in the value of the
underlying secunity are drscussed in note 21 It 1s estmated that the provision will be utilised as follows

2010 2009
£ £m
Potenuial claims with specific claim dates . B
Inone year or less 8 3
In more than one year but less than five years 47 20
In more than five years . 6 El
Potenual claims that may anse at any ime up to the date of expiry of the guarantee
Up te one year . . . 9 19
Up to five years 5 4
Thereafter 3 4
78 71

The Group's captive Insurance company retains a portion of the exposures it insures on behalf of the remainder of the Group Significant delays occur
In the notification and settlement of claims and judgement 1s involved 1n assessing outstanding labilities, the ulumate cost and aming of which
cannot be known with certainty at the balance sheet date The insurance provisions are based on mformation currently available, however it is
inherent in the nature of the business that ulumate liabilities may vary Provisions for outstanding claims are established to cover the outstanding
expected lizbility as well as claims incurred but not yet reported

Cther provisions comprise a number of habilities with varying expected utisation rates
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The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes

For the UK defined benefit schemes, the assets are he!d in separate trustee administered funds and employees are entitfed 1o retrement benefits
based on either therr final or career average salanes and length of service

Overseas defined benefit schemes are a mixture of funded and unfunded plans Addtionally in the US, and to a tesser extent in some other countries,
the Group’s employment practices include the provision of healthcare and bfe msurance benefits for retred employees These schemes are unfunded

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuanies to December 31,
2010 The most recent funding valuations of the main UK schemes were

Scheme Valuation date
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund March 31 2009
Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme (provisional) . Apnl5 2010
Vickers Group Pensign Scherne (provisicnal March 31 2010
Amounts recognised in the income statement
2010 2008
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schernes schemes Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Defined berefit schemes
Current service cost . 118 34 152 94 29 123
Past service Cost - 1 1 2 4 6
Curtailment - (6} (6} - - -
118 29 147 96 33 129
Defined contribution schemes 11 32 43 8 29 37
QOperating cost 129 (1] 190 104 62 166
Financing in respect of defined benefit schemes
Expected return on assets (374) (26) (400) (285) 200 (305}
Interest on labiliges 375 56 41 355 47 402
1 30 N 70 27 97
Total income statement charge 130 N 221 174 89 263
The operating cost 1s charged as follows
Defined benefit Defined contribution Totat
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
fm £m £m Im £m £m
Cost of sales 106 94 n 27 137 m
Commercial and administrative COstS - . . 31 26 9 7 40 33
Research and development 10 g 3 3 13 12
147 128 43 37 190 166

The Group operates a PaySave scheme in the UK This is a salary sacnfice scheme under which employees elect to siop making employee
contributions and the Graup makes additiona! contnbutions in return far a reduction n gross contractual pay As a result, there 15 a decrease in
wages and salaries and a corresponding increase In pension casts of £35m (2009 £36m) in the year

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

2010 2009

£m Em

Actuanal gain/{less) on scheme assets 460 (270)
Experience losses on scheme liabrities . .. o N . (303)| _ (878
Mavement in unrecognised surplus . (300)) . . 707
Movement in minimum funding liability 49 40
(94} {401}
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Defined benefit schemes
Assumptions
The principal actuanal assumpuions used at the balance sheet date were as follows

2010 2009

UK Cverseas UK Overseas

schemes schemes schemes schemes

% % % %

Rate of inCrease in salanes 47 39 47 40
Rate of increase of pensions in payment ' . 30 17 33 22
Discount rate 55 . 54 57 59
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 50 72 54 74
Inflayon assumption 36 25 36 25

1 Benefits from UK schemes accruing afier Apal § 2005 are assumed to incréase in payment at a rate of 19 percent.

The discount rates are determned by reference to the market yields on ‘AA rated corporate bonds For the main UK schemes, the rate 15 determined
by using the profile of forecast benefit payments to denve a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve For less significant UK schemes and
overseas schemes, the rate 1s determined as the market yield at the average duration of the forecast benefit payments The discount rates above are
the weighted average of those for each scheme, based on the value of therr respective labilities

The assumptions have not been adjusted to reflect the UK Government's announicement in 2010 to change the basis for the indexation of
occupational pension schemes from the Retail Prices Index to the Consumer Price Index

The overall expected rate of return 1s calculated by weighuing the indisdual returns expected from each asset class (see below) 1n accordance with
the actual asset balance in the schemes’ investment portfolios

The mortality assumptions adopted for the UK pension schemes are dernived from the SAP actuaral tables, with 80 per cent of long cohortand an
underpin of one per cent, published by the Institute of Actuanies, projected forward and, where appropnate, adjusted to take account of the relevant
scheme’s actual experience The resulting life expectancies i the principal UK schemes are as follows

Life expectancy from age 65
Current pensioner 224 years
Future pensigner currently aged 45 24 2 years

Other demographic assumpuons have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends in scherne expenence and
other relevant data The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the penodic actuarial valuation of the schemes

Assumptions in respect of overseas schemes are also set in accordance with adwice from local actuaries
The future costs of healthcare benefits are based on an assumed healthcare costs trend rate of B4 per cent, grading down 10 5 0 per cent over five years

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2010 2009
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m £m im £m £m £m
Present value of funded obligatuions {7,039) (484) {7,523) (6714) (406} (7.120}
Fair value of schermne assets 7,783 434 8,217 7,048 354 7,402
. B . . . 744 (50) 694 | 334 (52) 282
Present value of unfunded obligations - 579 {579) - 417) @7}
Unrecognised surplus ' (628} {7) (635) (329) 6 {335)
Minimum funding biabiity 2 (336) - (336) (385) - {385}
Net hability recognised in the balance sheet (220) (636) (856} {380) (475) {855)
Analysed as
Post-retirement scheme surpluses . . _ 164 - 164 | 75 - 75
Post-retirement scheme deficits (384) (636) 1,020} (455} (475) (930)
(220) (636) {856} (380} (475) {855)

' Where a surplus has ansen on 3 scheme, in accordance with (AS 19 and IFRIC 14 the surplus 1s recogrused as an asiet only ff f represents an unconditional econormic benefit available 1o the Groupinthe
future Any surplus i excess of this benefit i1s not recogrised in the balance sheet.
1 Amimmum funding liabiity anses where the statutary funding requirements require future contributions in respect of past seenice that will result in 2 future unrecognisable surplus.

Rolls Royee plc Annual report 2010

Business review

Cther matters

Financial statements




Business review

Other matters

Financial statements

[17][POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) |

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

2010 2009
UK Overseas UK Qverseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At January | . (6,714) (823) (7,537} _ (5714 827} {6 546)
Exchange differences - 27 27 - 67 67
Cusrent service cost {118) (34) (152) (99) {29} (123)
Past service cost - m 1) 2 @ L. @
Finance cost (375) (56) (431) (355) 47) (402)
Contributons by employees 3 2 {53} . (3 3 {6}
Benefits pad out 313 a5 348 324 33 357
Actuanal losses {142) {161) (303} (865} n3) (878)
Curtalment - -] 6 - - -
At Dicimber 31 (7,039) (1,063) {8,102} {6714} (823) (7 537)
Funded schemes (7,039) (484) (7,523)] [GRAL} (406) {71200
Unfunded schemes - {579) {579} - (417) (417)
Changes in fair value of scheme assets
2010 2000
UK Cverseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m £m £m fm £m £m
At January 1 7,048 354 7,402 7163 283 7.446
Exchange differences - 16 16 - (16) (16
Expected return on assets 374 26 400 _ 285 20 305
Centnbutions by employer 227 55 282 232 56 288
Contnbutions by employees . 3 2 5 3 3 6
Benefits paid out {313) (35} (348) (324) 33 (357}
Actuarial gains/{losses) 444 16 460 (311) 4 (270
At December 31 7,783 4314 8,217 7048 354 7 402
Actual return on scheme assets 818 42 860 (26) 51 35
The fair value of the scheme assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return at December 31, were as follows
2010 2009
Expected Expected
rate of Market rate of Market
return value feturn value
o £m £m
UK schemes
LD portfolios * B 45 6,383 | 50 5736
Equities 75 1.204 78 1,107
Sovereign debt R 42 23 45 18
Corporate bonds o 52 22 55 8
Other 42 151 46 179
50 71.783 54 7,048
Overseas schemes
Equities . e 93 L. 237 | 93 154
Corporate bonds 45 170 47 136
QOther 69 27 65 4
72 434 74 354

' A portfoho of gits and swap contracts, backed by LIBOR generating assets, that 1s deskyned to hedge the majonty of tha interes: fate and inflation nsks associated with the schemes obligations

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group’s own financial instruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Group

The expected rate of return for LD partfolios i1s determined by the implicit yield on the portfolio at the balance sheet date
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[17][POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) |

The expecied rates of return on other indwidual categonies of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields In the UK, equities and
corporate bonds are assumed to generate returns that exceed the return from gilts by 3 25 per cent and 10 per cent per annum respectively

The expected rates of return above are the weighted average of the rates for each scheme

Future contributions

The Group expects to contribute approximately £300m to its defined benefit schemes in 2011

Sensitivities

The revised investment strategies are designed to hedge the nisks from interest rates and inflation on an economic basis A reduction of 0 25 per cent
I the discount rate would Increase the obligations of the principal UK defined benefit schemes by approximately £259m An equivalent movernent
In interest rates would increase the farr value of the assets by approximately £343m The difference arises largely due to differences in the pnincipal
methods used to value the obligations for accounting and economic purposes On an economic Dasis the correlation 1s in excess of 90 per cent

The principle remaining risks relate to the assumptions for morzality and increases in salanies If the age raungs in respect of the principal UK defined

benefit schemes were increased by one year, the scheme liabilities would increase by £119m If the rate of ncrease in salaries were 05 per cent higher,

scheme labilines would increase by £132m

The defined benefit obligation relating to post-retrement medical benefits would increase by £72m if the healthcare trend rate increases by one per
cent, and reduce by £58m if it decreases by one per cent The pension expense relaung to post-retirement medical benefits, comprising service cost
and interest cost, would Increase by £7m if the healthcare trend increases by one per cent, and reduce by £5miif it decreases by one per cent

History of defined benefit schemes

The history of the schemes for the current and prior years 1s as follows

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£m im £m £m fm
Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obhigations . (8.102})] (7537 . (6 546) 69| _ (6899
Fair value of scheme assets 8217 7402 7446 6903 5,906
Unrecognisad surpluses {635) {335) (1,042} 14 (2
Minimum funding habiliues {336) {385} {425} - -
Dehcit {856) {B55) (567) (123) (995)
Experience gains/losses
Actuanal gaing/(losses) on scheme assets 450 (270) 178 161 132
Expenance (losses)/gains on scheme hiabilities (303} (878} 766 350 470
Movement in unrecegnised surpluses (300} 707 {928) Mz -
Recogritian of minimum funding liability on January 1, 2008 - - {491) - -
Movement.n munimum funding habiliues 49 40 66 - -
Total amount recagnised in OCI (94) (401) {409) 399 602
Cumulative amounts recognised i OCH since January 1 2004 (192} (98) 303 2 313
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[18][SHARE CAPITAL|

Ordinary
shares Nominal
of 20p each value
Mlllions im
Issued and fully paid .
At January 1 2009 and December 31, 2010, 1631 326
{19 ][SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS |
Effect of share-based payment transactions on the Group’s results and financial position
2010 2000
£m £m
Total expense recogrised for equity-settled share-based payment expense a7 30
Total expense recognised for cash-settled share-based payment expense 3 1
Share-based payment expense recognised in the consclidated income statement 50 31
Liability for cash-settied share-based payment expense 5 2

Share-based payment plans in operation during the year
The Group had the following share-based payment plans, in respect of shares in its parent company, Rolls-Royce Group ple, in operation during
the year

Performance Share Plan (PSP}

This plan invalves the award of shares to participants subject to performance conditions Vesting of the performance shares 1s based on the
achievement of both non-market based conditions (EPS and cash flow per share) and a market-based performance condition (Total Shareholder
Returr - TSR) over a three-year penod

ShareSave share option plan {ShareSave}

Based on a three- five-year monthly savings contract, eligible employees are granted share options with an exercise price of up to 20 per cent below
the share price when the contract 1s entered into Vesting of the opuons 1s not subject to the achievement of a performance target In the UK, the plan
15 HM Revenue & Customs approved Overseas, employees in 33 countries participate in cash-settled ShareSave plans through arrangements which
provide broadly comparable benefits to the UK plan

Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP)
This plan involved the grant of market value share optians to participants It terunated 10 2009 and no further grants may be made Remaming
opuons under the plan are subject to a non-market based performance condition (growth in EPS} and have a maximum contractuad Ife of ten years

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

A proportion of the APRA annual iIncentive scheme 1s delivered In the form of a deferred share award The release of deferred share awards 1s not
dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditions, other than that participants remain employed by the Group for two years
from the date of the award in order to retain the fult number of shares Durning the two-year deferral period, participants are entitled to recerve
dndends, or equivalent, on the deferred shares
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[19][SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED))

Movements in the Group's share-based payment plans during the year

ShareSave ESOP PSP APRA
Weighted Welghted
average average
Number exercise price Number exercise peice Number Number
Millions Pence Mitlions Pence Milllons Millions
Quistanding at January 1, 2009 . . 257 303 21 177 132 28
Granted 1y 387 - - 101 23
Additonal shares accrued from reinvestment of C Shares - - - - - 01
Forfeited . Q3 ECY D (0F)) 209 ©n Qi)
Exercised {119 192 07} 213 42 07
Quistanding at December 31 2069 274 584 12 154 184 34
Exercisable at December 31, 2009 - - 12 154 -~ -
Outstanding at January 1, 2010 R 27 4 384 | 12 154 , 184 34
Granted - -1, ~ - 55 11
Addmgnal entitlernents ansing from TSR performance - - - - 06 -
Addmional shares accrued from reinvestment of C Shares . - - - -1, - 01
Forfeited (08) 395 - - 04 ©1)
Exercised {01 366 {05) 190 {4 6) {(14)
Qutstanding at December 31, 2010 265 384 07 125 195 31
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 - - 07 125 - -

As share options are exercised throughout the year, the weighted average share price duning the year of 579p (2009 386p} is representative of the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise The closing share price at December 31, 2010 was 623p, (2009 483 5p)

The average remaining contractual life of exercisable options 1s 17 years (2009 21 years)

Share options outstanding

ShareSave ESOP Total
Welghted Waelghted ‘Weilghted
average average average
remaining remalning remaining
contractual cantractual contractual
Number life Number Iifa Number life
Exercise price {pence) Millions Years Millions Years Millions Years
At December 31, 2010 B . .
0-99 - - 04 22 [ 22
100-199 - - 01 12 a1 12
200-299 . 45 01 [+ ] 03| 47 01
300-399 116 32 - - 116 32
400 -499 104 13 - - 104 13
265 20 07 17 272 19
At December 31 2009
0-99 . . . - - =-1. 05 32, 05 12
00 198 - - 02 171 02 17
200-299 o 48 N 05 12 51 1
300-399 - nue 42 - - 119 .42
400499 109 23 - - 109 23
274 29 j2 21 386 29

The range of exercise prices of options outstanding at December 31, 2010 was between 77p and 416p (2009 77p and 416p} For ShareSave it was

between 298p and 416p (2009 298p and 4i6p) and for ESOP 1t was between 77p and 218p (2009 77p and 218p}

Under the terms of the Roils-Royce 1999 Executive Share Option Plan, options granted to 30 directors and serior executives were outstanding at

December 33, 2010
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[19][SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) |

Fair values of share-based payment plans
The weighted average fau value per share of equity-settled share-based payment plans granted during the year, estimated at the date of grants
are as follows

2010 2009
PSP - 25% TSR uphfc . 586p | 253p
PSP — 509 TSR uphft . 654p | . 282p
ShareSave - 3 year grant nfa 144p
ShareSave - 5 year grant . . . nfa|_ 167p
APRA 537p 290p
In estimating these far values, the following assumptions were used
(14 Sharesave
2010 2009 2009
Weighted average share price R 545p 260p | _ 462p
Exercise price n/a n/a 387p
Expecied dividends 14 6p 147p | 143p
Expected volatility 33% 32% 6%
Correlauon 35% 35% n/a
Expected hie - PSP . 3years 3years | n/a
Expected ife - 3 year ShareSave nfa na| 33-38years
Expected life - 5 year ShareSave . nfa n/a| 53-58years
Risk free interast rate 1 9% 15% 24%

Expected volatility 1s based on the histoncal volatility of the Rolls-Royee Group plc's share price aver the seven years prior 1o the grant or award date
Expected dividends are based on the Rolls-Royce Group plc's payments to shareholders in respect of the previous year

PSP

The farr value of shares awarded under the PSP is calculated using a pricing medel that takes account of the non-entitlement to drvdends (or
equivalent) during the vesting penod and the market-based performance condition, based on expectations about volatlity and the correlation of
share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies, which incorporates into the valuation the nterdependency between share price performance
and TSR vesting This adjustment increases the fair value of the award relative to the share price at the date of grant

ShareSave

The far value of the options granted under the ShareSave plan 1s calculated using a binormial pricing model that assumes that participants will exercise
their options at the beginning of the six-month window If the share price 15 greater than the exercise price Otherwise 11 assumes that options are held
until the exprration of therr contractual term This results in an expected Iife that falls somewhere between the start and end of the exerase window

APRA
The fair value of shares awarded under APRA 1s calculated as the share price on the date of the award, excluding expected dividends
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[20][OPERATING AND FINANCE LEASES)

Operating leases
Leases as lessee

2010 2009
£m £im
Rentals pad - hwre of plant and machinery 82 68
— hue of gther assets 20 24
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
within one year 92 82
Between one and five years _ . . . 265 182
Afier five years 215 123
572 187
Leases as lessor
2010 2009
£m £m
Rentals recewved - credited within revenue from aftermarket services 29 2
Mon-cancellable operating Iease rentals arg recevable as follows .
Within one year 3 5
Between one and five years 10 "
After five years 3 5
16 21

The Group acts as lessee and lessor for both land and buildings and gas turbine engines, and acts as lessee for some plant and equipment

. Sublease payments of £23m {2009 £18m) and sublease receipis of £11m {2009 £11m) were recognised in the income statement in the year

« Purchase options exist on aero engines, land and buitdings and plant and equipment, with the period to the purchase option date varying between
one to five years

- Renewal options exist on aero engines, land and buildings and plant and equipment, with the period to the renewal option varying between one
to 21 years, at terms to be negotated upon renewal

+ Escalation clauses exist on some leases and are linked to LIBOR
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be made 1s £18m (2009 £14m) and sublease receipts expected to be receved 1s
£3m (2009 £4m)

Finance leases
Finance lease habilities are payable as follows

2010 2009

Payments Interest Prindpal Payments interest Principal

£m £m £m £m im im

Between one and five years 1 - 1 1 - 1

There were no contingent rents recognised as an expense In the year or prior year and there are no minimum sublease receipts under non-cancellable
subleases (2009 £4m}
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[21][CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS |

In connection with the sale of its products the Group will, on some occasions, provide financing suppart for its customers The Group's contingent
liabilities relating to financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of cusiomers and a broad product portfolio

Conungent habilities are disclosed on a discounted basis As the directors consider the likelihood of these contingent habilities crystalising 1o be
remote, this amount does not represent a value that 1s expected to crystallise However, the amounts are discounted at the Group's berrowing rate to
reflect better the ume span over which these exposures could anse The contuingent labihties are denominated in US dollars As the Group does not
adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast foreign exchange transactions, this amount is reporied, together with the sterling equivalent at the
reporting date spot rate

The discounted values of contingert habiines relaung to delivered arrcraft and other arrangements where financing 15 in place, less insurance
arrangements and relevant provisions, were

2010 2009

fm $m £m Sm
Gross conungent habikties o . 633 991 | 704 1,137
Centingent hiabilives net of relevant secunity * 121 190 134 217
Conungent liabilities net of relevant secunty reduced by 20% ? 200 314 233 376
1 Secunty includes unrestricted cash collateral of 68 106 77 124

7 Although sensitivity calculatons are complex, the reduction of relevant security by 20 per cent illustrates the sensitivity of the contingent hatxlity to changes in this assumption

There are also net contingent llabiiities in respect of undelivered arrcraft, but it 1s not considered practicable to estimate these as delwenes can be
many years in the future, and the relevant financing will only be put in place at the appropriate ime

Contingent liabihities exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, perfermance and
rehiability The Group has, 1n the normal course of business, entered into asrangements in respect of export finance, performance bonds, countertrade
obligations and minor misceltaneous tems Various Group undertakings are parties to legat actions and claims which anse in the ordinary course of
business, some of which are for substanual amounts These include claims, which are yet to be substantiated, received by EPI Europrop International
GmbH (EPN) in which the Group 1s a partner, which s developing the TP400 engine for the Airbus A400M aircraft As a consequence of the insolvency
of an nsurer, as previously reported, the Group 1s no longer fully insured against known and potential claims from employees who worked for certain
of the Group's UK based businesses for a peniod prior 1 the acquisiion of those businesses by the Group While the outcome of some of these
matters cannot be precisely foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after allowing for provisions
already made, to result in sigruficant loss to the Group

In 2010, the Launch Nations reconfirmed their commitment to the A400M programme, however, the Launch Nations and Airbus remain in final
negotiations to modify the existing agreement EP| and Airbus are simuitaneously in negotiations to modify their agreement in support of the
A400M The tming and outcome of these negotiations, and their possible impact on EPYand the Group, therefore remain uncertain In the event
that the programme were cancelled, at December 31, 2010, the Group's balance sheet did not inciude any net assets that would require imparrment
{2009 £17m)

As noted on page 47 of the business review, Rolls-Royce has commenced an action in respect of its swept fan blade patent Subsequent proceedings

have commenced against Rolls-Royce alleging patent nfringement 1t is not possible, at this stage, ta estimate the amount of any damages which
mught be awarded in favour of, or against, Rolls-Royce
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[22][RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS]

2010 2008

£m £m

Sales of qoods and services to joint ventures and associates 2,681 2,136
Purchases of goods and services from joint ventures and associates (2,163) (1 900)
Operating lease payments 1¢ joint ventures and associates (58) (45)
Guarantees of joint ventures' and assoCiates borrowings a3 15
Dhvidends receved from joint ventures and associates 68 77
RRSP receipts from joint ventures and associates 12 7
Other income received from joint ventures and associates 79 52

The aggregated balances wiih Rolls-Royce Group plc and joint ventures are shown 1n notes 11 and 14 Transactions with Group pension schermnes
are shown in note 17

in the course of normal operations, related party transaczions entered into by the Group have been contracted on an arms-length basis

Key management personnel are deemed ta be the directors and the members of the Group Executive, as set out in the Annual report of
Rolls-Royce Group plc Remuneration for key management personnel 1s shown below

2010 2009
im fm
Salaries and short-term benefits 13 11
Post-retirement schemes . . R 2
Share-based payments 8 4
23 17

Ralls Royce plc Annual report 2010

Business review

Other matters

Financial statements




Business review

Other matters

Financial statements

[23][ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS |

On April 7, 2010, the Group acquired 67 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of ODIM ASA (ODIM) Tagether with the 33 per cent of the 1ssued share
capnal already held, this gave Rolls-Royce control of 100 per cent of ODIM ODIM 15 a Norwegran marine technology company which develops and

salls advanced autamated handling systems for seismic and offshore vessels ODIM's technology and unique subsea and deepwater capability

complement the Group's existing activities Integrating ODIM's innovative technology and highly skilled people Into the Group will opumise the

Group's offening and provide the global customer base with a wider range of products and services in this impartant market segment

Recogmised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and habilities assumed

oDIM Qther Total
£m £m £rn
Intangible assets - software and other 96 - 56
Property plant and equipment 24 - 24
Inventones 16 - 16
Trade and other recevables 57 - 57
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - 12
Trade and other payables (46) - . (46}
Current tax labilities ) - 3}
Borrowings M - (1}
Deferred tax liatuhtias (33 - _ B2
Provisions (2) - (2
Totai identifiable assets and llabilities 121 - 121
Goodwill anising 115 3 118
Total consideration 236 3 239
Satisfied by
Cash consideration 159 3 162
Existing 33 per cent shareholding 77 - 77
236 239

Net cash outflow arising on acqulisition
Cash cansideration . 162
Less cash and cash equivalents acquired (12}
Cash gutflow per cash flow statement 150
Identifiable intangsble assets comprise .
Technology, patents and licenses 45
Customer relationships a6
Other 5

9

The farr value of the Group's 33 per cent interest in ODIM before the acquisitton was £77m The Group recognised a gain of £3m as a result of

remeasuring this interest, which 1s ncluded in the share of results of joint ventures and associates in the consolidated income statement for the year

ended December 31,2010

The goodwill ansing on acguisition of QDIM amounting to £115m (which s not 1ax-deductible} consists of anvcipated synergies and the assembled

workforce The synergies principally anse fram
increases in reveniue from the combination of the routes to market, and
cost savings from the combination of the supply chain and centrat functions

The gross contractual value of trade and other recervables acquired 1s £58m Atthe acquisition date, itis estmated that contractual cash flows of

£1m will not be collected

Acquisiwion related costs gncluded in commercial and administrative costs) in the consolidated income statement for the year ended

December 31, 2010, amounted to £2m
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[23][ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (CONTINUED) |

The acquisition of the controlling interest in ODIM contributed £205m of revenue and a £16m loss before tax (including amortisation of intang ble
assets arnsing on acquisition) to the Group's results for the peniod between the date of acquisiion and December 31, 2010

If the acquisition of ODIM had been completed on January 1, 2010, the Group's revenues and profit before tax would have been £11,132m and
£696m respectively

During the year the Group disposed of 1ts interests in a number of small businesses, as summarised below

Total

£m

Inventories 4
Provisions for iabilities and charges (4)
Net assets -
Profit on disposal of businesses . . 4
Proceeds deferred at December 31,2010 (4)
Disposal proceeds —
Receipt of proceeds deferred at December 31, 2009 2
Cash inflow per cash flow statement 2

Rolls-Royce plc Annual report 2010

Business review

Cther matters

Financial statements




Business review

Other matters

Financial statements

COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

[AT DECEMBER 31, 2010

2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3 607 569
Tangible assets L4 1,038 1041
Investments - subsidiary undertakings 5 1,753 1750
- Joint ventures 5 53 51
-~ other 5 - 49
3,451 3460
Current assets .
Stocks 6 1,227 1240
Debtors - amounts falling due within ene yaar 7 1,748 2183
- amounts falling due after ane year 7 878 932
Other financial assets - amounts falling due within one year 10 259 114
- amounts falling due after one year 10 376 646
Short term deposits 1,432 1,644
Cash at bank and in hand 644 663
Assets held for resale 9 9
6,573 7,431
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings 8 (770) CIR)]
Other financial labilues 10 (145) {158)
Other crediors 9 (5,164} (5093)
{6,079) (5762)
Net current assats 494 1,669
Total assets less current liabilities 3,945 5129
Creditors - amounts falling due after one year
Borrowings 8 (1,128) {1782)
Other financial habifities 10 (986) (896)
Other creditors ) {713} (773)
(2,827) (3451)
Provisions for liabilities and charges i1 (123) (99)
Net assets excluding post-retirement schemes } 995 L1579
Post retirement schemes - surpluses 13 458 237
- deficits 13 (35) (50)
Net assets 1,418 1766
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 14 326 326
Share premum account 15 631 631
Revaluation reserve 15 41 47
QOther reserves _ e . 15 Ll 67
Profit and loss account 15 253 595
Total shareholders' funds 1,418 1766

fin Robertson Charman
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

[FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010]

2010 2009
£m £m
Profit attributable to the shareholders of Rolls-Royce plc 3 1,937
Net actuarial gains/{losses) on post reurement schernes 302 (1176)
Moverment in unrecognised post-retirement suiplus _ . (89) 491
Related tax movements (81) 192
Total recognised gains relating to the year 193 1444
H
z
>
3
&
'
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
[FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201 0
2010 2009
£m £m
At January 1 1,766 331
Total recogrised gains for the year ~ L 193 | 1,444
" Dvictend paid (550) -
g Transfer from transition hedging reserve - (27
2 Share-based payments — direct 10 equity 9 Al
5 Related tax movemnents - 7
.56 At December 31 1,418 1,766
2
g
£
=4
:
=
£
2
U |
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ 1]|[ACCOUNTING POLICIES]

Basis of accounting
The financal statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards on the historical cost basis, madified to include
the revaluation of land and buldings

As permitted by the Companies Act 2006, a separate profit and Ioss account for the Company has not been included in these financial statements

As permitted by FRS 1 Cash flow statements, no cash flow statement has been prepared, as a consolidated cash flow staternent has been prepared by
the ultimate parent company

Revenue recognition
Revenues comptise sales to external customers after discounts, and excluding value added tax

Sales of praducts are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the customer, the sales price
agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured

Sales of services and lang-term contracts are recognised when the outcome of the rransaction can be rehably esumated Revenue is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion based on services performed to date as a percentage of the total contractual obhgaticn The assessment of the
stage of completion is dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs incurred to the extent these refate to services
performed up to the reporting date, achievemens of contractual milesiones where appropriate, or flying hours or equwvalent for long-term
aftermarket arrangements

Linked sales of praduct and services are treated as a single long-term contract where these components have been negotiated as a single
commercial package and are so closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other and are considered to form a single project
with an overall profit margin Revenue is recognised on the same basis as for other sales of products and services as described above

Full provision 15 made for any estimated losses to completion of contracts having regard to the overall substance of the arrangements

Progress payments received on long-term contracts, when greater than recorded turnover, are deducted from the value of work in progress except
to the extent that payments on account exceed the value of work 1n progress on any contract where the excess 1s included n creditors The amount
by which recorded wirnover of long-term contracts s 1n excess of payments on account 1s classified as ‘amounts recoverable on contracts’and 1s
separately disclosed within debtors

Government investment
Where a government ar similar body invests in a development programme, the Company treats payments to that body as royalty payments, which
are matched to related sales

Risk and revenue sharing partnerships {RRSPs)

From time-to-time, the Company enters (nto arrangements with partners who, in return for a share in future programme revenues ar profits, make
cash payments that are not refundable (except under certain remote crcumstances) Cash sums received, which remburse the Company for past
expenditure, are credited to other operating income The arrangements also require partners to undertake development work and/or supply
components for use In the programme at their own expense No accounting entries are recorded where partners undertake such development
waork or where programme components are suppled by partners because no obligation anises unless and unti programme sales are made, instead,
payments to partners for thew share in the programme are charged to cost of sales as programme revenues anse

The Company has arrangements with partners who do not undertake development wark or supply parts Such arrangements are considered to be
financial instruments as defined by FRS 25 Financial instruments Presentation and are accounted for using the amortised cost method

Research and development

The charge to the profit and foss account consists of research and development expenditure incurred in the year, excluding known recoverable ¢osts
on contracts, contributions to shared engineering programmes and application engineerning Application engmeering expenditure, incurred in the
adaptation of existing technology to new products, 1s capitalised and amortised over the programme Iife, up to a maximum of 15 years, where bath
the technical and commercial nisks are considered to be sufficiently low
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7 JJACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) |

Interest
Interest receivable/payable is credited/charged to the profit and loss account using the effective interest method

Taxation

Provision for taxation 15 made at the current rate and for deferred taxation at the projected rate on all tming differences that have oniginated, but not
reversed at the balance sheet date Deferred tax s calculated using the emacted or substantively enacted rates that are expected to apply when the
asset or hability is settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised only 10 the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profits will be available against which the assets can
be utiised

Foreign currency translation

Transactions In overseas currenaes are translated into local currency at the exchange rate ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
lizbilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling at the year-end Exchange differences ansing on foreign
exchange transactions and the retranslation of assets and labilities into sterling at the rate ruling at the year-end are taken Into account in determining
profit on ordinary activinies before taxation

Financial instruments

FRS 26 Finanaial instruments Recogrition and measurement requires the classification of financial instruments into separate categonies for which the

accounung requirement s different The Company has classified its inancial instruments as follows

— Fixed deposits, principally comprising funds held with banks and other financial institutions, are cfassified as loans and receivables

— Investments {other than interests in Joint ventures and fixed deposits) and short-term deposits (other than fixed deposits) are classified as avallable
for sale

— Borrowings, trade creditors and financial RRSPs are classified as other habihives

— Denvatives, comprising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commeodity swaps are classified as held for trading

Financial Instruments are recagnised at the contract date and initially measured at farr vatue Their subsequent measurement depends on therr

classification

— Loans and recervables and other iabibities are held at amoruised cost and not revalued (except for changes In exchange rates, which are included in
the profit and loss account) unless they are included 1n a fair value hedge accounting relationstip Where such a relationship exists, the instruments
are revalued in respect of the nsk being hedged i instruments held at amortised cost are hedged, generally by interest rate swaps, and the hedges
are effective, the carrying values are adjusted for changes n fair value, which are included in the profit and loss account

- Available for sale assets are held at far value Changes in fair value anising from changes in exchange rates are included in the profitand loss
account All other changes in fair value are taken to reserves On disposal, the accumulated changes «n value recorded in reserves are included in
the gain or loss secorded in the profit and loss account

— Held for trading nstruments are held at farr value Changes in farr value are included in the profit and loss account unless the nstrument 1s included
in & cash flow hedge If the instruments are included in a cash flow hedging refationshup, which 1s effective, changes 1n value are taken to reserves
When the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded in reserves are recognised in the profit and loss account

Financial Instruments are derecognised on expiry or when all contractual nghts and obhgations are transferred

Hedge accounting
The Company does not apply hedge accounting in respect of forward foregn exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures of
forecast future transactions denominated in foreign currencies

The Company does not apply hedge accounting in respect of commodity swaps held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future
transactions in those commodities

The Company applies hedge accounting In respect of transactions entered into to manage the faw value and cash flow exposures of its borrowings
Forward foreign exchange contracts are he!d 1o manage the fair value exposures of borrowings denominated in foreign currencies and are
destgnated as fair value hedges Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate expasures and are designated as fair value or cash flow
hedges of fixed and floaung rate borrowings respectively

Changes in the fair values of dervatives designated as fair value hedges and changes in fair value of the related hedged item are recognised drrectiy
in the profit and loss account
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[ 1][ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) ]

Hedge accounting continued

Changes in the farr values of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effective are recognised directly in reserves Any
ineffectveness in the hedging relationships is included in the profit and Yoss account The amounts deferred in reserves are recognised in the profit
and foss account to match the recognition of the hedged stem

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that time, for cash flow hedges and if the forecast transaction remains probable, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognised in reserves, 1s retained in reserves unul the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the net cumulative gain or loss previously recogrised in reserves 1s transferred to the profit and loss account

The poruon of a gain or loss on an mstrument used to hedge a net investment In a foreign operation that is determined to be an effective hedge 1s
recognised directly in reserves The ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the profit and loss account

Certlfication costs and participatfon fees

Costs incurred in respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new civil engine/aircraft combnations and payments made to arframe
manufacturers for this, and participatian fees, are carnied forward in intangible assets to the extent that they can be recovered out of future sales and
are charged to the profit and loss account over the programme life, up 10 a maximum of 15 years from the entry-into-service of the product

Software
The cost of acquinng software that 1s not specific to an tem of tangible fixed assets is classified as an intangible asset and amaortised over its useful
economic life, up to a maximum of five years

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangtble fixed assets are stated at cost or valuauon fess accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairments in value

Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-hne basss to write-off the cost or valuation, less the esumated residual value, over the estimated useful Iife
Esumated usefut lives are as follows
) Land and buildings, as advised by the Group's professional advisors
a) Freehold bulldings - five to 45 years (average 24 years)
b} Leasehold land and buildings - lower of valuers’ estmates or period of lease
¢) Nodepreciation is provided in respect of freehold land
1) Plant and equipment - five 1o 25 years (average 13 years)
m) Awrcraft and engines — five to 20 years {average 16 year)
) No depreciation 1s provided on assets in the course of construction

Impairment of fixed assets
impairment of fixed assets 15 considered 1n accordance with FRS 11 imparrment of fixed assets and goodwill Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent of other assets, imparment is considered for the income-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Intangtble assets not yet available for use are tested for mpairment annually Other fixed assets are assessed for any indications of imparrment
annually [f any indication of impairment is identfied, an imparment test is performed to estmate the recoverable amount

Recaverable amaunt 15 the higher of value in use or farr value less costs to sell, If this 1s readily available The value In use is the present value of future
cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the ume value of money and the nisk specific to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or Income-generating umit) 1s estmated to be below the carrying value, the cairying value 1s reduced to the
recoverable amount and the impairment loss recognised as an expense
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[1 ][ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) |

Accounting for leases

) Aslessee Assetsfinanced by leasing agreements that give nghts approximating to ownership (finance leases) have been caprialised at amounts
equal to the oniginal cost of the assets to the lessors and depreciation provided on the basis of the Company depreciation policy The capital
elements of future obligations under finance leases are included as liabilites in the balance sheet and the current year's interest element, having
been allocated to accounting periods to give a constant penodic rate of charge on the outstanding balance, 1s charged to the profit and loss
account The annual payments under all other lease arrangements, known as operating leases, are charged to the profit and loss account on a
straight-lne basis

W Aslessor Amounts recevable under finance leases are included under debtors and represent the total amount outstanding under lease
agreements less ungarned income Finance lease income, having been allocated to accounting penods to give a constant periodic rate of return
on the net cash investment, 15 included in turnover Rentals recewvable under operating leases are ncluded in turnover on a straight-line basis

Stock

Stock and work In progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first-in, first-out basis Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applhicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, including depreciation of property, plant and equipment, that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated selling prices less all estimated costs of
completion and costs 10 be tncurred in marketing, selling and distribution

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that the Company will be required
to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is matenal

Post-retirement benefits

Pensions and similar berefits are accounted for under FRS 17 Post-retirement benefits For defined benefit plans, obligations are measured at discounted
present value whilst plan assets are recorded at farr value The service and finanaing costs of such plans are recognised separately in the profitand loss
2CCOUNt, service costs are spread systematically over the lives of employees and financing costs are recognised in the peniods in which they anse
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of total recognised gans and losses

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

Share based payments

The Company participates in Rolls-Royee Group plc employee share-based payment arrangements These are equity-settled arrangements and are
measured at farr value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The farr value is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of shares or options that will eventually vest The costs of these share-based
payments are treated as a capital contribution from the parent company Any payments made by the Comparty 10 1ts parent company, in respect of
these arrangements, are treated as a return of this capital contnbution

The farr values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as follows

i} ShareSave - using the binormial pricing method,

W Performance Share Plan — using a pricing model adjusted to reflect non-enutlement to dividends (or eguivalent} and the Total Shareholder Return
market based condrtion,

w) Annual Performance Related Award plan - share price on the date of the award

See note 17 for further description of the share-based payment plans
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[ 2 [EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS |

2010 2000
Highest pald Other Highest paid Other
director’ directors dwector’ directors
£000 £000 £000 £000
Aggregate emoluments excluding deferred share plans R . 1,737 4,628 1110 . 3638
Aqgregate amounts relating 1o deferred share plans 1,70 2,685 837 1,361
Aggregate value of Company contributions to Compary defined contribution pensicns schemes - 539 - 524
Accrued pension of highest paid director . 453 =L 450 -
Gains realised on exercise of share optsons ? - 713 - 51
2010 2009
Number Number
Number of directors with accruing reurement benefits
Defined contribution schemes 2 2
Defined benefit schemes . R ; 2
Number of directors with enhanced protection rights within defined benefit schemes 2 2
Number of directors exercising share options 1 2
Number of directors recening shares as part of long-term incentives schemes 5 5
' Member of defined benefit scheme started to receive pension on February 1 2008
7 Includes gains under the ShareSave plan
Y Two directors were contributing members of both defined cantrbution and defined benefit schemes (2009 two directors)
[ 3 ][INTANGIBLE ASSETS |
Certification
costs and
partidpation Software and
fees other Total
£m £m £m
Cost - -
At January 1, 2010 564 233 797
Addiions 38 39 77
At December 31, 2010 602 272 874
Accumulated amortisation
At January 1, 2010 . . 165 63 228
Charge for the year 16 23 39
At December 31, 2010 181 86 267
Netbook value . . L. _ .
At December 31, 2010 421 186 607
At January ¢ 2010 399 170 569

Rolls Reyge plc Annual report 2010

Business review

Other matters

Financial staternents




Business review

Other matters

Financial statements

[ 4 J[TANGIBLE ASSETS |

Land and Plant and Alraraft and in course of
bulidings quip: t gl construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At January 1,2010 a02 1322 .. 35 137 1,896
Additions 3 49 12 84 148
Re¢lassifications 10 70 3 83 -
Disposals/write-offs () (52) {14 {1} (68)
At December 31, 2010 414 1,359 36 137 1,976
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2010 1z 733 5 - 855
Charge for the year 15 110 4 - 129
Disposals/write-offs - (45 m - (46)
At December 31, 2010 132 798 8 - 938
Net book value
At December 31, 2010 282 L3 28 137 1,038
At January 1 2010 285 589 30 137 19041
010 2009
Tangible fixed assets include £m £m
Net book value of finance leased assets . _ . 12 13
Non-depreciable land 47 47
Land and bulldings at ¢cost or valuation comprise
Cost _ _ . R R 263 250
Valuation at December 31, 1996 151 152
414 402
On an historical cost basss the net book value of tand and buildings would have been as follows .
Cost 394 386
Depreciauan (153) (148)
241 238
Capital expenditure commitments 76 82
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[ 5 |[INVESTMENTS |

Subsldiary Jolnt
undertakings' ventures? Other
Unlisted
Shares Shares investments
at cost atcost Loans Total at cost
im im im £m £m
At January 1, 2010 1,750 45 5 51 49
Additions 3 2 - 2 -
Impairment - - - )]
Disposals - - - - 46
At December 31, 2010 1,753 48 53 -
' The principal subsidiary undertakings are hsied on page 124
1 The pncipal joint ventures are listed on pages 125 and 126
The Company has guaranteed the uncalled share capital of Nighuingale Insurance Lmited one of its subsidianes At December 31,2010 this guarantee was £25m (2006 £25m)
[6 ][STOCKS
2010 2009
£m £m
Raw matenals 132 106
Work in progress 415 303
Long-term contracts work in progress 5 15
Fimshed goods 651 800
Payrnents on account 24 16
1,227 1240

[ 7 [DEBTORS

Falling due within one year

Fafling due after one year

2010 2009 010 2009

£m £m im £m

Trade debtors 3N 315 - 1
Arngunts recoverable on contracts 9 78 481 609
Amounts owed by - subsidiary undertakings 650 1,040 - -
- Jount ventures 470 455 4 5

- parent undertaking - 72 - -

Deferred tax assets (note 12) - 373 292
Other debtors 148 146 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 100 77 20 25
1,748 2183 878 932
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Falling due within one yesr Falling due after one year
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Unsecured ~
Overdrafts 18 _ 39 = -
Bank loans - - 200 200
7 Y% Notes 2016 £200m - - 200 200
584% Notes 2010 US$187m ! . 120 - -
6 38% Notes 2013 US5230m * - - 162 _ 155
6 55% Notes 2015 US583m ! - = 60 57
P 4 /1% Notes 2011 €750m ? 642 .- - 677
2 675% Notes 2019 £500m* - - 506 493
2 770 5N 1,128 1782
4 Repayable — otherwise than by instailments
g Between one and two years - . 677
— Between two and five years 422 355
After five years 706 750
1,128 1,782 |
| These notes are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Company has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest, and currency swaps which form a fair vatue hedge
2 These notes are the subject of swap agreements undar which counterparties have undertaken to pay ameounts at fixad rates of interest and exchange in consideration for amounts payable at vanable rates
of nterest and at fixed exchange rates.
3 These notes are the subject of swap agreements underwhich counterparues have undertaken (o pay amounts at fixed rates of interest 1 consaderanon for amounits payable at vanable rates of interest
Falling due within ¢ne year Falling due after one year
2010 2009 200 2009
g £m Em im £m
& Payments receved on account ' _ 388 387 464 525
g Trade creditors L an . 426 - . -
g Amounts owed to - subsidiary undertakings 2,014 221 -
—J10O - Joint ventures 251 258 3 2
- parent 49 - - -
Corporate taxation 99 95 - -
Other taxation and social security 17 38 - -
Other creditors 909 _ _ 832 9 69
Acgruals and deferred iIncome BO6 846 155 177
5,164 5,093 713 773
"Includes payments received an account from joint ventures 160 161 243 258
9
=
g
£
a
)i
-
=
v
[=4
]
C
—_—l
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[10][OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES]

Detalls of the Company’s policies on the use of financial nstruments are given A the accounting policies on pages Mod

The far values of dervative financial instruments held by the Company are as follows

Foraign
exchange Commodity Interest rate Finandal
contracts contracts contracts RRSPS Total
im £m Em £m im
At December 31,2010
Assets —amounts falling due within one year 107 10 142 - 259
_ —amounts falling due afier one year 322 18 . 6 - 376
Liabiliues - amounits faling due within one year (86) 5) - (54) (145)
— amounts falling due after one year {745) {2 {3 (236) {986)
402} 21 175 (290) (496)
At December 31, 2009
Assets - amounts faling due within one year 106 . 4 4 - i4
- amounts falling due after one year 438 n 197 - 646
Liabilites — amounts falling due within one year 97 (1) - (50) (158}
- amounts falling due after one year 617) (15 2) {262) {896)
{170) an 199 312) (294)

Foreign exchange and commodity financial instruments

The Company uses various financial nstruments to manage Its exposure 1o movementsin foreign exchange rates The Company uses commodity
swaps 1o manage Its exposure to movements In the price of commod bies (jet fuel and base metals) To hedge the currency risk associated with a
borrewing denominated i US dollars, the Company has currency derivatives designated as part of fair value hedges

Movements in the far values of foreign exchange and commaodity financial nstruments were as foliows

Foreign

exchange Commodity

instruments Instruments

£m £m
AtJanuary 1, 2009 (1.852) t2)]
Movements In denvative contracts not in accounuing hedging relationships . s 1,562 52
Movemenis in fair value hedges ' (33) -
Contracts settled 253 26
At January 1, 2010 (170} an
Movements in denvative contracis not in accounting hedging relatenships (398) 29
Movements In fair value hedges ' ; . 7 .-
Contracis settled 159 3
AtDecember 31, 2010 (402) ri

' Loss on related hedged terms £7m (2009 £33 profitt
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[10][OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)]

Interest rate financial instruments

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate caps to manage i1s @xposure (0 Movements In interest rates

The farr values of interest rate financial instruments were as follows

Included En

QOther

fair value Interest rate

hedging financtal

Total 1 hips Instr

£m £m £m

AU January 1, 2009 274 278 @
Mgvements |n fair values ! (75) 77 2
At January 1, 2010 193 201 {2)
Movements n fair values ! . 22) 2n 1))
Contracts settled (2} (2} -
At December 31, 2010 175 178 {3}

' Profiton related hedged iterms £21m (2009 £77 profit)

Where applicable, market values have been used 1o determine farr values Where market values are not avallable, fair values have been calculated by
discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and translating at prevailing exchange rates

Financial nisk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs)

The Company has financial habilities anising from financial RRSPs These financial habilities are valued at each reporting date using the amortised cost
method This invelves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the internal rate of return at the inception of

the arrangements as the discount rate

The amortised cost values of financial RRSPs were as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

At January 1 (312} (385)

Cash paid to partners 59 57

Financing charge (20) {22)

Exchange adjustments . 6) 44

Changes in forecast payments an (6}

At December 31 {290} {312)
[11][PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES |

At Unused Charged At

January ¥, amounts to profitand December 31,

2010 reversed loss account Utitlsed 2010

£m £m £m £m £m

Warranuies and guarantees 29 - 13 (3) 39

Contract loss 5 (1 3 - 7

Customer financing 57 - 16 {9 64

Restructuring 8 {3) 14 {6) 13

99 {4) 46 {18) 123

Provisions for warranties and guarantees pnmarily relate to products sold and generally cover a penod of up to three years

Provisions for contract loss and restructurnng are generally expected to be utiised within two years

Customer financing provisions cover guaraniees provided for asset values and/or financing as described in note 18 Timing of ublisation s uncertain
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[12|[DEFERRED TAXATION |

£m
At January 1, 2010 i j . . i _ 220
Amount crediied to profit and loss account 47
Amount charged to statement of total reccgnised gains and losses (51)
At December 31, 2010 216

There are other deferred tax assets totalling £102m (2009 £102m) that have not been recognised on the basis that their future economic benefit
1S uncertan

The Emergency Budget on 22 June 2010 announced that the UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 28 per cent 1o 24 per cent over a penod of four
years from 2011 The first reduction in the rate from 28 per cent to 27 per cent was substantively enacted on 21 July 2010 and will be effective from

1 April 2011 As this rate change was substantively enacted prior to the year end, the ¢losing deferred tax assets and ltabihues have been restated The
resuling charges or credits have been recognised in the income statement except to the extent that they relate 10 items previously charged or
credited 1o reserves Accordingly, in 2010, £15m has been charged 1o the profit and loss account and £9m has been credited to the STRGL Had the
further tax rate changes been substantively enacted on or before the balance sheet date, 1t would have had the effect of reducing the deferred tax
asset by £17m

The analysis of the deferred tax positon is as follows

2010 2009

£m £m
Fixed asset uming differences mny| m?
Other uming differences 27 45
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits (157) 72
Foreign exchange and commeodity financeal assets and habiities 94 54
Losses . . . 302 249
Advance corporation tax 61 6l
216 220

Included within ~ N

Debtors ~ amounits faling due after one year 373 292
Post-retirement scheme -~ surpluses (170) 92)
- deficits 13 20

216 220

The above figures exclude taxation payable on capital gains which might arise from the sale of fixed assets at the values at which they are stated In
the Company's balance sheet

[13|[POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS |

Defined benefit schemes
For the defined benefit schemes the assets are held In separate trustee administered funds and employees are entitled to retrement benefits based
on either therr final or career average salanes and length of service

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuaries to December 31,
2010 The most recent funding valuations of the main schemes were
Scheme Valuation date

Rolls-Royce Pension Fund March 31, 2009
Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme (provisional) . . . Apnl5,2010
Vickers Group Pension Scheme (provisional) March 31 2010
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[13][POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) ]

The principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows

2010 2000

% %
Rate of Increase n salanes 47 | 47
Rate of increase of pensions in payment ! 30 33
Discount rate 55 57
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 50 54
Inflation assumption 36 36

' Benefits accruing after Apnl 5 2005 are assumed to increase at a rate of 19 percent

The discount rates are determined by reference to the market yields on ‘AA’ rated corporate bonds For the main schemes, the rate 1s determined by
using the profie of forecast benefit payments to derve a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve For less significant schemes the rate 1
determined as the market yield at the average duration of the forecast benefit payments The discount rates above are the weighted average of those
for each scherme, based on the value of their respective hatrlities

The assumptions have not been adjusted to reflect the UK Government's anncuncement 1n 2010 to change the basis for the indexation of
occupational pension schemes from the Retail Prices Index to the Consumer Price Jndex

The overall expected rate of return 1s calculated by weighting the individual returns expected from each asset class (see below) in accordance with
the actual asset balance in the schemes’ investment portfolios

The mortality assumptions adopted for the pension schemes are denved from the SAPS actuarial tables, with 80 per cent of fong cohort and an
underpin of one per ¢ent, published by the Institute of Actuaries, projected forward and, where appropriate, adjusted to take account of the relevant
scheme's actua!l experence The resulung range of life expectancies in the principal schemes are as follows

Life expectancy from age 65

Current pensioner _ 224 years
Future pensicher currently aged 45 24 2 years

Other demographic assumptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard te the latest trends in scheme experience and
other relevant data The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the periodic actuanal valuaton of the schemes

Amaounts recognised In the balance sheet

2010 2009

£m £rm
Present value of funded cbhigauons . . R ~ (r.o3%) 674
Faur value of scheme assets 7,783 7,048
Unrecognised surplus ' (164} 75
Surpius 580 259
Related deferred tax kabihty {157} 72)
Net asset recognised in the balance sheat 423 187

Anatysed as

Post-retirement scheme surpluses 458 237
Post-reurament scheme deficits {35) (50)
423 187

' Where a surplus has ansen on a scheme, 1n accordance with FRS 17 Retirement benefits the surplus s recogmsed as an asset onfy o 1t represents a future economic benefit avadable to the Company Any
surplus in excess of this benefit 1s not recogrsed (n the balance sheet Surpluses have ansen largely as a resuit of differences batween the actuanal and FRS 17 valuation assumprions
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[13][POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED} |

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

2010 2009
£m £m
At January 1 6,714) (5719)
Current service cost _ 118 54
Past service cost . . - -1. A2
fFinance cost B (375) (355}
Contributions by employees {3) (3
Benefits paid cut 313 324
Actuanal losses (142} (865)
At December 31 (7,039} (6 714)
Changes in fair value of scheme assets
2010 2009
£m Im
At January 1 . 7.048 | 7163
Expected return on assets 374 285
Contnbuuons by employer 227 232
Contnbuuons by employees N 3 3
Benefits paid out (313) (324)
Actuanal gains/(losses} 444 (311)
At December 31 7.783 7048
Actual return on plan assets 818 (26}
The farr value of the scheme assets and the expected rates of return at December 31 were 3s follows
2010 2008
Expected Expected
rate of Market rate of Market
return value raturn value
im % £m
LDl portfolio ! - 45 6,383 50 5736
Equities . . .. 75 1,204 78 1197
Sovereign debt 42 23 45 18
Corporate bonds 52 22 55 8
Cther 42 151 46 179
50 7,783 54 7048

1 A pordolio of gilt and swap contracts, backed by LIBOR generating assets, that 1s designed to hedge the majonty of the interest rate and inflation nsks assogated wath the schemes cblgations.

The scheme assets do not include any financial instruments of the Rolls-Royce Group plc group, nor any property occupied by, or ather assets used

by, the Group

The expected rate of return for LDI portfolios is determined by the implicit yield on the portfolic at the balance sheet date

The expected rates of return on other individual categories of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields Equiies and corporate bonds

are assumed to generate returns that exceed the return from giits by 3 25 per cent and 10 per cent per annum respectively

The expected rates of return above are the weighted average of the rates for each scheme

Future contributions
The Company expects to contribute approximately £255m 1o its defined benefit schemes in 2013
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[13][POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) ]

Sensltivities

The investment strategies are designed 1o hedge the nisks from interest rates and inflavon on an economic basis A reduction of 0 25 per centin the
discount rate weuld increase the obligations of the defined benefit schemes by approximately £259m An equivalent movement in interest rates
would increase the fair value of the assets by approximately £343m The difference anses largely due to differences in the methods used to value

the obligauons for accounting and economic purposes On an economic basis the correlation 1s in excess of 90 per cent The principle remaining

nisks relate to the assumptians for mortalty and increases in salanes If the age ratings in respect of the defined benefit schemes were increased

by one year, the scheme lrabilies would increase by £119m If the rate of increase in salaries were 0 5 per cent higher, scherme kabilites would increase
by £132m

History of defined benefit schemes
The history of the schemaes for the current and pricr years s as follows

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£m Em £m £m £m

Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations (7.039) ©6.714) (5719) 6339) (5,785)
Fair value of scheme assets 7,783 7048 7163 6626 5101
Unrecogrised surplus {164) (75) {566) {113) -
Surplusfdenan) 580 259 878 178 {684)
Experlence gains/{losses)
Actuanal gans on scheme assets 444 (311 264 157 114
Expenence {lossesi/gains on scheme liabxiities (142) (865) 776 309 477
Maovement in unrecognised surplus {89) 49] {453) (113) -
Total amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses 213 (685) 587 3153 591
Cumulative amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses ! (280) (493) 192 (395) (748)

' Since January 1 2002

Defined contribution schemes
The Company operates a number of defined contrbution schemes The total expense recognised in the profit and loss account was £9m (2009 £7m)

[14][SHARE CAPITAL]
Ordinary
shares Nominal
of 20p each value
Millions £m
Issued and fully pald
At January 1, 2009 and December 31 2010 1631 326
[15 |[MOVEMENTS IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES |
Non-dstributable reserves
Profit and
Share Share  Revalvation Other loss Total
capital premium reserve reserves account equity
£m im £m £m £m £m
At January 1, 2010 . 326 631 47 167 595 ] 1,766
Total recognised gains relating o the year - - - - 193 193
Dwidend paid - - - - (550) {550}
Transfers between reserves B - - (6 - 61 -
Share-based payments - direct 1o reserves - - - - 9 9
At December 31, 2010 326 631 41 167 253 1,418
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[16 |[OPERATING LEASE ANNUAL COMMITMENTS |

2010 2009
£m £m
Leases of land and bulldings which expire i
Between one and five years 4 3
After five years 1 1
Other leases which expire R
Within one year . .. . L !
Between one and five years 4 4
[17]|SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS |
Effect of share-based payment transactions on the Company’s results
2010 2009
£m £m
Total expense recognised for equity settled share-based payment transacugns 28 19

Share-based payment plans in operation during the year
During the year, the Company parucipated in the following share-based payment plans operated by Rolls-Royce Group plc

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

This plan involves the award of shares to participants subject to performance conditions Vesting of the performance shares 1s based on the
achievernent of both non-market based conditions (EPS and cash flow per share) and a market based performance condition (Total Shareholder
Return - TSR) over a three-year period

ShareSave share option plan

Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, eligible employees are granted share options with an exercise price of up to 20 per cent below
the share price when the contract is entered inte Vesting of the options 15 not subject to the achievement of a performance target The plan s

HM Revenue & Customs approved

Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP)
This plan involved the grant of market value share options 1o partricipants It terminated in 2009 and no further grants may be made Remaining
options under the plan are subject to a non-market based performance condition {growth in EPS) and have a maximum contractual life of ten years

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

A proporuon of the APRA annual incentive scheme 1s delivered i the form of a deferred share award The release of deferred share awards s not
dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditiens other than that partcipants remain employed by the Company for two years
from the date of the award in order to retain the full number of shares During the two year deferral peniod, participants are entitled to receive
dividends, or equivalent, on the deferred shares
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[17][SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)]

Movements in the Company's share-based payment plans duning the year

Sharesave ESOF PSP APRA

Weighted Weighted

average average
Number exercise price Number exercise price Number Number
Milllons Pence Millions Pence Mitllons Millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2009 ~ 89 288 09 176 78 14
Granted 75 387 - - 60 12

Additional shares accrued from reinvestment of C Shares - - - - - o

Forfeited . (13 353 - - . (@5 -
Exercised 76} 171 03 205 26 (L))
Qutstanding at December 31 2009 175 381 06 165 107 17
Exercisable at December 31 2009 - - 06 165 - ~
Outstanding at January 1, 2010 175 38 Q6 165 07 17
Granted - - - - 32 06
Additicnal entitlements ansing from TSR performance - - - - 04 -
Forferted {04 393 - - - -
Exercised {08} 426 03 186 {31} 07}
Qutstanding at December 31, 2010 163 380 03 132 112 16
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 - - 03 132 - -

As share options are exercised throughout the year, the weighted average share price duning the year of 579p (2009 386p) is representative of the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise The closing share price ai December 31, 2010 was 623p, (2009 483 5p}

The average remaining contractual life of exercisable options 1s 1 6 years (2009 2 0 years)

Share options outstanding

ShareSave ESOP Total
Welghted Welghted Welghted |
average average average
remaining remaining remalning
contractual contractual contractual
Number life Number life Number life
Exercise price [pence) Mllligns Years Millions Years Milllons Years
At December 31, 2010
0-99 - - 01 22 a1 22
100 -199 - - 01 12 01 12
200 - 299 . 31 01 ot 03| 32 A
300 - 399 71 33 - - . 71 33
400 —499 61 15 - - 61 15
16 3 20 03 16 16 6 20
At December 31, 2009 .
0-99 - - 02 32 02 312
100-199 - - 01 20 03 20
200 - 299 . 39 11 03 | 12| . 42 11
300 - 399 73 43 - - 73 43
400 - 499 63 24 - - 63 24
175 26 06 20 181 29

The range of exercise prices of options outstanding at December 31, 2010 was between 77p and 416p (2009 77p and 416p) For ShareSave it was
between 298p and 416p (2009 258p and 416p) and for ESOP it was between 77p and 218p (200$ 77p and 218p)

Under the terms of the Rolls-Royce 1999 Executive Share Option Plan, options granted 1o 16 directors and senior executives were outstanding at

December 31, 2010
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[17]|[SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)]

Farr values of share-based payment plans
The weighted average fair values per share of equity-settled share-based payment plans granted duning the year, estrnated at the date of grant are
as follows

2010 2009
PSP - 25% TSR uphft S86p | 253p
PSP - 50% TSR uplift 654p | 282p
ShareSave - 3 year grant n/a 144p
ShareSave - 5 year grant nfa 167p
APRA 537p 290
In esumating these fair values, the following assumpnions were used
psp ShareSave
2010 2009 2009
Weighted average share pnce R . . 545p 260p 462p
Exercise pnce nfa nfa 387p
Expected dmidends 14 6p 147p 143p
Expected volatiity 3% 32% 36%
Correlation 35% 35% nfa
Expected Iife - PSP 3 years 3 years nfa
Expacted Ife ~ 3 year ShareSave nfa rnfa| 33-38years
Expected Ife - 5 year ShareSave . nfa na| 53-58years
Risk free interest rate 19% 16% 24%

Expected volatility 15 based on the historical volatity of Rolls-Royce Group plc’s share price over the seven years prior to the grant or award date
Expected dividends are based on Rolls-Royce Group plc's payments to shareholders in respect of the previous year

PSP

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP Is calculated using a pricing maodel that takes account of the non-entitlement to dividends (or
equrvalent) during the vesting period and the market-based performance condition, based on expectations about volatlity and the correlation of
share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies, which incorporates into the valuation the interdependency between share price performance
and TSRvesting This adjustment increases the far value of the award relative to the share price at the date of grant

ShareSave

The fair value of the options granted under the ShareSave plan is calculated using a brnorrial prictng madet that assumes that participants will
exercise thew options at the beginning of the six month window If the share price Is greater than the exercise price Otherwise 1t assumes that
aptions are held untl the exprration of ther contractual term This results in an expected iife that falls somewhere between the start and end of
the exercise window

APRA
The fair value of shares awarded under APRA 1s calculated as the share price an the date of the award, excluding expected dividends

Rolls-Royce plc Annual report 2010

Business review

Qther matters

Financial statements




Business review

Other matters

Financial statements

[18 |[CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS |

In connection with the sale of its products the Company will, on some occasions, provide financing support for 1ts customers The Company's
contingent habilities relating to financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers and a broad product
porifolio

Conungent habilines are disclosed on a discounted basis As the directors consider the likelihood of these contingent liabilities crystzllising to be
remote, this amount does not represent a value that 1s expected to crystallise However, the amounts are discounted at the Company’s borrowing rate
to reflect better the ume span over which these exposures could anise The contingent habiliues are denominated (n US dollars As the Company does
not adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast foretgn exchange transactions, this amount 1s reported together with the sterling equivalent at the
reporting date spot rate

The discounted value of the total gross contingent labilities relating to inancing arrangements on alt delivered aircraft less insurance arrangements
and relevant provisions were

2010 2009

£m sm im $m
Gross contingent habalipes 633 991 704 1,137
Conungent iabiliies net of relevant secunty ! m 190 134 217
Conungent lizbilites net of relevant secunty reduced by 50% 2 200 314 233 376
' Unrestncted cash collateral held as security 68 106 77 124

1 Although sensitmry cakulavons are complex, the reducuon of the relevant security by 20 per cent ilfustrates the sensiwty of the conungent hiability 1 changes in this 2ssumption

There are also net contingent habiinies in respect of undelivered arcraft, but it s not considered practicable to estimate these as delivenies can be
many years in the future, and the relevant inancing will only be put in place at the appropnate time

Contingent kabdities exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Company in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, performance and
reliability The Company has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements In respect of export finance, performance bonds, countertrade
obligations and minor miscelianeous items The Company 1s party to legal actions and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business, some of
which are for substantial amounts As a consequence of the insolvency of an insurer as previously reported, the Company 1s no longer fully insured
against known and potential claims from employees who worked for certain of the Company’s UK based businesses for a period prior to the acquisition
of those businesses by the Company While the outcome of some of these matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do notexpect any of these
arrangements, legal actions or claims, after allowing for provisions already made, to result in significant loss to the Company

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the iIndebtedness of other companies within its group, the Company
considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract

as a contingent liability until such time as 1t becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

At December 31, 2010, there were Company guarantees in respect of jont ventures amounting to £43m (2009 £15m)

The Company participates in @ Cash Pooling Arrangement Under the Pooling Arrangement the Company benefits frem more favourable interest
rates than would be available outside of the Pooling Arrangement as well as more streamlined treasury functions As part of the Pooling Arrangemeny,
the Company cross-guarantees the borrowings of other pooling participants At December 31, 2010 these guarantees amounted to £22m

(2009 £35m}

As noted on page 47 of the business review, Rolls-Royce has commenced an acuon in respect of its swept fan blade patent Subsequent proceedings

have commenced against Ralls-Royce alleging patent infringement It 1s nat possible, at this stage, to estimate the amount of any damages which
might be awarded in favour of, or against, Rolls-Royce
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[19|[RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS]

The Company 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Rolls-Royce Group plc and therefore has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 Related party
disclosures not to disclose related party transactions wiath (ts parent company and other wholly owned group companies

There are no sigruficant related party transacuons with non wholly owned group companies

The aggregated balances with joint ventures are shown in notes 7 and 9

[20[[ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY]|

The ulumate holding company s Rolls-Royce Group ple, ncorporated in Great Britamn The financial statements for Rolls-Royce Group plc may be
obrained from the Company Secretary, Rolls-Rayce Group plc, 65 Buckingham Gate, London SW1E 5AT
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

[AT DECEMBER 31, 2010]

[INCORPORATED WITHIN THE UK - DIRECTLY HELD

UNLESS MARKED?|

Optmized Systens and Solutions Limited
Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systemns Limited
Rolls-Royce lnternational Limited
Rolls-Royce Leasing Limited

Rolls-Royce Manne Electnical Systems Limited®
Rolls-Royce Marine Power Qperations Lirmited
Rolls-Royce Power Development Limited
Rolls-Royce Power Engineenng plc
Rolls-Royce Total Care Services Limited

Equipment health management and advanced data management services
Developrment of fuel cell systems
hln[ernauonal support and commercial informaton semvices
Engine leasing

Marine electrical systems

Nuclear submanne propulsicn systems

Generation of elecmcny_from independent power projects
Energy and manng systems

Aero engine aftermarket suppoert services

Tidal Generation Limited

Development of tidal generation systems

The above companies operate principally in the UK and the effective Group interest is 100 per cent, other than Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systems Limited

in which 1t1s 80 per cent

[INCORPORATED OVERSEAS — DIRECTLY HELD UNLESS MARKED*|

Brazil Rolls-Royce Brasil Limitada Aerg engine repair and overhaul
Canada . _Bolls Royce Canada Limited® Industnal gas turbines and aero engine sales, service and overhaul
China Rolls-Royce Manne (Shanghar) Lirmited® Manufacture and supply of manne equipment
Finland Rolls Royce OY AB* Manufacture of manne winches and propeller sysiems
France Rolls Royce Cvil Nuclear SAS* Instrumentation and control systems and life cycle management for
) nuclear power plants
France Rolls-Royce Technical Support SARL* Aero engine project support
Germany Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG* Aero engine design, development and manufacture
Guernsey Nightingale Insurance Limited* Insurance services R
lndia Rolls-Royce india Private Limited* Diesel engine project management and customer support
Incha Rells-Royce Operations (India) Private Limited®  Engineenng support servicas
Italy Europea Microfusiom Aerospazial S pA, Manufacture of gas turbing engine castings
Norway Rolls Royce Maring AS* Design anct manufacture of ship equipment
Norway Scandinavian Electric Holding AS* Marine electnical systems
Singapore Rolls Royce Singapore Pte Limited* Aero engine parts manufactunng and engine assembly and energy and
_manne aftermarket support services
Sweden Rolls-Royce AB* Manufacture of manne propeller systerns
us Data Systems & Solutions LLC* Instrumentation and contrel systemns and life cycle management for
nuctear power plants
us Optimized Systems and Solutions Inc * Equipment health management and advanced data management services
us B Rolls-Royce Commercial Marine Inc® Manine aftermarket support services
us Rolls-Royce Corporation® Design development and manufacture of gas turbine engines )
us Rolls Royce Crosspointe LLC* Manufactunng facility for aero engine parts
us B ) B Rolls-Royce Energy Systems Inc * Energy turbine generator packages B
us Ralls-Royce Engine Services - Cakland Inc * Aero engine repair and overhaul
Us Rolis-Royce Defense Services Inc * Aerc engine repar and overhaul
Us ~ Rolis-Royce Naval Manne Inc * . Design and manufacture of manne equipment
Us Seaworthy Systems Inc * Marnne support services

The above companies operate principally in the country of their Incorporation
The effective Group interest is 100 per cent

A histof all subsidiary undertakings will be included in the Company's annual return to Companies House
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PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES

[AT DECEMBER 31, 2010]

[JOINT VENTURES |
[INCORPORATED WITHIN THE UK — DIRECTLY HELD UNLESS MARKED*|
% of % of total

Class class held equity held
Airtanker Heldings Limited Ordinary 20 20
Strategic tanker aircraft PFI project
Airtanker Services Lunited Ordinary 22 22
Provision of aftermarket services for strategic tanker aircraft
Alpha Partners Leasing Limited A Ordinary 100 } 50
Aero engine leasing 8 Ordinary -
Composite Technelogy & Applications Limited A Ordinary 10¢ } 51
Development of aero engine fan blades 8 Ordinary -
Genistics Holdings Limned A Crdinary 100 } 50
Traler-mounted field mobile generator sets B QOrdinary -
Rolls-Royce Goodrich Engine Contral Systems Limited* Qrdinary 50 50
Development and manufacture of aero engine controls
Rolls-Royce Snecma Limited (UK & France) A Shares - } 50
Aerp engine collzboration B Shares 100
Rolls-Royce Turbomeca Limited (UK & France) A Shares - } 50
Aero engine collaboration B Shares 100
Rolls Wood Group (Repair and Overhauls) Lirmited A Qrdinary 100 } 50
Industrial gas turbine repair and overhaul B Ordinary -
TRT Limited A Grdinary - } 495
Aero engine turbine blade repair services B Ordinary 100
Turbine Surface Technologies Limited A Crdinary - } 50
Aero engine turbine surface coatings 8 Orchinary 100
Turbo-Union Limited (UK, Germany & Italy) Ordinary 40 } 40
RB199 engine collaboration A Shares 375
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[JOINT VENTURES

[INCORPORATED OVERSEAS — DIRECTLY HELD UNLESS MARKED* |

%of % of total
Class class held equity held
China Xian XR Aero Components Co Limited
Manufacturing facility for aero engine parts Ordinary 49 49
Germany EPI Europrop Intermational GmbH {effecuive interest 35 5%)
A400M engine ccllaboratson Ordinary 28 28
Germany EURQJET Turbo GmbH (UK, Germany ltaly & Spain) (effective interest 39%)
Ej200 engine collaboration Qrdinary 33 33
Garmany MTU Turbomeca Roll-Royce Gmbh (UK, France & Germany)
MTR380 engine collaboraucn Ordinary 333 333
Germany N3 Engine Overhaul Services Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH*®
Aero engine reparr and overhaul Ordinary 50 50
Hong Kang Hoeng Kong Aero Engine Services Limited*
Aero engine repair and overhaul Ordinary 45 45
India International Aerospace Marufactuning Private Limied*
Manufacture of compressor shrouds, compressor nags turbine blades and Ordinary 50 50
nozzel guide vanes
Israed Techet Aerofoils Limized™ AOrdinary 50 50
Manufacture of compressar aerofoils for gas turbines B Ordinary 50
Malaysia Advanced Gas Turbine Solutions Sdn Bhd*
Industnal gas twibine aftermarket services Ordinary 49 49
Singapore Internaticnal Engine Companent Overhaul Pte Limited*
Aerg engine reparr and overhaul Crdinary 50 50
Singapore Singapore Aero Engine Services Private Limited {effective interest 39%)"
Aero engine repar and overhaul Ordinary 30 30
Spain Industria de Turbo Propulsores SA
Aero engine component manufaciure and maintenance Ordinary 469 469
Switzerland 1AE International Aero Engines AG (UK, Germany, Japan & US) A Shares 100
V2500 engine collaboration B Shares - 335
C Shares -
D Shares -
uUs Alpha Leasing (US) LLC, Alpha Leasing (US) (No2) LLC Alpha Leasing (US) |
{No4) LLC Alpha Leasing (US) {No 5) LLC, Alpha Leasing (US) (No €) LLC,
Alpha Leasting {US} {No 7) LLC Rolis-Royce & Partners Finance (US) LLC,
Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance {US} (No 2) LLC* |
Aero engine leasing Partnerships 50 - |
us Exostar LLC* |
Business to business internet exchange Partngrship 176 - \
|
Us GE Rolls-Royce Fighter Engine Team LLC* |
F136 development engine for the Joint Stnke Fighter program Partnership 40 -
us Texas Aero Engine Services LLC*
Aero engine repair and overhaul Partnership 50 -
us Willams-Rolls Inc. (UK & US)*
Small aero engine collaboration Common 15 15

[UNINCORPORATED OVERSEAS — HELD BY SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKING] |

us tight Helicopter Turbine Engine Company (LHTEC)
Rolls-Royce Corporation has a 50 per cent interest (n thss unincorporated

partnership which was formed 1o develop and market jointly the T800 engine

The countries of principal operations are stated in brackets after the name of the company, If not the country of incorporation |
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